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Chairman’s Statement

SERWMES

In 2015, the global economy faced downward pressure. The recovery
of the United States was slow, economic conditions in Europe were
still challenging and growth of emerging markets saw a general
slowdown. Among the core markets of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), China reported a gross domestic product
growth of 6.9% in 2015, down from 7.3% in 2014, whereas Vietnam
saw improvement in her economic conditions and achieved a 6.7%
gross domestic product growth versus 6.0% in 2014.

With enterprises in our core markets continuing to transform and
upgrade and with the impact of increasingly stringent industry
regulations, the sector is consolidating, ousting the weaker players.
As the transformation of the feed industry speeds up, enterprises
wishing to stay competitive must step up adoption of more advanced
technologies and sharpen their operating competencies at the
same time. They also have to heed society’s growing demand for
environmental protection and more intense regulation of the industry.

With China slowly taking in her “new norm”, the agri-food industry
is exposed to the pressure from the slowing growth of the macro
economy as well as the changing industry environment. In Vietnam,
business ambience improved with the signing of multiple international
trade agreements during the year. Nevertheless, as the Vietnamese
society develops, her government has tightened the technical
and environmental requirements on enterprises. Overall, in 2015,
enterprises in the agri-food industry were challenged on how to
adapt to changes and improve allocation of resources and production
efficiency.

As China and Vietnam press ahead with reforms and efforts to
improve market operation as well as to lift the industry entry barrier
by for example toughening production and environmental protection
standards, players in the feed industry have started to transform
and upgrade their practices strategically so as to achieve sustainable
development and strengthen their competitive advantages. For sizable
agri-food players like the Group, the new trend and industry landscape
present opportunities. As a market leader, the Group was able to
draw on its advanced technology and abundant experience to further
consolidate its leadership in 2015.

To cope with the changing industry environment, the Group has
remained steadfast in upholding its Three Benefits Principle — benefit
the country, benefit the people and benefit the company. Apart from
ramping up investment in research and development and advanced
technologies, the Group continued to encourage and push forward
with innovation — increasing automation, bringing in new and
advanced equipment, and adopting information-based production
systems. On the business side, the Group focused on applying its
technological and managerial expertise to its feed business. Internally,
it implemented measures such as modernizing management systems,
optimizing customer base and enhancing product structure. By giving
attention to business segments with significant market demand and
high profitability, and also fortifying its service capabilities, value-
added services and corporate image, the Group was able to maintain
its market leadership.
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In July 2015, the Group spun-off and separately listed its biochemical
and industrial businesses under Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited. Going forward, the Group will focus on the agri-food
business. Our efforts made during the year contributed to the Group’s
solid results in 2015.

Looking ahead, in 2016, the Group’s operating markets will still
be affected by challenging external economic conditions. China is
expected to continue to implement austerity measures in her bid
to reduce excessive production capacity and inventories, which
may cause domestic consumption to shrink and economic growth
continuing to slow down. However, the Group is confident that 2016
will be a year for China to take her reforms to deeper levels and see
the emergence of a market that favours fairer competition and more
competent enterprises. As for Vietnam, with market conditions
having been positive for some time already, a little easing in the future

should not come as a surprise.

Today, our society is in a development phase that emphasizes
innovation, coordination, care for the environment, openness and
sharing. Together with industry consolidation, China continuing
on its modernization and urbanization path, and emphasis on
entrepreneurship and innovative endeavours, the Group is presented

with opportunities to realize more of its advantages.

To achieve sustainable development, the Group will make the most
of its rich industry-chain resources, exercise stringent quality control,
and embrace innovation and technology. We will continue to develop
the downstream food business, striving to fulfil our vision of becoming
“The Kitchen of the World” and creating values for society.

Finally, I would like to take the opportunity to express my sincere
thanks to all members of our team for their efforts and contributions
to the Group in the past year. [ would also like to extend my gratitude

to our shareholders for their continued trust and support.

Dhanin Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 February 2016
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We have been a trusted name in China for decades, and to fulfill our mission to become

“The Kitchen of the World” — we are moving into the food business. Our new factory in
Qinhuangdao produces delicious, safe and nutritious food products, providing more
choices and convenience to consumers.

HAEPEHTEREDBERESEENRE - BETHMAKS THRNERE | BER - HEA
Rm=1 - HAIGEREENFRERNEERNK - LEREFEENRM ° BEEFRHETER
EIRICHERE






Using raw materials from safe and trusted source
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Utilising world-class equipment and adopting international standards
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Highly automated from production to packaging
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Financial Highlights
BB E
2015 2014
(Restated)
(Unit: US$ million) (Hfr : FHFoT) (WEH])
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FEEHKEREH
Revenue e A 5,130 5,509
Gross Profit s=x 904 856
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company A Ak 43 LT A A ) BBEOR 2 i R 268 251
Basic Earnings Per Share (US cents)* B B FE AR A (EAL) * 1.056 0.996
Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents) A B W R A (32l 1.056 0.994
Total Cash Dividend Per Share (HK cents) BB B4 S (Al 3.8 39
Interim Cash Dividend Per Share (HK cents) PB4 RS B 1.7 1.7
Final Cash Dividend Per Share (HK cents) B oK B B 4 B B (Al 2.1 2.2
Special Interim Dividend by Way of Distribution in Specie 75 38 B 43 IR 2 R T o B R 151 -
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FEMBRNEREA
Property, Plant & Equipment LUE B & A 1,182 1,071
Total Assets A 3,128 3,154
Total Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings ME R ER MR 1,103 1,125
Issued Capital AT A 253 253
Shareholders' Equity J R A BE B 1,086 1,179
Total Equity HE 25 48 4 1,316 1,386
Revenue US$ million Gross Profit US$ million
BA BEET EF BEET
6,000 ~ 5,500 1,000 -
5,130 856 904
800
4,000 -
600
400 -
2,000 A
200
0 0
2014 2015 2014 2015
Profit US$ million Dividend HK cents
Attributable BEZXE T Per Share &l 29
to Shareholders 3 _ BREE 40 - - 3.8
of the Company 251 268
A A EF 30 4
VAN 200 - ’
Z3a A
2.0 |
100
1.0 ~
0 0
2014 2015 2014 2015
Remarks f#E ¢
* Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s revenue excluding
discontinued operations (please refer to “Discontinued Operations”
section) declined 6.9% to US$5,130 million (2014: US$5,509
million). Agri-food business in China accounted for 59.1% of the
Group’s revenue while agri-food business in Vietnam contributed
40.9% of the Group’s revenue. Overall gross margin reached 17.6% in
2015 (2014: 15.5%).

T ON
Viet Agri-food
e 40.9% 5,130
US$ million

BEET
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Due to better performance of Vietnam’s agri-food business, profit
attributable to shareholders excluding discontinued operations
increased 10.7% to US$242 million (2014: US$219 million). The
Group’s profit attributable to shareholders including discontinued
operations was US$268 million (2014: US$251 million), a 6.4%

increase compared to 2014.

Basic and diluted earnings per share excluding discontinued
operations were US 0.957 cents (2014: US 0.868 cents) and US
0.957 cents (2014: US 0.866 cents), respectively. Basic and diluted
earnings per share including discontinued operations were US 1.056
cents (2014: US 0.996 cents) and US 1.056 cents (2014: US 0.994
cents), respectively. The board has proposed a final dividend per share
(“DPS”) of HK$0.021. Including the interim DPS of HK$0.017, total
DPS in 2015 was HK$0.038 (2014: HK$0.039).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Agri-food Business in China

In pursuing its integration strategy, the Group took an important step
in 2012 in embarking on its foray into the food business in China,
when it announced the construction of food processing plants in
Qinhuangdao and Qingdao. Qinhuangdao comprised of two phases
and the construction of the first phase was completed towards the end
of 2014; equipment installation, followed by trial production, began
in early 2015. The construction of the Qingdao food processing plant
was completed in mid-2015; equipment installation, followed by trial
production, began towards the end of the year. In 2015, feed business
represented nearly the entirety of China’s agri-food business, as food

business was not yet in full operation.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, the
country’s gross domestic product growth decelerated from 7.3% in
2014 to 6.9% in 2015. Also, swine prices in China remained low in
the first half of 2015. Although swine prices improved in the third
quarter of 2015, swine and sow inventories in the country remained
at low levels. Consequently, the Group’s China feed sales volume
decreased 3.4% to 5.50 million tons. Feed revenue declined by 11.8%
to US$3,032 million, which also reflected lower average selling prices
as a result of lower raw material costs. Gross profit margin for the
Group’s China agri-food business reached 18.7% in 2015 compared to
17.0% in 2014.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B EFER

Swine feed continued to be the largest component in the Group’s
China feed business segment, accounting for 47.2% of revenue from
this segment in 2015. Poultry feed, aqua feed, and other feed products
and premix contributed 30.4%, 9.5%, 7.3% and 5.6%, respectively.
The Group’s swine feed sales volume in 2015 decreased by 7.5% to
2.54 million tons, reflecting slower market conditions. In addition,
lower raw material prices brought down average selling prices, leading
to a 16.7% decline in swine feed revenue to US$1,431 million. Due to
increased sales to large-scale farms, poultry sales volume increased by
5.2% to 1.96 million tons, whilst revenue dropped by 4.6% to US$920
million. Revenue of aqua feed declined by 15.1% to US$287 million
and sales volume dropped by 12.8% to 0.40 million tons, mainly due

to unfavourable weather conditions.

Premix

»

7

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN
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Other Feed Products
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Aqua Feed
7K i

9.5%

71.3%
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Breakdown of China
Feed Revenue

o [ B R U B A

Poultry Feed
AR

30.4%

Agri-food Business in Vietham

According to the General Statistics Office of Vietnam, gross domestic
product grew by 6.7% in 2015, compared to 6.0% in 2014. Improved
economy and favourable swine prices provided a solid backdrop for
our agri-food business in Vietnam. However, similar to China, raw
material costs were generally lower than 2014, leading to reduced
average selling prices for our feed products. Overall, revenue of the
Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam increased by 1.1% to US$2,096
million. Feed business accounted for 39.7% of the Group’s Vietnam
revenue, while farm and food businesses combined accounted for the
remaining 60.3%. Overall gross profit margin of the Group’s agri-food
business in Vietnam increased from 13.4% in 2014 to 16.1% in 2015
as a result of stronger feed and farming business performance during
the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

B AR

A H

Vietnam - Revenue

M- A

Farm and Food

BIEMEm

Feed
At

800

o

200 400 600

Feed

In 2015, the Group’s feed sales volume growth remained solid in
Vietnam. A new livestock feed mill in Binh Dinh commenced
operations in 2015. Total feed sales volume in Vietnam was 1.62
million tons, an increase of 7.6% from 2014. As mentioned above,
lower raw material costs resulted in lower average feed selling prices.
Revenue of the Group’s feed business in Vietnam reduced by 4.1%
to US$832 million, of which swine, poultry, aqua and other feed
products accounted for 53.8%, 23.9%, 20.9% and 1.4%, respectively.

US$ million
1,000 1,200 1,400 HEET
£ 8
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Breakdown of Vietham
Feed Revenue
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

Farm and Food

Combined revenue of the Group’s farm and food businesses in
Vietnam was US$1,264 million, a 4.9% increase from the previous
year. Swine farming continues to be the major revenue contributor
of this business segment. While swine prices remained solid in 2015,
average prices have eased by approximately 6% when compared to
2014. Despite such reduced price levels in 2015, the Group’s farming

business reported sound results.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In 2015, the Group announced the proposed spin-off and separate
listing of its biochemical and industrial businesses under Chia Tai
Enterprises International Limited (“CTEI”). The listing of CTEI on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited by way
of introduction took place on 3 July 2015. The Company distributed
its entire interest in CTEI to its then existing shareholders through a
special interim dividend in specie. The results of the aforementioned
businesses were grouped and presented as discontinued operations.
As the spin-off was completed in the first half of 2015, there were
no contributions from discontinued operations in the second half of
2015. In 2015, profit attributable to shareholders from discontinued
operations was US$25 million. Going forward, the Group will focus

on the agri-food business.

OUTLOOK

Amidst headwinds under China’s economic “new norm” — a more
moderate period of economic growth — softness in the animal feed
industry is expected to linger into 2016. In Vietnam, with the gradual
reduction in swine prices, market participants hope that there would
not be major market disruptions, whether price-wise or volume-wise.

Opverall, the Group remains cautious about its performance in 2016.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total assets of US$3,127.9
million, representing a decrease of 0.8% as compared with US$3,154.0
million as at 31 December 2014.

Net debt (31 December 2015: US$559.1 million, 31 December 2014:
US$628.8 million) to equity ratio (defined as total borrowings minus
cash and deposits divided by total equity) was 0.42 as compared to
0.45 as at 31 December 2014.

The borrowings of the Group are denominated in U.S. dollars (“US$”)
(31 December 2015: US$587.5 million, 31 December 2014: US$565.5
million), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) (31 December 2015: US$376.4
million, 31 December 2014: US$472.4 million) and Renminbi
(“RMB”) (31 December 2015: US$139.2 million, 31 December 2014:
US$87.3 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current portion of long-term
bank borrowings amounted to US$138.1 million (31 December 2014:
US$63.0 million) and fixed interest rate borrowings amounted to
US$43.1 million (31 December 2014: US$7.7 million).

All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam are transacted
in RMB and VND respectively and export sales are transacted in
foreign currencies. Foreign currencies are required for purchase of
certain raw materials, equipment, etc. The Group monitors foreign
exchange movements and determines appropriate hedging activities
when necessary. During the year, the Group has entered into forward
exchange contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures of US$
denominated liabilities against RMB and VND. As at 31 December
2015, the aggregate notional principal amount of these outstanding
derivative financial instruments for US$ against RMB and VND were
US$102.5 million and US$56.7 million, respectively.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents of US$495.1
million as at 31 December 2015, an increase of US$39.5 million as
compared to US$455.6 million as at 31 December 2014.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, out of the total borrowings of US$1,103.1
million (31 December 2014: US$1,125.2 million) obtained by the
Group, US$54.3 million (31 December 2014: US$39.0 million) was
secured and accounted for 4.9% (31 December 2014: 3.5%) of the
total borrowings. Certain of the Group’s land lease prepayments with
an aggregate net book value of US$11.7 million (31 December 2014:
property, plant and equipment and land lease prepayments with an

aggregate net book value of US$7.2 million) were pledged as security.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group to
financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness of
independent third party customers of the Group. In the case of
financial guarantees provided which exceed the net asset value of the
relevant subsidiaries, our maximum contingent liabilities are limited
to the net asset value of these subsidiaries. The net asset value of
the relevant subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
US$91.0 million (31 December 2014: US$82.2 million) respectively.
The contingent liabilities of the Group in respect of such guarantees
as at 31 December 2015 were US$50.2 million (31 December 2014:
US$51.5 million).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS IN VIETNAM

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s biological assets amounted
to US$348.7 million (2014: US$343.1 million). The change in the
value of biological assets during the year ended 31 December 2015 of
US$5.6 million (2014: US$15.6 million) was mainly attributable to
(i) increase due to purchases/raising of biological assets of US$922.0
million (2014: US$1,124.7million), and (ii) decrease due to sales of
biological assets of US$837.7 million (2014: US$1,026.5 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
gains arising from net changes in fair value less costs of disposal of
biological assets of US$7.0 million (2014: US$9.3 million). The

decrease was mainly due to decrease in selling price of swine.

We have complied with relevant Vietnam laws and regulations and
have obtained the requisite licenses and permits for carrying out our
farming business in Vietnam from relevant regulatory authorities,
including the Investment Certificate issued by the Management Board

of Dong Nai Industrial Zone.
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EEENRR DN

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant investments held nor material acquisitions or disposals

during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed around 32,000 staff
(including 30,000 staff from subsidiaries, 1,000 staff from joint
ventures and 1,000 staff from associates) in the PRC, Vietnam
and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, experience and prevailing market rates while
performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include, for example, medical insurance and

training.
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Corporate Governance Report

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance, the principles
of which are to uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
accountability and integrity in all aspects of business and to ensure
that affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company complied with all code provisions set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) — Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Corporate
Governance Code”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

THE BOARD

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) comprises fifteen directors including
eight executive directors, two non-executive directors and five

independent non-executive directors.

The biographical details of all directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) and the relationships among Directors and
senior management are set out in the Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management section on pages 33 to 38 of

the annual report.
(b) Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is Chairman of the Group. Mr.
Bai Shanlin and Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg are the chief
executive officers of China area and Vietnam area respectively.
The roles of chairman and chief executive are distinct and
separate with a clear division of responsibilities. The Chairman
is responsible for overseeing the function of the Board while
the chief executive officers are responsible for managing the

Group’s business.
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TEERRE

(c) Roles and Responsibilities
The Board, through its committees, leads and provides
direction for management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation by management, reviews the
operational and financial performance, provides oversight to
ensure that a sound system of internal control is in place, and
performs corporate governance functions.
Management is responsible for the execution of business
strategies and dealing with day-to-day operations.
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for its Directors and officers.

(d) Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and the number of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent and meet the independence

guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

A

(c)

(d)
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule —
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), as the code of conduct for dealings
in the Company’s securities by its Directors. Having made
specific enquiries with each of the Directors, all of them have
confirmed that they complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations are disclosed in the Report of the Directors

section of the annual report on pages 39 to 66.
Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of his or her responsibilities as
a director of the Company and of the business activities and
development of the Company. During the year, the Company
provided trainings on Hong Kong Listing Rules and monthly
updates on the Company’s financial performance and financial
position to all Directors.

General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company held
one annual general meeting, two shareholders’ meetings,
five Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, one
Remuneration Committee meeting and one Nomination

Committee meeting.

The Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and
attention to performing their duties and responsibilities.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Directors can
attend Board meetings in person or by means of a conference

telephone or similar communications equipment.
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(9)

¥ B B & R 2

General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board (g)
Committee Meetings (continued)

The following meeting attendance record of each Director in

2015 demonstrates the Directors’ strong commitment to the

Company.

B

No. of meetings attended/held

BRRAE EFSSRESTETNEESEE
& (%)

IR 7 & T B R — T4 Wk R R
B> BURHE F B AN F A RS -

R/ R TR
Annual Special
General Class General Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
Meeting Meeting Meeting Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
ek LYl Rk
WERE  BAEKE  HHKE 8 FHZAE  HMZHE ROZHE
Executive Directors AlEF
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont AR K& 11 1 11 505 - - 11
Mr. Adirek Sripratak Rk ol {] I 565 - it il
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi BHENEE
(resigned on 3 July 2015) (REZ-TELAZHERE) Vil 1 11 0 - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont E RN L 11 I 11 35 - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin A& it I In 56 - - -
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt JiumjaiswanglergJi 11 /1 11 55 - - -
Mr. Anan Athigapanich HERLE il il 11 55 - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont EEAW X 01 Il 11 35 - - -
Mss. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee WatcharanananZ £ 01 /1 11 45 - - -
Non-executive Directors FAGEF
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont AR il 11 il 505 0 - -
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe R A
(appointed on 15 October 2015) (RZF-AEFATAHER) - - - 33 - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BudalEd
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew i 1l 1l 11 565 0 I 11
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isresft & 11 11 11 45 1 11 I
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul % 4 11 Wil 01 45 W 01 11
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgamve Ji 4 11 11 11 45 - - -
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon% 1: 11 /1 11 55 - - -
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Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in

annual and interim reports.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group and of the financial
performance and cash flows of the Group in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report section on pages 67

and 68 of the annual report.

The Board considers that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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TEERRE
BOARD DELEGATION EEERE

The Board has delegated authority to three committees which operate & I35 € % T 2 HE = il 2% B € $2¢ JE 5 o W) i B o g 4
under defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of each /F > FEXEFMRWERBECIHMNARA G HYE - ZEG
committee are available on the Company’s website. The meeting  J{ B W)€ & H 5 &L SRl 5624 H -

attendance record of the committee members is set out on page 24.
(i) Nomination Committee (i)

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman) and
Mr. Adirek Sripratak, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew, Mr. Sombat
Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul.

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board
with the primary responsibility to formulate and implement
the nomination policy and Board diversity policy, make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individual(s) nominated for directorship and assess the

independence of independent non-executive Directors.

According to the Board diversity policy of the Company,
selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity
considerations, which include but are not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Company’s corporate strategy and organisational needs are
also taken into account. Board appointments are based on

meritocracy.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a successive term of one year and,
together with all other Directors, are subject to retirement by
rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws. According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company no less than one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.
The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year

to consider the nomination of Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe as a non-

executive director of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung,
Andrew (Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda

Thanitcul and an executive Director, Mr. Adirek Sripratak.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board
with the primary responsibility to oversee the establishment
and operation of formal and transparent procedures for
developing the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management as well as to oversee and administrate the

Company’s share option scheme.

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who are critical to the success
of the Company and enhance the value of the Company to
shareholders. The objective of the Company’s remuneration
policy is to maintain fair and competitive packages based on

business requirements and industry practices.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
year to determine remuneration packages for the Directors and

senior management.

Details of emoluments of each Director are set out in note
10 to the financial statements of the annual report. The
remuneration of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:

»
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¥yMEES

FMEZEB M EAB IR ERNE
A4 () ~ Sombat Deo-isresds 242 Ml
Sakda Thanitcul 564 1 47 2 28 35 06 6 4k
Ff #HL B o

FMZEGHERGRE > ETRAFTERR
T OLTE S R AR BN B B AR A g R
O IE A H R W) B iR e 36 7 DAL >
AR 585 G R A8 BRAC O ) 1 P L )

W % B 3B H A R AR 2 R e A R
51~ 460 B B YO e B R B o S0 A M A 28
Fy A LR AR B R 8O R A A BB
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B P 5 AT S > DRAF 2 F T 38 ) Y
T 5 7 -

FMZERTRENAM T KE® > DHE
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(HK$) Number of Senior Management
(#C) RARAEHANBANY
0 to 3,000,000 0%3,000,000 1
3,000,001 to 6,000,000 3,000,001 %6,000,000 1
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(iii)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew
(Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

and a non-executive Director, Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board with the
primary responsibility to communicate with auditors with
regards to its duties relating to financial and other reporting,
internal control, external and internal audits, review financial
information as well as to oversee the financial reporting system

and risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year. The

following is a summary of work of the Audit Committee in

2015:

o reviewed the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2014

with recommendation to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditors to the
Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December

2014;

o reviewed compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code;

o reviewed internal audit reports of the Group;

o reviewed the interim report and the interim results

announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2015

with recommendation to the Board for approval;
o reviewed the report from the external auditors to the
Audit Committee for the six months ended 30 June

2015;

° reviewed the audit and non-audit services undertaken

by the external auditors; and

. reviewed the effectiveness of internal control.

B AR

A

(iii)
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(iii)  Audit Committee (continued) (i) BREEE(H)
Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed REEZERZE - BEBEREERMABRE_F
the annual report and the annual results announcement for the — TR+ H =4 B R AR E AR R
year ended 31 December 2015 with recommendation to the NG TR EEGEE -
Board for approval.
The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, FBNTE G A BINEZ A2 AT - HE R
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and BE G I 75 28 A1 W A Y v T <6 BRLIP Y AR o
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external F R ANEAZ BT R B > BWEREEE
auditors. To ensure external auditors’ independence, the B vl A AR T Fl A T A 8 BT AT Y TR A% M R
Audit Committee reviewed the audit and non-audit services R -
undertaken by the external auditors during the year.
During the year under review, the remuneration paid by the T T AR B Y A A ) S A A B A B A T
Group to the external auditors is set out below: LW .
2015
ZE A
(US$’000)
Category of Services IR 785 28 51 (FoL T T)
Audit services TR 987
Reporting accountants services F R R 673
Review engagements and agreed-upon procedures o B W BT W B R T 298
1,958
Taxation services B IR 217
Advisory services ok ) R 5 144
Total Fok] 2,129
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s internal control,

assessment and management of risks.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and particularly the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their

training programs and budget.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is kept regularly appraised

of significant risks that may have impact on the Group’s performance.

The Board considers that the Group’s internal control is adequate and

effective.

For the handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information and, where required, communicate with the

Group’s stakeholders in a timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 48, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting, and special
general meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided
by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as the same may from time
to time be amended) (the “Companies Act”), and, in default, may be

convened by the requisitionists.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, at the date of the deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company can submit a written requisition to the Board for convening

a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of
the Company.

A H

RWEEZEREREE

AT TR A R B A A o

T M R AR I PR AR B
U FE 75 8 AR AR VI A 7 Gt % S B I Sk i U T Y
U B TR R AR R A A 5 DL R L I ERR
HARBARL -

BT % T A A T E S AR SR R
NN NI

R R AR ) A A T R T AR e

A7 B L B B B AR R > A W B AT B
B BN R > (5 A P B A WP BE BRI B R WA
LG G ] 45 4y 5 0 o

% 3R FE A

BREBHERREGHAEHEF

AR B AR 2 B AN R S 4000 > S5 o w) A LR 0 A I
A PR AR R o MR T R (198142 Rl 3 ) (1]
PREEAR RHAERT) ([ A W3] BUE » AR ol 2ok A
B I SRR T KT o Sl A SRS T B R\
AT H BH B R A Bl KT -

MR A Al > IR 2 HHI R 5 A A A R AR 24 7 U
JBA (B RETRAAS 3 R BEROR &1 B85 + 02— ik
> R [ o R A2 I BEOR > A PR B R R
@ o

HH RS HGEWNRGZH B > W HEERAL
BE > S sE WA T RE I R o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

-2 -1 F F &



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders
(continued)

If the Board fails to proceed duly to convene a meeting within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the date of the written requisition.

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10

business days) shall be given to all members of the Company.
To Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders of the Company can make enquiry to the Board by
writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.
To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of members of the
Company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates or not less than
one hundred members can submit a written requisition to the Board

for putting forward proposals at general meetings.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting

and the requisition must be signed by the requisitionists.

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company by not less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or by not less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. The
requisitionists must deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution

and circulating the statement to all members of the Company.
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To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Members of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) who
are qualified to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
can submit a written requisition to the Board to propose a person for

election as a director of the Company at such general meetings.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited,
with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his willingness to
be elected and the candidate’s information required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and a written consent from
the nominated candidate to the publication of his personal data, at
the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than seven

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as a

director are available on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to the
communication with shareholders, with the objective of maintaining
full, open and timely communication with shareholders. Information
would be communicated to shareholder in a timely manner, mainly
through the publication of the Company’s corporate communications
including interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars .

These publications are available on the Company’s website.

During the year, the bye-laws of the Company were amended. The
updated constitutional documents of the Company are available on

the Company’s website.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mzr. Dhanin Chearavanont, aged 76, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 1988. He was appointed as Executive Chairman
of the Company in 2005 and this title was subsequently changed
to Chairman with effect from 28 February 2010. Mr. Chearavanont
was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Charoen Pokphand Group. He
has extensive experience in establishing and operating businesses in
Asia, Europe and USA. He also holds directorship in a subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), True Corporation
Public Company Limited (“True Corporation”) and CP ALL Public
Company Limited (“CP ALL”)(companies listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand).

Mr. Adirek Sripratak, aged 69, has been a Vice Chairman of the
Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company since 1 April 2012. Mr.
Sripratak has been President and Chief Executive Office of CPF
since 2003. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of CPF and
of the Company. Mr. Sripratak is also a director of CP ALL and
Siam Makro Public Company Limited (“Siam Makro”), companies
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. He has more than 40
years’ experience in the agri-business and food industry. His valuable
experience is widely recognised and has led to his appointment to a
number of public offices and positions. His public service experience
include serving as a Senator of the National Assembly of Thailand,
the Honorary Chairman of the Thai Broiler Processing Exporters
Association and an Honorary Director of Chiang Mai University
Council. He received Honorary Doctorates from a number of
universities in Thailand including Maejo University, Mae Fah Luang
University, Rajamangala University of Technology Suvarnabhumi,
Chiang Mai University, Rajamangala University of Technology Isan

and Kasetsart University.
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Mr.
Director of the Company since 2005 and a Vice Chairman since
28 February 2010. He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
the College of Business and Public Administration of New York

Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 51, has been an Executive

University, USA and has extensive multinational investment
and management experience in various industries. He also holds
directorship in a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is
also the chairman of C.P. Lotus Corporation (“C.P. Lotus”), Chia Tai
Enterprises International Limited (“CTEI”) (both being companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and True Visions
Public Company Limited (“True Visions”). He is also a director of
True Corporation, CP ALL and Siam Makro and a non-executive
director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Mr. Bai Shanlin, aged 56, was appointed as Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer (Feed Division) of the Company on
28 February 2010. His title was changed to Chief Executive Officer
(China Area) with effect from 1 April 2012. Mr. Bai obtained a
Professional Diploma in Animal Science, Gansu College of Animal
Husbandry, the Governmental Exchange Specialist in Agricultural
Management from the Australian Ministry of Foreign Affairs and
a Specialist Certificate in Livestock Management in the PRC. He
joined the Charoen Pokphand Group in 1991. He is currently the
senior vice chairman of the Group’s agri-food business, responsible for
the operation of our agri-food business in Xinjiang, Ningxia, Gansu,
Shaanxi, Shanxi, Neimenggu, Heilongjiang, Jilin and Liaoning. Mr.
Bai has extensive experience in the management of agri-business
operations. He is also a part time professor honored by Agricultural
University of Gansu and People’s University of China. Mr. Bai also

holds directorships in several companies within the Group.

Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, aged 63, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 12 October 2011 and Chief Executive
Officer (Vietnam Area) of the Company since 1 April 2012. Mr.
Jiumjaiswanglerg has over 30 years of experience in animal feed
sales and breeding, having been with the Charoen Pokphand Group
since 1 February 1980. Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg also holds directorships
in several companies within the Group. He graduated from the
University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce with a bachelor’s

degree in Economics.
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Mr. Anan Athigapanich, aged 64, has been an Executive Director
since 28 February 2010. Mr. Athigapanich obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Agriculture from Sukhothai Thammathirat University,
Thailand and received his Doctor of Agriculture Management degree
from Maejo University, Thailand. He joined the Charoen Pokphand
Group in 1977. He is currently the senior vice chairman of the
Group’s agri-food business, responsible for the operation of agri-food
business in Guangxi. Mr. Athigapanich has extensive experience
in the management of agri-business operations. He also holds

directorships in several companies within the Group.

Mr.
Director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Chearavanont obtained a

Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 48, has been an Executive

Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Boston
University in USA, majoring in Financial Management. He has
extensive experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting
industries. Mr. Chearavanont is also an executive director of C.P.
Lotus and a director of Siam Makro. He is also a director, president
and chief executive officer of True Corporation and a director and
chief executive officer of True Visions and True Move Company
Limited.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, aged 67, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 1 April 2012. Mrs. Watcharananan
has been an Executive Director of CPF since 2000 and is also a
director of several subsidiaries of CPF. She graduated from Thammasat

University, Thailand with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.

Mzr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 57, was appointed an executive director
and Executive Vice Chairman of the Company in 2005, and was
re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company and
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on
9 August 2010. Mr. Jiaravanont obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
He has extensive experience in investment, finance, banking and
strategic business development in Asia and USA. Mr. Jiaravanont is
also an executive director of C.P. Lotus. He is currently the senior
executive assistant to the chairman-finance of the Charoen Pokphand
Group and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.
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Mzr. Yoichi Ikezoe, aged 56, was appointed as Non-executive Director
of the Company on 15 October 2015. Mr. lkezoe is also a non-
executive director of CTEI. Mr. Ikezoe is currently Executive Officer,
Vice President of East Asia Bloc (South China), Senior Officer
of ASEAN and South West Asia Bloc of ITOCHU Corporation
(a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange) and Managing
Director of ITOCHU Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Ikezoe has been
working for ITOCHU Corporation (formerly known as C.ITOH &
Co., Ltd.) since 1983. He received his Bachelor of Arts degree from
the Faculty of Foreign Studies, Osaka University in Japan in 1983.

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew, aged 74, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company since 2005. He has been a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since 2006. Mr. Ma was also appointed
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma is
a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited (formerly known
as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited) and is presently a director of
Mayee Management Limited. He has more than 30 years’ experience
in the fields of accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Ma received his
bachelor’s degree in Economics from the London School of Economics
and Political Science (University of London) in the United Kingdom.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. In addition to his directorship in
the Company, Mr. Ma is also an independent non-executive director
of Asia Financial Holdings Limited, China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited and Asiaray Media
Group Limited (companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange). Mr. Ma was previously an independent non-executive
director of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited, Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited and Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited
(companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; with
Asia Citrus Holdings Limited also listed on the AIM Board of The
London Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Sombat Deo-isres, aged 74, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2005. He has been a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since 30 September 2005 and was also appointed a
member of the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Deo-isres
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Laws from Thammasat University and
a master’s degree in Laws from Chulalongkorn University, Thailand.
He held various senior positions with the Thai judiciary. He a former
Senior Judge of the Supreme Court of Thailand and is currently
a member of the academic justice committee of the President of

Supreme Court.

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul, aged 57, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company since 2008. Mr. Thanitcul
was also appointed a member of the Nomination Committee on
1 April 2012. Mr. Thanitcul holds a Bachelor of Law degree from
Chulalongkorn University, Thailand, a Master of Law degree from
Kyoto University, Japan and University of Washington, USA and a
Doctor of Law degree from Kyoto University, Japan and University
of Washington, USA. He has extensive experience in the legal field
and specialises in competition law and the World Trade Organization
Agreements. Mr. Thanitcul was a former Dean and is presently a

Professor of Law at the Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn University,
Bangkok, Thailand.

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012. Mr.
Vittavasgarnvej obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and
a master’s degree in Political Science from Thammasat University,
Thailand. Currently, Mr. Vittavasgarnvej is the chairman of Sahamitr
Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd. and independent director and
the chairman of the audit committee of Ekarat Engineering Public
Company Limited, companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Thailand. He was the Director General of The Treasury Department,
Ministry of Finance, Thailand from 2010 to 2011 and the Director
General of The Revenue Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand
from 2008 to 2010.

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, aged 63, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 25 September 2013.
Mrs. Vimooktayon held various government positions in Thailand
since 1997 and retired from the position of Permanent Secretary of
the Ministry of Commerce in September 2013. Mrs. Vimooktayon
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration (Accounting)
from Thammasat University, Thailand, a bachelor’s degree in Laws
from Sukhothai Thammathirat University, Thailand and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from National Institute of

Development Administration, Thailand.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBAEEESE

Mr. Chang Bo Wai, Bobby, aged 46, has been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 2011. Mr. Chang obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree in Engineering from Princeton University and a
Master of Science degree from Stanford University in the USA. He
has extensive international experience in management consulting,

investment as well as business and financial management.

Mr. Lau Wing Yuen, aged 50, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lau joined the Company in
2011. He holds a bachelor’s degree of Social Sciences from University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, he worked for an
international accounting firm and several listed companies in Hong

Kong.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont and uncle of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont are
brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Adirek
Sripratak is the elder brother of Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan. Save
as disclosed above, there is no other material relationship among

members of the Board and senior management.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. In PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the manufacture
and sale of animal feed products and (ii) the manufacture and sale
of value-added, processed food products. In Vietnam, the Company’s
subsidiary is principally engaged in (i) the manufacture and sale of
animal feed products, (ii) breeding, farming and sale of livestock and
aquatic animals, and (iii) the manufacture and sale of value-added,

processed food products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review with financial key performance indicators analysis
and future development of the Group are set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 13 to 20 of the annual

report.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, a discussion
on the environmental policies and performance and the key

relationships with stakeholders are set out below.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are discussed below.
Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set out in

note 44 to the financial statements of the annual report.
Volatility of Commodity Prices

The results of the Group may be affected by price volatility of the
main ingredients used in the production of animal feed, including
corn, soybean meal, wheat and fish meal. These raw materials are
basic agricultural commodities and their prices are affected by global

commodities prices as well as domestic demand and supply.

Further, prices of farm products also depend on the demand and
supply as well as the economic condition and consumer purchasing
power and confidence. When supply exceeds demand, there will be a
negative impact on the selling price of the farm products of the Group

and in turn on the performance of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Products Quality and Safety

Products quality and safety are the most important issues in agri-food
business. The Group is committed to producing high quality and safe
products from its manufacturing process. Failure to maintain quality
control during the manufacturing process may lead to poor quality
products and result in complaints, claims for compensation or product
recalls, penalties and damage to the Group’s reputation.

Customer Demand and Preference

Customer demand for particular animals may change due to loss of
consumer confidence as a result of epidemic outbreak or a change in
consumer preference and taste. Also, as consumer’s purchasing power
increases, preference may also shift from low cost protein sources to
higher cost protein sources. A decline in demand for any particular
kind of animals will directly affect the sales of that animal, and
indirectly affect the demand for the associated feed products, as well
as the demand for the food products made from that animal.

Animal Disease Outbreaks

Any epidemic outbreaks in livestock or aquatic animals would affect
the selling prices of our products and the results of the Group.

Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in mainland China
and Vietnam. All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam are
transacted in RMB and VND respectively, whereas export sales and
import of raw materials and machinery and equipment are transacted
in foreign currencies. Also, certain subsidiaries in mainland China
and Vietnam have borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
Depreciation of RMB/VND against foreign currencies would result
in loss on translation of these foreign currencies denominated
borrowings and increased costs of imported raw materials and plant
and machinery. Further, depreciation of RMB/VND against US$
would also adversely affect the reported results of the Group, as the
results of the subsidiaries in mainland China and Vietnam would be
reduced on translation from RMB/VND to US$, which is the Group’s
presentation currency.

Interest Rate Fluctuation

The Group had total borrowings of US$1,103.1 million as at 31
December 2015 and 96% of the total borrowings were at floating rate
which subjects the Group to interest rate risk.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Compliance Risks

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in mainland China
and Vietnam and are subject to different industry standards and
government regulations in different jurisdictions. These standards
and regulations include food hygiene and safety related laws and
regulations, environmental protection regulations, employment

regulations and relevant tax laws, etc.
Environmental Policies and Performance

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation and minimizing our impact on the environment. As
a testament of our commitment to environmental protection, our
major operations in China and Vietnam are certified with ISO 14001
Environmental Management System, which reflects our stringent
environmental policies and objectives. We have adopted strict
measures to control the discharge of wastes and pollutants. We have
also implemented an array of energy saving measures to reduce costs

and energy consumption in our production processes.

We also require our suppliers to operate in strict compliance with the
relevant environmental regulations and rules. Their environmental

performances are evaluated on a regular basis.
Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Employees

The Group regards its employees as one of its most important
assets. We strive to provide motivation and awards to employees
who demonstrate outstanding performance. Our employee benefits
include medical insurance, annual leaves, training, and discretionary
performance bonus. We also ensure our recruitment policies are in
compliance with the national regulations on equal opportunity and

anti-discrimination.

We also place great importance in establishing a safe and healthy
work environment for our employees. In our operations, safety
training and annual medical checkup are offered to production staff.
We have also obtained OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management Systems certification in our major operations,
which serves to demonstrate our capability in managing the potential

occupational hazard in workplaces.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Customers

Customers’ satisfaction with products and services is key to our
success. The Group has set out rigorous procedures to ensure that
safe, nutritious, environmentally friendly products are produced and
delivered to our customers. To monitor our customers’ satisfaction,
the Group has dedicated teams to reach out to customers to listen
to their needs and opinions. With the continuous feedback of our
customers, we will continue to improve our product and service

qualities.
Suppliers

We carefully choose suppliers that share the same commitment
to product quality and work ethics with us. In our procurement
process, we select our suppliers based on a number of assessment
criteria, including their service quality, environmental and social
performances, and ability to supply high-quality products on a
consistent basis. We also perform on-site inspections of suppliers as

and when necessary to ensure all our requirements are met.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2015 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements on pages 69 to 214 of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HK$0.017 per share (equivalent to
approximately US 0.219 cents) was declared and paid during the year
under review (2014: HK$0.017 per share (equivalent to approximately
US 0.219 cents)).

The Board has proposed the payment of a final dividend for 2015
of HK$0.021 (equivalent to approximately US 0.271 cents) (2014:
HK$0.022 (equivalent to approximately US 0.284 cents)) per share,
totaling approximately US$68,644,000 (2014: US$71,913,000)
(based on the total number of issued ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares as at the date of this report). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 7 June 2016, the final dividend will
be paid on or about 30 June 2016 to the ordinary share holders and
convertible preference share holders whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on 17 June 2016.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 6
June 2016 to 7 June 2016, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 3 June 2016.

In addition, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 16 June 2016 to 17 June 2016, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend for 2015, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 15 June 2016.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of the Group for the
five years ended 31 December 2015, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, are as follows:
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2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
CEGE CR-WE SF-SE SR-SF SF ok
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FrxFrx Frfirx Frfr FErFor - FrFoo
Total assets A 3,127,863 3,154,018 2,759,488 2,116,880 1,968,271
Total liabilities FEREE 1,811,981 1,767,610 1,513,173 1,024,325 982,811
Non-controlling interests I ¥ ) e B £ 229,970 207,780 177,193 173,896 156,948
Equity attributable to AR ) 1 R A
shareholders of the Company  #E% 1,085,912 1,178,628 1,069,122 918,659 828,512
3,127,863 3,154,018 2,759,488 2,116,880 1,968,271
Profit for the year AR ) A
attributable to shareholders i A1)
of the Company 267,575 251,425 186,211 204,154 173,199
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 15

to the financial statements of the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 16 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 34 to the financial

statements of the annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2015.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 45 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the annual

report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to US$1,568,637,000 (2014:
US$1,678,583,000) which included the proposed final dividend for
the year 2015 of US$68,644,000 (2014: US$71,913,000). Details of
the proposed final dividend are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements of the annual report.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other
purposes amounting to US$1,496,000 (2014: US$1,962,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue and purchases attributable to the five largest customers
and the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s revenue and purchases for the year ended 31 December 2015,

respectively.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr.
Mr.

Dhanin Chearavanont

Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi (resigned on 3 July 2015)
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont

. Bai Shanlin

. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg

. Anan Athigapanich

. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe (appointed on 15 October 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a successive term of one year and, together with all
other Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation, but may offer
themselves for re-election at annual general meetings in accordance

with the Company’s bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 77, Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe, who
was appointed as non-executive Director by the Board on 15 October
2015, will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 82, Mr. Bai Shanlin, Mr.
Suphachai Chearavanont, Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, Mr. Sombat Deo-
isres and Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent and meet the

independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and the related party disclosures as disclosed in note 42 to the
financial statements of the annual report, no Director had material
interests, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
and contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2015.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and the related party disclosures as disclosed in note 42 to the
financial statements of the annual report, there had been no contract
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December

2015.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on
page 51 of the annual report, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any

other body corporate.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s

securities.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code are set out below:

(a) Directors’ interests in shares of the Company (Long

A H

EERITETBRAEREARQATARE AR
FENROREBRONESZR AR

PER-RAET A= H o MRS S R
SE3520 BLAE B AR 2 v i AE 2 % i B RT Bk >
AL A S A 1k A 2 ) R T A2 T L A > A%
PR B EATBON B H A A4 A B HE A 56 35 1 0 By
B R Bl JBe A v i 2 R (3% o7 M 0 & e ol ([
ZE W B ARG ) SEXVER BT R 2 H) BT -

(a) EBRAQITNER (FR)

Positions)
Approximate
percentage of
the issued ordinary
Number of ordinary share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
Ao W B BAT
Jt 5 ¥ 58 ik W 3 JE iz A
HRAW 55 Jiz 4y Bt H W& H bk
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 37,600,000 0.16%
A R At A HaEA A
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 21,000,000 0.09%
i R A A HEHEA A
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Report of the Directors

EEHREE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERTETBRABRELRARAEBEE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EER G REERGERSRKXE (&)

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b) Directors’ interests in shares of associated (b) EZRAQXIAMNEBEIEMNER (FB)

corporations of the Company (Long Positions)

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited FALEEBEERA A

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share

capital of the

Number of associated

Name of director Capacity shares held corporation

A1k R T8 2

BT IR AR

HELW 54 Jt #5 I 4y 8 H RN e

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 376,000 0.16%
i B R 4 A HEHEA A

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 210,000 0.09%
A e AR e Az HEHEA A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the & EtrEHEN > R _F—HET+-H=+—H >
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests #1858 2 W B & B 3526 M 2 AR A R FE 2 &
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the  FCFEYRC Sk » MR $8 458w < A 1) A 2 =) B B A2 Pl
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning  #¥ i BN > I LM EF R B EITBABERL
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to &) B A5 2 [ (3538 52 W BRI SEXVER Fr L2 &)
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as Y B4y S 4 B B4 v BB AR T HE S Bk AT -
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO:

A H

FTERREBBEZRBEROARERT
REEGRZIAXBHAL

REF-RETFZH =10 RS R
SE336M BLAE B AR 2 ] Ml A7 2 8 T i A AT Bk o T At
At GEARAF M E R BETBAE) RAA T
Jie 53 A T B A AT ) B 2 R IR TN T

Approximate
percentage of the

issued ordinary

Number of shares and share capital of
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity underlying shares held the Company
A It i
& 3 it
F5 4 I B A B i A HE
i 4 1 M 545 1 4 8 H [ER/L5
(Note 1)
(M)
Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (2) Interest of controlled corporation 12,774,814,845 (L) 53.1 (L)
el o R 2
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company (2) Beneficial owner and interest of 12,774,814,845 (L) 53.1 (L)
Limited controlled corporation
BRI N B A i R 5
ITOCHU Corporation (3) Beneficial owner 6,017,959,308 (L) 25.0 (L)
PTG SR Al g ZDN
Notes: P 5E
(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position. (1) [LIRFEFE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) has a long
position in 12,774,814,845 shares of the Company which includes
(i) 1,261,077,748 shares of the Company beneficially owned by CPF
and (ii) 11,513,737,097 shares of the Company beneficially owned by
CPF’s wholly-owned subsidiary, CPF Investment Limited (“CPFI”).
As CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU Corporation (“I'TOCHU”) entered into
an agreement in relation to the sale of an aggregate of 6,017,959,308
ordinary shares of the Company to ITOCHU in July 2014, as a
result of which, and for the purpose of Sections 317(1)(a) and 318
of the SFO, CPF was taken to be interested in the shares owned by
ITOCHU. As such, CPF has a long position in 18,792,774,153 shares
of the Company in aggregate. Charoen Pokphand Group Company
Limited has also declared interest in these shares by virtue of its
shareholding in CPF.

3) ITOCHU beneficially owned 6,017,959,308 shares of the Company.
As CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU entered into an agreement in relation
to the sale of an aggregate of 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the
Company to ITOCHU in July 2014, as a result of which, and or the
purpose of Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, ITOCHU was
taken to be interested in the shares owned by CPF. As such, ITOCHU
has a long position in 18,792,774,153 shares of the Company in

aggregate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no person (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting held on 22 June 2012. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date unless

otherwise cancelled or amended.

The total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, being 1,698,783,571 ordinary shares of the Company,
based on 16,987,835,710 issued ordinary shares of the Company as
at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme in 2012. Such
maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of all the
share options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
now represents 7% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as at
the date of this report.

No share option was granted during the year under review. As at 31

December 2015, the Company had no outstanding share options.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 35 to

the financial statements of the annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered into
the following connected transactions that were subject to the Listing

Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in the annual report.
Construction Project Management Contracts

Prior to the reporting period, on 1 December 2014, C.P. Food
(Xiangyang) Co., Ltd. (“CP Food Xiangyang”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, had entered into the construction
project management contract (the “Xiangyang Construction Project
Management Contract”) to appoint Chia Tai Handing Engineering
Management Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Handing”), an indirect subsidiary of
Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (“CPG”) as construction
project manager for the construction works, equipment installation
and fitting out at the plant of CP Food Xiangyang in the PRC.

A H

BB 8

A ) S AR A R ) T PR ) > TR
2R BRI & AR N A 2 H B AT R P AR R
WK EIRAN o BRI 5 AT HOH BB 7T 41 > i B vt
#H W% H R AR

L 4% B W T B 92 o 2 O R A R AT A R T T
B AT 2 A 0 H] W B Iy AR B R A5 R AN
Joe B ST E B OAR 2 R OB AT 2 B 4 10% >
H[11,698,783,571 Bt A 22 ) 5 38 JBe > 5% Je 85 7% AR B8
CE-CHERAEREGTSEAARARCOEISZ
16,987,835, 710/ & M Bt T 55 o A AR EFHH Y > 1
52 I PR R A2 e O e A R AT A BT T AT
A ) e 2 B W B BB AR A W BT
T8 BN 7% o

QEL ERNERCE A RERUE e I S S S
TZA=dH o AR TR W ARATE -

S P AR 3 P LAt SRR 4 0 P B S B 35

BERXS
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TP AF- A 1 8 o
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o Y e R IE AR o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Construction Project Management Contracts (continued)

On 18 February 2015, C.P. Food (Zhanjiang) Co., Ltd. (“CP
Food Zhanjiang”) and C.P. Food (Xuzhou) Co., Ltd. (“CP Food
Xuzhou”), both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
respectively entered into construction project management contracts
to appoint Chia Tai Handing as construction project manager for
the construction works, equipment installation and fitting out at the
respective plants of CP Food Zhanjiang and CP Food Xuzhou in the
PRC.

On 18 February 2015, Jilin Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Chia Tai
Food”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, also
entered into a construction project management contract to appoint
Chia Tai Land Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Land”), an indirect subsidiary
of CPG, as construction project manager for the construction works,
equipment installation and fitting out at the plant of Jilin Chia Tai
Food in the PRC (the above four construction project management
contracts collectively defined as the “Construction Project

Management Contracts”).

The project management fees payable to Chia Tai Handing by CP
Food Xiangyang, CP Food Zhanjiang and CP Food Xuzhou under
the respective contracts were estimated to be about RMB13,500,000
(approximately US$2.2 million), RMB3,600,000 (approximately
US$0.6 million) and RMB12,000,000 (approximately US$ 1.9
million), respectively. The project management fee payable to
Chai Tai Land by Jilin Chia Tai Food was estimated to be about
RMB26,370,000 (approximately US$4.2 million).

Chia Tai Handing and Chia Tai Land were indirect subsidiaries of
CPG and were treated as connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under each
of the Construction Project Management Contracts was treated as if it

was a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Based on the relevant percentage ratios, the transaction under the
Xiangyang Construction Project Management Contract, on a stand-
alone basis, was below the de minimis thresholds and thus was fully

exempt from shareholders’ approval and all disclosure requirements.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Construction Project Management Contracts (continued)

Since three of the Construction Project Management Contracts
were entered into by the Group with the same party and the other
construction project management contract was entered into by
the Group with another party which was connected or otherwise
associated with that party, the Company had aggregated these

transactions and treated them as if they were one transaction.

Based on the relevant percentage ratios on an aggregated basis, the
transactions under the Construction Project Management Contracts
were subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but
were exempt from the circular (including independent financial
advice) and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.

The Company announced the connected transactions in relation
to the Construction Project Management Contracts on 18 February

2015.

Nantong and Ningbo Construction Project Management
Contracts

On 24 August 2015, C.P. Food (Nantong) Co., Ltd. (“CP Food
Nantong”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a construction project management contract to appoint Chia
Tai Land as construction project manager for the construction
works, equipment installation and fitting out at the plant of CP
Food Nantong in the PRC (the “Nantong Construction Project

Management Contract”).

On 24 August 2015, C.P. Food Enterprise (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. (“CP
Food Ningbo”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a construction project management contract to appoint Di
Peng Construction Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“Di Peng”) as
construction project manager for the construction works, equipment
installation and fitting out at the plant of CP Food Ningbo in the
PRC (the “Ningbo Construction Project Management Contract”)(the
above two construction project management contracts collectively
defined as the “Nantong and Ningbo Construction Project

Management Contracts”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Nantong and Ningbo Construction Project Management
Contracts (continued)

The project management fees payable to Chia Tai Land by CP Food
Nantong and to Di Peng by CP Food Ningbo under the respective
contracts were estimated to be about RMB3,600,000 (approximately
US$0.56 million) and RMB11,264,000 (approximately US$1.75

million) respectively.

Chia Tai Land was an indirect subsidiary of CPG and was treated
as connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under the Nantong
Construction Project Management Contract was treated as if it was a

connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Di Peng was indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont
(chairman and executive director of the Company) and his family
members including Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (vice chairman and
executive director of the Company) and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
(executive director of the Company). Di Peng was therefore a
connected person of the Company and the transaction contemplated
under the Ningbo Construction Project Management Contract was a

connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Since the earlier Construction Project Management Contracts and the
Nantong and Ningbo Construction Project Management Contracts
were entered into by the Group with connected persons under the
Listing Rules and their subject matters were similar, the Company
aggregated these transactions and treated them as if they were one

transaction.

Based on the relevant percentage ratios on an aggregated basis,
the transactions under the Nantong and Ningbo Construction
Project Management Contracts were subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but were exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company announced the connected transactions in relation
to the Nantong and Ningbo Construction Project Management
Contracts on 24 August 2015.
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EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions that were subject to the

Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report.

Supply

Prior to the reporting period, on 14 November 2013, the Company
had entered into a supply agreement with High Orient Enterprises
Limited (“HOEL”) (the “Master CPP Supply Agreement”) for the
supply by the Group to HOEL and any related entity designed by
HOEL of various feed-related, farm-related and food-related products
such as animal feed, chlortetracycline, animal drugs and feed raw
materials, breeding and farming livestock, and processed meats and
food products. The Master CPP Supply Agreement took effect on 1
January 2014 and would continue to be in effect until 31 December
2016. The Master CPP Supply Agreement and the annual caps were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 20
December 2013. Transactions pursuant to the Master CPP Supply
Agreement continued to take place in the year ended 31 December
2015.

HOEL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and was treated as a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions under the Master CPP Supply Agreement were treated
as if they were continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the approved annual cap and the actual sales for the transactions
contemplated under the Master CPP Supply Agreement amounted to
US$2,025,000,000 and US$567,443,000 respectively.

B AR

A H

RER-HETFZAZHIREER > AEE B
HEAT R B e 28 R 2R g N 2 AR 4t L v R ) o
L RE TP A ) 4 B

33

WEHMA s R _F—=ZF+—H+WA > RA
H] B1High Orient Enterprises Limited ((HOEL ) # 5T
— U B3t E B e ([ b W 0t JE AR 10 sk ) > Pl A< 4R ] 1y
HOELFI L 48 5 2 A% i 5] 72 4 3 3t 6 RLAH B - &
EAH B K £ S E B A o B R - R - B
R AR E AR - B R A A o A T AR
A o MIEMEEAR R 2 N4E—H—H
MERAEZZ-AF+TH=1+—H - Pt
MR REE LTRR -F—=FE£+HZ+HELKR
AL B R A o AR D RO AR I R 2 &
HIRBEE R -LE T H=ET—HIEFEE N B
B o

HOELJECPG WY ] 2 B a5 23 5 B B 45 2 AR 48 L7l 4
R ARA T Z BlE AL - 3806 > Dt e T
P A 5 1 A 2 G T A 4 vl BRI A A R =2 R A
BT e R B —HET A=+ —HIEFEN
I Whe 3 OB 48 1 SR T T 22 5 e 1 A B R EE R
B HE A4y ) 45 20182,500 88 0 ] 518.6,744. 3K TT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

-2 -1 F F &



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B EFER

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase
C.P. Trading Co., Ltd.

Prior to the reporting period, on 14 November 2013, the Company
had entered into a purchase agreement with C.P. Trading Co., Ltd.
(“CPT”) (the “Master CPP Purchase Agreement”) for the purchase
of raw materials, machinery and equipment, promotional products,
packaging materials, breed and farm livestock and aqua stock, meats
and other items required for production and sale of animal and aqua
feed, farm and food products and chlortetracycline products by the
Group in the normal course of business from CPT and its related
entities. The Master CPP Purchase Agreement took effect on 1
January 2014 and would continue to be in effect until 31 December
2016. The Master CPP Purchase Agreement and the annual caps were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 20
December 2013.

CPT was a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.P. Intertrade Co. Ltd. which
was at the time the Master CPP Purchase Agreement was entered
into and throughout the reporting period owned as to approximately
51.31% by the Chearavanont Shareholders, being four members of the
Chearavanont family, namely Mr. Jaran Chiaravanont, Mr. Montri
Jiaravanont, Mr. Sumet Jiaravanon and Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont.
As such, CPT was treated as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Master CPP Purchase Agreement were treated as if they were
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the approved annual
cap and the actual purchases for the transactions contemplated under
the Master CPP Purchase Agreement amounted to US$1,468,000,000
and US$521,167,000 respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase (continued)
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited

On 16 April 2015, a supply agreement (the “CTEI Master Supply
Agreement”) was made between the Company and Chia Tai
Enterprises International Limited (“CTEI”) which at that time
was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for the purchase
of chlortetracycline and animal drugs (including any antibiotics)
required for the production and sale of animal and aqua feed products
by the Group from CTEI and its subsidiaries (the “CTEI Group”). The
CTEI Master Supply Agreement took effect on 3 July 2015 and would

continue to be effective until 31 December 2017.

The CTEI Master Supply Agreement was entered into in anticipation
of the spin off and separate listing on the Stock Exchange of CTEI,
which took place on 3 July 2015. As a result, CPF is the controlling
shareholder of both the Company and of CTEIL. The transactions
between the Group and the CTEI Group under the CTEI Master
Supply Agreement have therefore become continuing connected

transactions of the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules.

Based on the relevant percentage ratios, the transactions under the
CTEI Master Supply Agreement were subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. During the period
from 3 July 2015 to 31 December 2015, the annual cap and actual
purchases for the transactions contemplated under the CTEI Master
Supply Agreement amounted to US$5,993,000 and US$4,660,000

respectively.
Business Carve-out

Prior to the reporting period, on 31 December 2012, the Company
had entered into a business carve-out agreement with Orient Success
International Limited (“OSIL”) (the “Master Business Carve-out
Agreement”) for OSIL’s lease and/or use of certain of the Group’s
non-feed related fixed assets (comprising land, buildings and plant
and machinery) located in the PRC. The Master Business Carve-out
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2013 and would continue to be
effective until 31 December 2015. The Master Business Carve-out
Agreement and the annual caps were exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules, but were
reported and announced under the Listing Rules as if the same were to

be applicable.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Business Carve-out (continued)

OSIL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and was treated as a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Master Business Carve-out Agreement were treated as if they were
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the annual cap and
the actual rental for the transactions contemplated under the Master
Business Carve-out Agreement amounted to RMB31,600,000 and
RMB13,529,000 respectively.

Lease

Prior to the reporting period, on 31 December 2012, the Company
had entered into a lease agreement with OSIL (the “Master Lease
Agreement”) for the Group’s lease and/or use of certain fixed assets
related to feed production (comprising land, buildings and plant and
machinery which belonged to OSIL and/or its subsidiaries) located
in the PRC. The Master Lease Agreement took effect on 1 January
2013 and would continue to be effective until 31 December 2015.
The Master Lease Agreement and the annual caps were exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing

Rules, but were reported and announced under the Listing Rules.

OSIL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and was treated as a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Master Lease Agreement were treated as if they were continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the annual cap and the
actual rental for the transactions contemplated under the Master
Lease Agreement amounted to RMB40,800,000 and RMB13,462,000

respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CPG Technical Assistance Services

Prior to the reporting period, on 14 November 2013, C.P. Vietnam
Corporation (“CPVC”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, had entered into a technical assistance services agreement
with CPG (the “CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement”)
for the provision of certain technical assistance services by CPG
to CPVC in connection with CPVC’s business in Vietnam. The
CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement took effect on 1
January 2014 and would continue to be effective until 31 December
2016. The service fee was equivalent to 1.5% of the net sales value
of the products manufactured, produced and/or sold by CPVC in
Vietnam or exported from Vietnam, exclusive of the value added tax
chargeable on the sale of such products under applicable Vietnam
laws and regulations, commercial discounts, rebates and returned
goods. The CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement and
the annual cap were exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules, but were reported and

announced under the Listing Rules.

CPG was treated as a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the transactions under the CPG Technical Assistance Services
Agreement were treated as if they were continuing connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the annual cap
and the actual service fee for the transactions contemplated under
the CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement amounted to
US$48,000,000 and US$29,896,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

MS Technical Assistance Services

Prior to the reporting period, on 14 November 2013, CPVC had
entered into a technical assistance services agreement with Modern
State (the “MS Technical Assistance Services Agreement”) for the
provision of certain technical assistance services by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, Modern State to CPVC in connection with
CPVC’s business in Vietnam. The MS Technical Assistance Services
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2014 and would continue to be
effective until 31 December 2016. The service fee was equivalent to
1.5% of the net sales value of the products manufactured, produced
and/or sold by CPVC in Vietnam or exported from Vietnam, exclusive
of the value added tax chargeable on the sale of such products under
applicable Vietnam laws and regulations, commercial discounts,
rebates and returned goods. The MS Technical Assistance Services
Agreement and the annual caps were exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules, but were

reported and announced under the Listing Rules.

CPVC is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in which
CPF (being a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore
a connected person of the Company other than at the level of the
Company’s subsidiaries) will be able to exercise more than 10% of the
voting rights in the general meeting. Hence CPVC was a connected
person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions under the MS Technical Assistance
Services Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, the annual cap and the actual
service fee for the transactions contemplated under the MS Technical
Assistance Services Agreement amounted to US$48,000,000 and
US$29,896,000 respectively.

Listing Rules Compliance

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions of the Group
and have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

In respect of the above connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions, the Company has complied with the relevant
announcement, circular and shareholders’ approval requirements

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Transactions with joint ventures and associates, interest income
from HOEL and its related entities, and sales to ITOCHU, which
are disclosed as related party disclosures in note 42 to the financial
statements of the annual report, do not fall under the definition of
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions or were
fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and thus are not

disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance
with the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed below, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation
pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2015.

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated
term loan facility agreement with KASIKORNBANK Public
Company Limited, as mandated lead arranger and agent, and other
lenders (the “Lenders”) relating to a facility amount of US$410
million granted to the Company by the Lenders (the “Facility
Agreement”). The facility would be used for the Company’s general
corporate purposes, working capital, new investment projects and/or

expansion of existing projects.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
CPF ceases to own directly or indirectly at least 51% of the beneficial

interest in the total issued ordinary share capital of the Company.

On 19 August 2014, the Company obtained the consent from all
the Lenders to amend the clause on CPF’s beneficial shareholding
threshold in the Borrower under the Facility Agreement (the
“Amendment”). Pursuant to the Amendment, such event of default
has been amended to the effect that it will be an event of default if
the CPF Group (being Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited and its subsidiaries from time to time) ceases to own the
largest percentage of the legal and beneficial interest in the total
issued ordinary share capital of the Company and ceases to have
control over the Company. Except for the aforesaid Amendment, all

other terms under the Facility Agreement remain unchanged.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render any
commitments under the facility to be cancelled and/or all outstanding
liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement to become

immediately due and payable.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors were not
aware that any of the Directors had interest in any business which
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 145, every Directors shall be
indemnified out of the funds of the Company against all liabilities

incurred by him as such Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

insurance for its Directors and officers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group during

the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was

entered into or existed during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company applied
the principles and complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director. The principal duties of
the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the
Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control. The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial statements prior to the publication of the interim and final

results.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
up to the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Arunee Watcharananan
Director

Hong Kong
29 February 2016
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

=

Independent Auditor’s Report

chlic

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 69 to 214, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% BA 3R

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 and of the Group’s consolidated financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 February 2016
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEeETEWE R

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

2015 2014
ZE R RN
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt it FoF FLFo
(Restated)
()
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B EEE
REVENUE KA 5 5,129,818 5,508,559
Cost of sales 8 8 AR (4,225,347) (4,652,765)
Gross profit EH 904,471 855,794
Net changes in fair value of HYEEARMEZ
biological assets 5% ) i A0 6 6,954 9,287
911,425 865,081
Other income, net At e A\ 3 % 7 32,600 19,124
Selling and distribution costs 8485 By B AR (272,933) (281,894)
General and administrative expenses TEOREHE N (246,251) (224,840)
Finance costs B 5 B AR 8 (39,121) (49,180)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A e A B e 18
Joint ventures (R 21(a) 3,679 4,063
Associate W8 24 W 22(a) 11,352 10,895
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Bt T i A 400,751 343,249
Income tax ey ik 12 (91,976) (82,707)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REHBFERBEER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS NS | 308,775 260,542
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CRILREER
Profit for the period/year from discontinued KACKIERSEE
operations WA E R 37 30,402 35,294
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A 4 i 339,177 295,836
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 7

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZzZEKRE R
Year ended 31 December 2015 R E - F—HHE+_H=+—H L4

2015 2014
R HAF R
Note US$’°000 US$’000
Mt B Ere n
(Restated)
(BEH)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Ffth 2 i WAL 2
Continuing operations FRERBEH
Items that will not be reclassified HEBEBAGER 8
subsequently to profit or loss: BEHRMEZHEA :
Surplus on revaluation of office premises, net [LE S SR e Y4 15 3,600 3,844
Income tax effect Jir 15 B 5% 2 33 (478) (836)
3,122 3,008
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HERGEHSERE
to profit or loss: B ZHEH -
Exchange differences on translation of Hh s SEF IR R R 2
foreign operations [ 56, 5 % (69,761) (15,324)
Share of other comprehensive income of: JRE A I Al 2 Vi W2
Joint ventures aEAE 21(a) (873) (316)
Associate 1B 2 2w 22(a) (2,127) (666)
(72,761) (16,306)
Other comprehensive income from KA FRE RS EB R
continuing operations, net of income tax A% FE At 2 i Wi 2R (69,639) (13,298)
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P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N

¥ BH B A R D 8

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZEKRRE X
Year ended 31 December 2015 E_F—HAE T _H=1—HILEE
2015 2014
RN R
Note US$’000 US$’000
M it B n FrTox
(Restated)
(RH#HF)
Discontinued operations D IEREE
Items that are or may be reclassified O 4R sl 4% W] RE & R4
subsequently to profit or loss: BHMBZIEAE
Exchange differences on translation of Ab 3l EF R RS 2
foreign operations [EE 56, 2% % 121 (9,010)
Share of other comprehensive income of: A Ay JEC A, 4 v W RS
Joint ventures e 21(a) (1,057) (248)
Associate 1B 2 A Wl 22(a) 21 (260)
Deregistration of a subsidiary R A - (225)
Disposal of subsidiaries and a joint venture H B B g A W] &
HFEME - (7,954)
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon B IRIE KA
distribution in specie of CTEI B 5% 56 oK IR A1 e
e B ik i = 1ol 37 (23,751) -
Other comprehensive income from KEH OIS EE
discontinued operations, net of income tax I 3642 L At 2 G MK 2 (24,666) (17,697)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B BE 18 AR 47 3L il 2 i WY 43
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX (94,305) (30,995)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AR 4 2 i W A A8 A
FOR THE YEAR 244,872 264,841
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 7

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZzZEKRE R
Year ended 31 December 2015 R E - F—HHE+_H=+—H L4

2015 2014
RN Bt 111 F2 S
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt B n FL T
(Restated)
(R H#HF)
Profit attributable to: i A AT 44 LT
Shareholders of the Company A2\ 8] R

Continuing operations FHEREEHE 242,497 218,992
Discontinued operations O IR RS B 25,078 32,433
267,575 251,425

Non-controlling interest 4 ) o A A
Continuing operations FEREEE 66,278 41,550
Discontinued operations DA ILREER 5,324 2,861
71,602 44,411
339,177 295,836

Total comprehensive income attributable to: ELE T E R AT
Shareholders of the Company A\ R

Continuing operations FHEREEK 182,645 198,292
Discontinued operations &L RS EE 3,706 15,118
186,351 213,410

Non-controlling interest I ¥ ) ek BE £
Continuing operations e E 56,491 48,952
Discontinued operations O ILREER 2,030 2,479
58,521 51,431
244,872 264,841
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEtEKBER
Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

2015 2014
SRR ZR 4
Note US cents US cents
Bt it FE il FEAfl
(Restated)
(EF)
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A 4y ) Jit 3 HEAli 2
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 4 Jik i # 14
— Basic e N
Continuing operations R R T 0.957 0.868
Discontinued operations CRILREET 0.099 0.128
1.056 0.996
— Diluted — #E
Continuing operations FRAE R B T 0.957 0.866
Discontinued operations DR ILREET 0.099 0.128
1.056 0.994

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the ARAEREZ BB NMBEREMITI3RPEE -

financial statements.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AN A
o
31 December 2015 —~F—fi4E+ - H=Z+—H
2015 2014
ZE R R
Note US$’000 US$’000
Hf & FF FLFo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I B &
Property, plant and equipment LE BN & 15 1,182,138 1,071,181
Investment properties EigsgES 16 16,365 18,927
Land lease prepayments TEAF - oA S 17 105,748 62,493
Non-current biological assets IEE A& E 18 49,481 47,598
Intangible assets M EE 19 34,169 38,532
Investments in joint ventures REESENE 21 19,669 90,903
Investments in associates W o | W 22 48,200 57,988
Available-for-sale investments ]k 23 8,435 8,826
Goodwill T 24 37,563 39,303
Other non-current assets oAl IR B A 18,712 34,035
Deferred tax assets JE HiE Bl A G 33 4,411 741
Total non-current assets 28Ik B E 1,524,891 1,470,527
CURRENT ASSETS i B & R
Inventories B 25 494,676 588,332
Current biological assets g A 18 299,210 295,507
Trade and bills receivables RE W 5 Rk e 26 148,352 160,056
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEATHR SR ~ 4 J oAt
i WA IR 7k 27 116,727 143,123
Pledged deposits TR AE 3K 28 48,900 40,870
Time deposits with maturity over three months E[ HBEB\B=MH Z
7 W1 K 28 206,869 168,462
Cash and cash equivalents B4 R SZEY 28 288,238 287,141
Total current assets HE B A A 1,602,972 1,683,491
CURRENT LIABILITIES it By 15
Trade and bills payables HE A+ & 5 W ok Mo 29 280,802 245,702
Other payables and accruals At A R R K AR 30 320,309 305,552
Bank borrowings SRAT S R 31 482,963 515,902
Income tax payables FEAT B 45 B 26,924 22,512
Total current liabilities HE B A 1,110,998 1,089,668
NET CURRENT ASSETS BB E A 491,974 593,823
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT AR 7 T ) £ 0
LIABILITIES 2,016,865 2,064,350
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEFBARRE
31 December 2015 —F—HAE+ZH=+—H

2015 2014
ZE R RN
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt it FoF FEILFo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I B A
Bank borrowings SRAT A K 31 620,107 609,333
Other non-current liabilities oA Ik 7 B A H 32 25,543 21,803
Deferred tax liabilities E 4t A E B E 33 55,333 46,806
Total non-current liabilities FLE R =R 700,983 677,942
NET ASSETS R A 1,315,882 1,386,408
EQUITY HE #5
Equity attributable to shareholders AR 2 ) B R A RE 25
of the Company
Issued capital BT A 34 253,329 253,329
Reserves ] 36 763,939 853,386
Proposed final dividend T K % B 13 68,644 71,913
1,085,912 1,178,628
Non-controlling interest I e ) 1 M 2 229,970 207,780
TOTAL EQUITY HE £5 48 3 1,315,882 1,386,408

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the AT —N4FEH - TILHRAARFR MK

Company on 29 February 2016. ZHET DL B8 o
Arunee Watcharananan Adirek Sripratak %% i )t
Director # Director # %
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3

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREH R

Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AR RS
Share Property PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium Contributed ~ Capital ~ Merger revaluation ~ reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account  Surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve  profits  dividend Total  interest equity
c#f Tty B4 2 i LE WEOBMERE KA ik It
Rk EER  BREE 1] W RGBS Bt M KERE AR HE  EEAR
Note  US§'000  US§000  USS'000  US§000  US§'000  US§'000  US§'000  USS'000  US$'000  US§'000  US$'000  US§'000  US§'000
W& #ifr Fxfx Fifrx Frfr #ifr #ifr #ifrn Eifx Fifx FiTr #rTr ¥ifr #ifn
(note 36(c)) (note 36(d)) (note 36(e)) (note 36(f))
(Wits6(c) (is6d) (o) (Witisn)
At1January 2015 REF-R4E—A—R 153319 10740 1396882 13,109 (1,612918) 31392 125680 33239 855,260  7L913 1178628 207,780 1,386,408
Proft for the year A4 Bl - - - - - - - - 60575 - 6151 TLE0L 339177
Other comprehensive 4 9 3t fl 2 i i -
income for the year:
Exchange differences AP H SR
on translation of ZERER
foreign operations - - - - - - - (59.865) - - (59865)  (9,775)  (69,640)
Surplus on revaluation 1 EHF E 1
of office premises, net A 5 - - - - - 3,600 - - - - 3,600 - 3,600
Income tax effect ~ FiARR A 33 - - - - - (418) - - - - (478) - (478)
Share of other Kt b2 i
comprehensive s -
income of:
Joint ventures RELE (a) - - - - - - - (1,930) - - (1,930) - (1,930)
Associates REAT () - - - - - - AL - - (log) AL
Release of exchange ~ EHANRE k£
fluctuation reserve B OC 1 B
upon distribution Sk B0k
inspecie of CTEL 2% - - - - - - - (0445) - - (048) (3306 (3,751)
Total comprehensive 4 4 2 il 4 4441
income for the year - - - - - 3,122 - (B4.346) 267575 - 186351 58501 14487
Share of merger reserve FEAfBFE A
of associate AR - - - - (313) - - - - - (313) - (313)
Dividend paid to FURE 20t
non-controlling i3 11e
equity holders 135S - - - - - - - - - - - (16,188)  (16,188)
2014 final dividend ~ ERZF— P4
declared KRR - - - - - - - - - (o) (m9B) - (n93)
2005 interim dividend ZF—FAFHBRE B - - (33569) - - - - - - - (55,569) - 56)
2015 final dividend ~ #H_F—HE
proposed FHRA 13 - - (68,644) - - - - - - 08,644 - - -
Dividend by wayof 2~ DAEEHIAHR TR
distribution in specie kA BLR 13 - - - 7 313 - (803) - (143,456) - (BT (0143)  (171415)
Transter inflout) —— HA/() - - - - - - B - (1508) - - - -
At 31 December 2015 R =B~ T4
+ZAZ4—0 153309 10740¢  [272,669%  13012% (1,612918)% 34314 131,730%  (SLIOT)*  964,207% 680644 1085912 229970 1315882
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 BB R 2 7
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREER
Year ended 31 December 2015 M E R —HHFE T H=1—HIL4)E
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
AL AR R
Available-
for-sale
Share Share Property  investment PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-

Issued  premium Contributed option  Capitll ~ Merger revaluation revaluation  reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account  Surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve  profits  dividend Total interest equity
ke

L&l Rf kS R fik il H%  RAER EOMENE AR it | Fel

BE O WEE BBR O BE O BE BE O EGRE BB REEE  RE AR RERR AR BE B4R

Note ussoe - Usgo Ussow Ussaw USSol LSSm0 s USS USsn Ussow Ussa US§on
Wit Fitr i Fifr Fifr Fifr #Fifr Eifr o Fifr Eifr Fifi #ifi Eitr #ifr
(note 36(b)) (note 36(c)) ~ (note 36(d)) (note 36(e)) ~ (note 36(f)
(W) (Hebsse) (Wikssd) (Hitise) (Hitsn)
At1 January 2014 e Sl i 5 5359 3109 (1612918) 29624 164 110998 4095 617378 61422 1069110 177193 146315
Profit for the year RAERA - - - - - - - 514D - DBIAS 44410 195836
Other comprehensive income R 2R
for the year:
Exchange diffrences on translation SN EBRHSIRL
of foreign operations EREH - - - - - - (31354) - - (313) 7000 (43%)
Surplus on revaluation of office ~~ WEBTFELFRE
premises, net 15 - - - 384 - - - - - 354 - 3544
Income tax effct fifhbts & 3 - - - (B - - - - - (30 il
Share of other comprehensive 2
income of:
Joint ventures RELE (a) - - - - - - - - (564) - (564)
Asocates BaLT () - - - - - - - - -
Deregistration of a subsidiary HH-RMEAT - - - - - (13) (225) 3 - (129) - (29)
Disposal of subsidiaries and a HERBATR-%
joint venture aEbE - - - (1,240) (164 (6474 (17%0) 1714 - (1954) - (1954)
Total comprehensive income ERRTRELAE
for the year - - - 1,768 (l64)  (6487)  (40859) 239,150 - L340 I 264
Issue of shares upon exercise of T
share options i{iles 3 (5.3%9) - - - - - - (317) EITAN K - BB
Capital injection by non-controlling - J45 #1 e 8 UK
equity holders EARA - - - - - - - - - A X )
Reduction of share premium A i 34 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Change of non-controlling nterests 43 ¥l HERERE %%
without a change in control (BHERR) - - - - - 3 3 5 - 1 () -
Dividend paid to non-controlling ¢ Ff A5 IR &
equity holders [T 3E) - - - - - - - - - - (381 (23,180)
2013 final dividend declared FROF-SEABRA - - - - - - - - (61,739)  (61,739) - (61,739)
2004 nterim dividend “R-WERARE 3 - - - - - - - - - 3509 - 5309)
2014 final dividend proposed BAZF-WEENRR 13 - - - - - - - - 1B - - -
Transer nflout) HA/) - - - - -6 - (s) - - - -
At 31 December 2014 R
+ZAZ4-0 153309 10740% 1,396,880 S 1300F (1612918)%  31,392¢ SO T8 B9 85260+ 71913 LIT8A28 207780 1386408
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * AR AR AR A BRI BN Z A 10

US$763,939,000 (2014: US$853,386,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

6,393.98FI0 (ZF— U4 : 8f#5,338.6FI0) °
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 7

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEHETRERXR

Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

2015 2014
—E N R
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt B n FL T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REGRHZBHEHE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: o A58 iy ¥
Continuing operations PR 400,751 343,249
Discontinued operations [BR SNy 33,084 41,031
Adjustments for: R
Bank and other interest income SRAT T Ho A A B e A 7,37 (10,447) (12,379)
Net changes in fair value of investment T P 32 oA 5 ) i
properties 7 1,675 618
Finance costs T 75 B AR 8,37 39,007 50,522
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W~ B R 9,37 78,848 72,834
Amortisation of intangible assets T E 2 HEY 9 2,745 1,726
Amortisation of land lease prepayments A LA S ey 9,37 3,134 2,622
Depreciation of biological assets stated Fi A D R F T K
at cost less accumulated depreciation WAEBREIIRZ
and impairment R YT 9 26,623 29,779
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and B E - WE
equipment, net z (k) EiREE 9,37 (456) 640
Gain on disposal of land lease prepayments B AT A B
Z Wi 7 (1,025) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary RS — R A W 2 Wt - (225)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and HEREARA—K
a joint venture R Tl & - (6,502)
Impairment/(write back of impairment) JE W B 5 B K A
of trade receivables, net (kAL [l 3% ) 35 % 9 5,335 (71)
Net changes in fair value of biological EMEENREZ
assets 5% w5 FH 6 (6,954) (9,287)
Share of profits and losses of: R A i P B e 4R
Joint ventures BB 21(a) (5,260) (21,670)
Associates RN | 22(a) (13,229) (20,577)
Gain on distribution in specie of CTEI BWMEYSIRIE KL
— Exchange fluctuation reserve ESC ] g
attributable to CTEI recycled — % IE KA 3 ] % A
to profit or loss Z B B 5k ) ol AR T
HERE 37 (23,751) -
530,080 472,310
Decrease in inventories TR WA 43,876 18,019
Increase in biological assets A 4y ¥ B (42,218) (41,047)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JRE Wt B 5 W ek Tk 5 5 3 (17,030) (19,425)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEAT R AR ~ %4 B H At g
deposits and other receivables W R #K A (B ) 5,410 (60,334)
Increase in trade payables JE A 1 5 Mk 2 53,946 14,928
Increase in other payables and accruals JAth 1 A MR R K T AR
22 H 38 m 51,628 44,560
Cash generated from operations REEEZHE 625,692 429,011
Interest paid AT F & (54,937) (59,708)
Income tax paid oA B (78,218) (61,620)
Net cash flows generated from operating RBEHMGZHE
activities i 5 492,537 307,683
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ZAEBRERER
Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥
2015 2014
“E—hHE R4
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t FFi FEoL T T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B Y e Rk (275,492) (315,286)
Purchase of an available-for-sale investment ME—EA e
Ei'dcy - (7,697)
(Decrease)/increase in other non-current FE At I 38 B £ %
liabilities (A /4 m (9,459) 8,416
Increase in land lease prepayments T AT 4 H A S 2 B (57,471) (11,156)
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets oA IR B A
WA (3m) 9,735 (8,788)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi S W g 2 D - (84,511)
Disposal of subsidiaries and a joint venture HEMEARR—%K
CR-giE - 49,414
Dividends received from joint ventures OB 8 A 3 B S 2,428 8,444
Dividends received from associates W T 2 A ] S - 9,838
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment WA P AR Ak 3,443 1,216
Proceeds from disposal of land lease B F A L A 2
prepayments JT 4% 5k TE 5,990 10,049
Receipt from PRC government on factories o 5 4t 7 TG A v I AT
relocation A K Ve 17,055 -
Interest received 2R B 10,447 12,379
Net cash flows used in investing activities BREWEHHMAZH S
i A (293,324) (327,682)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING Rl B 2 B 4
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings B B SR AT A K 1,303,906 1,474,030
Repayment of bank borrowings 18 38 SRAT A 3K (1,273,562) (1,327,258)
Capital injection from non-controlling e 47 ] E 2 e R
equity holders WAEAR - 2,358
Increase in pledged deposits EHK I A K 3 (10,359) (10,534)
Increase in time deposits with maturity FWHBB=HZ
over three months 2 A7 K B (46,567) (73,869)
Dividend paid o e (127,482) (117,308)
Dividend paid to non-controlling equity AT T I e ) ek A 2
holders JBe BB B (16,188) (23,181)
Proceeds from exercise of share options A7 105 1% I HE T 45 3K 0B - 13,383
Distribution in specie B W4 Ik 37 (18,063) —
Net cash flows used in financing Al 3 B P 2 B &
activities i &= (188,315) (62,379)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReERBE&EHED
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥om, (WA) S8 10,898 (82,378)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4E#IZ Bl & KB &%
&7 287,141 374,140
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net Hb B 3R 58 B 2 56 B R (9,801) (4,621)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBERBEE
AT END OF YEAR i8] 27 288,238 287,141
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company” or “CPP”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
ordinary shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are located at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and 21st Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,

respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”), joint ventures and associates of the Group were

involved in the following activities:
Continuing operations

. manufacture and sale of animal feed and value-added,
processed food products in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”)

o manufacture and sale of animal feed products, breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals,
and manufacture and sale of value-added, processed
food products in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam

(“Vietnam”)
o investment and property holding
Discontinued operations
o manufacture and sale of chlortetracycline products

o trading of machinery, manufacture and sale of
motorcycles (the motorcycle business was disposed of in

2014) and automotive parts

At 31 December 2015, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for office premises, investment properties,
certain biological assets and derivative financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair value or at fair value less
costs of disposal, where appropriate. These financial statements
are presented in United States dollars (“US$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“US$’000”) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full, except for
the unrealised loss which are eliminated only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit

balance.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following amendments to IFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 19 Amendments to IAS 19 Employee benefits -
Defined benefits plans: Employee contributions

Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of [FRSs

[FRSs 2010-2012 cycle
Annual Improvements to
[FRSs 2011-2013 cycle

Amendments to a number of [FRSs

The adoption of these amendments to IFRSs has had no

significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation

that is not yet effective for the current year.

In addition, the disclosure requirements of Part 9, “Accounts
and Audits” of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) came into operation at the start of the Company’s current
financial year. The adoption of the disclosure requirements
had primarily improved the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements. These
changes mainly include the presentation of the Company’s
statement of financial position as a note disclosure instead of
a primary statement and updating any references to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance to refer to the current Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

B AR

A H

2.1

2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB

issued a number of amendments and new standards which are

not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and

which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These include the following which may be relevant to the

Group:
IFRS 9

IFRS 15
IFRS 16

Amendments to [FRS 10
and [AS 28

Amendments to [FRS 11

Amendments to [AS 1

Amendments to IAS 16 and
JAS 38

Annual Improvements to
[FRSs 2012-2014 cycle

2016

2018

2019

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers*

Leases®

Amendments to [FRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and 1AS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures- Sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture!

Amendments to [FRS 11 Joint Arrangements-
Accounting for acquisitions of interests in
joint operations’
Amendments to [AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements- Disclosure initiative"
Amendments to [AS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment and TAS 38 Intangible
Assets- Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amoritisation'

Amendments to a number of [FRSs'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
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N 4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 #E R —HE - H =+ — H ILFJE
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 CHEMAEHARERNVBERITERS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 28 ()
STANDARDS (continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of % 4 T8 B TE 5 AL T IR ER AN 5% S T o KR
the impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs upon ST BB B A A R . B H AT
initial application. So far, the Group considers the impact B 7 PR 21 % P 10 % B 5 o i B SR 1 0% A
that adopting the amendment and new standards will have B R) RE AR 4 [ A S B S A T I R Y A
on the consolidated financial statements are unlikely to be Fi 4 A A TR AN > R IR MR
significant, except that the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases in the FH G At A 5T 07 e RIS 2 S A 4R T 4 5 T
future may have a material impact on the amounts reported R E RN EE - R > FERMUETHF
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. A0 B R A Z T > FAM AR BE S BR AT 184 R T R
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate 34 FI) 25 16555 Ik P 56 B4R 1Y S B A T o
of the effect of IFRS 16 until we perform a detailed review.
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHERHE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Subsidiaries (a) HEAF
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), Pt g 2 5] 2 AS 2 ) B B i 2
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. (A EE) o BARSEED
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or S WG AT PEB P EZRE
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement in BE =248 W 5 M ik o 3 VT4 A JERE )
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns BB AT Z B (B4 T AEE
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights BlIRe h HES B RE A w2 HE
that give the Group the current ability to direct the R BARER) K > A4 [H B JE B
relevant activities of the investee). A hlRE o
When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less HWARAF HEBERBEHFAED R — Bk
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an P& A TR S0 B3R DL RE Bl S DL RE A
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and W > AN 45 A AL L 2 5 A RE el
circumstances, in assessing whether it has power over BEAE G ERAHEEENE
an investee, including: oo A .
(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote (i) BPHREAFBREERAANZ
holders of the investee; HHIWE
(ii) rights arising from other contractual (ii) REHALA A g A 5 &
arrangements; and
(iii)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting (iil)  FHREZ B ERE TGN -
rights.
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

- F -1 F 5§



C. P. POKPHAND CO.

LTD.

b E B EFER

A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Investments in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method, as

for associates (note 2.4(c)).
Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies. Significant
influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another
entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method and are recognised initially at cost. The

cost of the investments includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees,
after adjustments to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that significant
influence commences until the date that significant

influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount
of the investment including any long-term interest
that forms part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has

made payments on behalf of the investee.

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(b)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BELHE

RS MG L BRI
A7 K [5) 2 I RE BT A0 07 B U0 B A
S A R A o I TR e AR
e WA 7 2 38— SR HR B 3 A R4
AR > {2 A M B B o6 ZRUHE A G )
A A Y 4% 05 — BRI T8 B U SE IR
FAAE o T 8 i 28 B0 8 DARE 25 3 51
M > BRI A W] — B (i RE2.4(c)) ©

BEQT

W28 0% ) T3 HE AS 4 T S S L A R
MBCOREEA BN X > B
I ¥ ) WE B A ) e ) HEE o A S AL
il BB AY20% F50% 8 5 HE R
AW E B R .

TP W 8 O ] A 45 DARE i 3 ) R I
BRI ARAHE R o B A BTER S
BEAR

A B s e e OSSR AR H PR
U o OF A T DURE 5 35 51 M W 2 B
3 5 2 A v ) B g 18 A i 2 i
2 OF B N s A 0 B A 42 18] 1 5t 8OOSR
—HWER) > HEREZEKRE
BHRILE -

B A A 1 B A M L 008 L S DR 2
HEIRM B B R LR - ZRE W
LR ENQORATERERSLIE: Eo DR g
3 AR G B A 2 0 sk LB B A A
KA RO > 5 L HE R — B R -

-2 -1 F F

#

85



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(a) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(c) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group; or

(ii)  the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(a) the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

(b) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(c) the entity and the Group are joint

ventures of the same third party;

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Related parties (continued)

(ii) (continued)
(f) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

(g) a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2.4(1)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit, any attributable

amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f)

(9)

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations of entities under common
control are accounted for using the pooling-of-interests
method. Under the pooling-of-interests method, the
assets and liabilities of the acquiree are stated at their
historical carrying values at the date of acquisition and
the difference between the consideration transferred
for a business combination under common control
and the total of (i) the acquisition date historical
net asset values of the acquiree attributable to the
Group and (ii) the pre-acquisition reserves of the
acquiree combined by the Group is accounted for as a
contribution from or a distribution to, as appropriate,
holding companies in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Accordingly, there is no goodwill
or a gain on bargain purchase as a result of a business
combination under common control. The results of the
acquiree under a business combination under common
control are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Office premises

Office premises are stated at their open market
values on the basis of annual professional valuations
performed at each financial year end. Changes arising
on the revaluation of office premises are dealt with as
movements in the property revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual premise basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the

deficit previously charged.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Office premises (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the valuation of the office premises over their

estimated useful lives of 30 years to 50 years.

On disposal of an office premise, the relevant portion
of the property revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of other property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after other property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of other property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognised such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of other property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%
10% to 33.33%
9% to 33.33%

Industrial buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles and transport facilities

Where parts of other property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.

Other property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.
Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in

the period of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner
occupied property becomes an investment property,
any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property at the date of change in use is

accounted for as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

U]

Investment properties (continued)

(i)

(ii)

any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of
the property is recognised in profit or loss in the

period the change in use took place.

any resulting increase in the carrying amount
is credited to profit or loss, to the extent the
increase reverses a previous impairment loss for
that property, or restores the carrying amount
of the property to an amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
property in prior years;and any remaining part of
the increase in the carrying amount is credited
directly to equity in the property revaluation
reserve. On subsequent disposal of the property,
the relevant portion of the property revaluation
reserve realised is transferred to retained profits

as a movement in reserves.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent customer relationship

of the Group and are stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position at cost less accumulated

amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)

and impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite

useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the assets’ estimated useful lives, from the date they

are available for use. The estimated useful lives used

for this purpose are 14-15 years. Both the period and

method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

(k)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Land lease prepayments represent costs of land use
rights paid to governmental authorities in mainland
China and Vietnam. Land lease payments under
operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over

the lease terms.
Biological assets

Biological assets include swine, poultry and aquatic
livestock and are measured at their fair value less costs
of disposal, except where the fair value cannot be
measured reliably or when the costs are not materially
different from the fair value due to short production
cycle, in those cases they are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and where appropriate,

less any accumulated depreciation.

Gains or losses arising from initial recognition of
biological assets at fair value less costs of disposal and
from a change in fair value less costs of disposal of
biological assets are included in profit or loss in the

period in which it arises.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

Biological assets (continued)

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase
price and any costs attributable in raising the biological

assets.

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
the depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
method to write off the cost of these biological assets
over their estimated productive period of 12 months to
36 months. The expected productive period of these
biological assets is reviewed regularly, and adjusted
when appropriate. The carrying values of these
biological assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate that

the carrying values may not be fully recoverable.
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets, investment properties,
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of disposal
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39, other than
derivatives, are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus

transaction cost.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in “Other
income, net” in profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in “General and

administrative expenses” in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(it)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity
investments. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated at

fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale
investments are subsequently measured at
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss.

When the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest

rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
either directly or through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future

recovery.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to “General and administrative

expenses” in profit or loss.
Available-for-sale investments carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(iii)

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value

For available-for-sale investments carried at fair
value, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of

investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired,
an amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit
or loss, is removed from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve and recognised

in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(iii)

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost.
The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

(i)

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Derecognition (continued)

(it)

the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement;and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39, other
than derivatives, are classified as loans and borrowings.
The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities
are recognised initially at fair value and net of directly

attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

“Finance costs” in profit or loss.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,

or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
deferred income at its fair value, and is amortised in
profit or loss over the terms of the guarantee as income
from guarantee issued. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information

is obtainable.

Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised to the category of assets in accordance with
the Group’s policies. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

Provision are recognised if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in deferred income in respect
of that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised,

less accumulated amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or

loss.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the
weighted average basis, and net realisable value after
making due allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

N

B

24 FEESTHHRBE (&)

(p) FTEEWMIA

AT A 4 LR 0 O G 32 T L
FAE HZ 8 REAR > KR AR
fEFFA & o A7 Gt TR IZ A R
B BB B R > BB
B o AR 2> A0 A6 58 B 28 A Y v ) B

M R EE AH 2 o
(@ #E&

B TR A (PR R F- 35 3% ) st
115 B s B9 A 18 I AR < T A B
W E B2 BAKE SR o A 45
ELEYRE ~ B S TROW 4 2
BERA o T B A TG Al R
B 5e T 8% 8 BT f B RAR A o

(r) ReRESEEY
RERBREFEM B4 - HYE
REFEERBZEBRE (THEREE
BACMEHEZ B4 » M MEESHE
JEBEATE K - BB HARE > — B
BAEMBARZ=ZMHARN) - izHB
EWREBW T > 77 RAE AL A
HHEBSEMZ EEBMHZMITEX
AR ERBEEEINA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

-2 -1 F F &



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B EFER

A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in “Finance costs”

in profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business
combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with
the general guidance for provisions above;and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with

the guidance for revenue recognition.
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

(i) when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

(i) when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TEETBRME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

t) Income tax (continued) g% (&)

®)

(ii) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the period that the costs, which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:
(i) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(ii) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(iii)  interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(iv)  dividend income, when the equity holders’ right

to receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by using the Black-Scholes pricing model, further
details of which are given in note 35 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.
Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into

the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC
government, subsidiaries of the Group in mainland
China are required to make specific contributions
to the state-controlled retirement plan at rates not
more than 20% (the percentage to be determined by
each of the government of the provinces, autonomous
regions or municipalities) of the total salaries of the
employees in mainland China. Certain provinces,
autonomous regions or municipalities are overburdened
by the pension insurance due to higher number
of retired people, it is required to make specific
contributions at rates higher than 20% (the percentage
to be determined by each of the government of the
provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities) of
the total salaries of the employees upon approval of
the ministry of labour and the ministry of finance.
The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liability to the retired employees. The employees of
the subsidiaries are entitled to a monthly pension at
their retirement dates. The subsidiaries have no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the

annual contributions.

Severance allowance

The severance pay to employees in Vietnam is accrued
at the end of each reporting period for Vietnamese
employees who have more than 12 months in service
up to 31 December 2008 at the rate of one-half of
the average monthly salary for each year of service
up to 31 December 2008 in accordance with the
Labour Code, the Law on Social Insurance and related
implementing guidance in Vietnam. Commencing from
1 January 2009, the average monthly salary used in
this calculation is revised at the end of each reporting
period using the average monthly salary of the 6-month
period up to the reporting date. Any changes to the

accrued amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(v)

()

Other employee benefits (continued)

Severance allowance (continued)

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance effective from 1
January 2009, a subsidiary of the Group in Vietnam
and its employees are required to contribute to
an unemployment insurance fund managed by the
Vietnam Social Insurance Agency. The contribution
to be paid by each party is calculated at 1% of the
lower of an employee’s basic salary and 20 times the
general minimum salary level as specified by the
Vietnam government from time to time. With the
implementation of the unemployment insurance
scheme, the Group is no longer required to provide
severance allowance for the service period after 1
January 2009.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. The
capitalisation rate for the year is based on the actual
cost of the related borrowings. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits or
contributed surplus within the equity section of the
consolidated statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(aa)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised

immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United
States dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period and differences are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are currencies
other than the United States dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into United States dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of the exchange fluctuation
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into United States dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries, which arise
throughout the year are translated into United States
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(ab)

(ac)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic, operating and/or
other characteristics. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographic area of operations, or is part of a
single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is

a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, which comprises
the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation
and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting

the discontinued operation.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These
judgements, estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an

ongoing basis.

Notes 15(d), 16(b), 18(e), 27(b) and 30(b) contain information
about the assumptions and estimation uncertainties relating to
valuation of office premises, investment properties, biological
assets and derivative financial instruments. Other information

about assumptions and estimation uncertainties are as follows:
(a) Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for provision for impairment loss of the
Group’s trade receivables is based on the evaluation
of collectability and the aging analysis of the trade
receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be

required.
(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates its property, plant and
equipment on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, and after taking into account
of their estimated residual values, at rates ranging
from 2% to 33.33% per annum, commencing from
the date the property, plant and equipment are placed
into productive use. The estimated useful lives and
dates that the Group places the property, plant and
equipment into productive use reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s

property, plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment
is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount when events or
changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of
the assets, or, where appropriate, the cash generating
unit to which they belong, is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. The recoverable
amounts are determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal which are based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at the
reporting date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable and willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal. For the
estimation of value in use, the Group’s management
estimates future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging
analysis of its inventories at each reporting date,
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use in production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a
product by product basis at each reporting date and
makes allowances for obsolete items.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(e) Provision for guarantee

Provision for guarantee are recognised if and when
it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and
the amount of that claim on the Group is measured
at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure
require to settle the present obligation at the reporting
date, and the amount initially recognised as deferred
income less cumulative amortisation. The Group
carries out regular review on the creditability of its
customers which the Group has provided guarantee
for. A provision is made based on the assessment on
the probability of cash outflow to settle the obligation
under the guarantee. The ultimate liability due may
vary from the amounts provided and will be dependent

upon the eventual outcome of any settlement.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4

On 29 June 2015, the Group spun-off its biochemical and
industrial businesses under Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited (“CTEI”) (the “Discontinued Operations”) via a
distribution in specie. The Group, after the spin-off, continues
to operate three operating segments, namely, the China
agri-food segment, the Vietnam agri-food segment and the
investment and property holding segment (collectively referred
to as the “Continuing Operations”). Prior year comparative
segment information has been restated to conform with the

current year presentation accordingly.
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7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business

units based on their products and services as follows:
Continuing operations

o the China agri-food segment is engaged in the
manufacture and sale of animal feed and value-added,
processed food products in the PRC;

o the Vietnam agri-food segment is engaged in the
manufacture and sale of animal feed products, breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and
the manufacture and sale of value-added, processed

food products in Vietnam; and

o the investment and property holding segment is
engaged in leasing of properties owned by the Group

and investment in group companies.
Discontinued operations

° the biochemical segment is engaged in the manufacture

and sale of chlortetracycline products; and

o the industrial segment is engaged in trading of
machinery, and the manufacture and sale of
motorcycles (the motorcycle business was disposed of in

2014) and automotive parts.
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b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

4

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income and finance

costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, time deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets and other unallocated

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank borrowings, income tax
payables and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are

managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2015 #E _~F—H4FE+ _H=1+—HIL4EE

4 REIEER(E)

(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (a) TUERKEDE
The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and PIT R AEE R AR RS
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information HAEHMBESFRBRE R —HF
for the Group’s reportable operating segments from BE_FE—NEF+_H=+—HILEE
continuing operations for the years ended 31 December NZWA -~ BREEETEE  AER
2015 and 2014. B % &k} o
Year ended 31 December 2015 RER-HET _H=1T—HILEE
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations  operations operations Total
R R AR MR RE R
TWmEY  RREY  BREH Hm
US$’°000 US$’°000 US$’000 US$°000
FrTFrx FrxFrx FErnFrx FErxFr
Segment revenue Vg LN
Sales to external customers HETFIREE 3,033,242 2,096,451 125 5,129,818
Segment results o JH 3 M
The Group PN 203,627 225,758 (8,972) 420,413
Share of profits and losses of:  FEAK % ) & K& 18 ¢
Joint ventures e 3,679 - - 3,679
Associate I 2 ] 11,352 - - 11,352
218,658 225,758 (8,972) 435,444
Reconciliation: WEIER -
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 4,428
Finance costs B 7 AR (39,121)
Profit before tax o 54 iy ¥ ) 400,751
Other segment information At 4y 8 % B
Depreciation and amortisation 78§ & $#f & 37,543 70,179 631 108,353
Capital expenditure* B AP 37 295,636 51,141 332 347,109
Additions of other non-current 3 3 fil JE 7 B
assets** Bk - 73,709 - 73,709
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

b #% BH B &R

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(a)

Reportable operating segments (continued)

and land lease prepayments.

ok Including additions to non-current biological assets

Including additions to property, plant and equipment

and other non-current assets.

At 31 December 2015

Segment assets

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment
receivables

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:

Elimination of intersegment
payables

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information

Investments in joint ventures

Investments in associate

R

WA
S 2
WO
ARG L H &

B E
SHEAR
RETIEA -
i iliEa
E €|
Fo LA fE
A

H b 43 5518 B

i SER=EE JIE S <y
T A R

A H

4 REIEER(FE)

(a) HERLLSE(E)

* BAEE - W5 Sl S AT i

M2

ok 4% 3 A 4 A T L T )

R Z Wi o

R-E-HEFZHA=1+—H

Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
w4 MR BERWE
1B LIRS i i A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
#7 T Fx T FL T F#L T
1,487,861 1,057,581 401,620 2,947,062
(367,617)
548,418
3,127,863
791,878 193,530 8,863 994,271
(367,617)
1,185,327
1,811,981
19,669 - - 19,669
48,200 - - 48,200
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & Mt =
Year ended 31 December 2015 E_F—HAE T _H=1—HILEE
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKLEDIE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2014 BKEZR—WETZHZT—HIEFEE
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
R A R R RE L%
’mEH ' el E S K
US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$'000

FIFr FILFIL E e on E e on
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(RHEF) (HEH) (RHH) (FFEF)

Segment revenue BB A

Sales to external customers HETFIKREF 3,435,406 2,073,140 13 5,508,559

Segment results Vil E 3

The Group AL 211,591 169,337 (9,074) 371,854

Share of profits and losses of: AV i ) e s 4R

Joint ventures ek 3 4,063 - - 4,063
Associate i % 2 W) 10,895 - - 10,895
226,549 169,337 (9,074) 386,812

Reconciliation: TEEE .

Bank interest income SRATH B WA 5,617

Finance costs T AR (49,180)

Profit before tax o Aot i ¥ A 343,249

Other segment information HAth 5y J& B

Depreciation and amortisation Pr 8 4 5 31,635 69,225 537 101,397

Capital expenditure* NGB 251,335 80,250 42 331,627

Additions of other non-current B IR B

assets®* B R 112,259 37,892 - 150,151

* Including additions to property, plant and equipment * BRI - W &S X EAT
and land lease prepayments, but excludes assets from A B 2200 > (H R B 55 W R i B
acquisition of subsidiaries. AR B ZEE -

o Including (i) non-current assets from acquisition o AL (i) WA B g 2 ] B 45 =2 JE S B
of subsidiaries, and (ii) additions to non-current BAE o (i) IEE WA K
biological assets and other non-current assets. il I i B B 2 TR o
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8

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

¥ B B 8 R & 7

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4

(continued)

(a) Reportable operating segments (continued)

At 31 December 2014

Segment assets

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment
receivables

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:

Elimination of intersegment
payables

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information

Investments in joint ventures

[nvestments in associates

Continuing operations

ReETHEN R

BEE- 3 F:F A¢ )

HEF-NEFZH =+ H

Discontinued operations

FEREEE DHIEREEY
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding Biochemical ~ Industrial
operations  operations  operations  operations  operations
REBK BREER BRERME
BAER  BREE BRER  ELER  TEEE
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Frfrx FrFr FErfr FrFr FrLFr
N E 1,353,580 1,081,017 497,781 95,512 95,065
WEEA
R Z TEWOK
il
RO LG
B
B 819,037 191,877 9,022 17,303 4,576
WEEA
2B Z Mk
il
A4 B FLE
HE
HA s R
ReEBshENRE 20,458 - - - 70,445
T W 8 ] B 4 38,975 - - 19,013

Total
k|
US$000
FETLTF T

3,122,955

(468,758)
499,811

3,154,018

1,041,815

(468,758)

1,194,553

1,767,610

90,903
57,988
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4 REIEER(E)

(continued)
(b) Geographical information (b)y HWEEFR
(i) Revenue from external customers from (i) KREFBEEEBIKREFZ
continuing operations WA
2015 2014
SRR I S 111 F2 2
US$’000 US$’000
E 7 o E Sy o
(Restated)
(BEF)
Mainland China Hh B K B 3,037,771 3,454,657
Vietnam o 2,012,673 1,967,350
Elsewhere e Ath 3 79,374 86,552
5,129,818 5,508,559
The revenue information shown above is based BRI A E R TR E P
on the location of the customers. o
(i) Non-current assets (i)  FnBEE
2015 2014
R R - S 111 F2 2
US$’000 US$’000
E 7 o E Sy
Mainland China o I K 1,050,217 1,000,313
Vietnam B 430,148 431,127
Elsewhere e Ath 3 5 31,680 29,520
1,512,045 1,460,960
The non-current assets information shown ERZIERE G EER G
above is based on the location of assets and FEEH A > WA B4
excludes financial instruments and deferred tax T HRERBERIEGE -
assets.
(c) Information about major customers (c) EETEEENEE

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,

there was no single external customer that contributed

10% or more of the Group’s total revenue from

continuing operations.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

[N 4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 &£ R —H4E+ A=+ —HILEE
5 REVENUE 5 KA
Revenue from continuing operations represents: (i) the HEFFEHBEETRZWATR - ()RR &
aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value- Bkt g > RIBEREREZTMEZ B
added tax and government surcharges, and after allowances HHEBRETH NGB BRE Y ERK
for goods returned and trade discounts; and (ii) rental income EHENHERA -
from investment and property holding operations.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WASHWT :
2015 2014
ZE R e S 111 F2 S
US$’000 US$’000
FFi Sy an
(Restated)
(&)
Sales of goods from: SHET MR -
China agri-food operations o R R AR SRS
— Feed business — i Bh 2 3,031,557 3,435,406
— Food business —RMEL 1,685 -
Vietnam agri-food operations R AR
— Feed business — B 26 831,558 867,373
— Farm business — I 1,129,038 1,045,610
— Food business —MEE 135,855 160,157
5,129,693 5,508,546
Rental income from investment and BERWEERERZ
property holding operations MERA 125 13
5,129,818 5,508,559
6 NET CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF 6 EYMEEAREZEHFEE
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
The Group’s net changes in fair value of biological assets KREEZ EMEREARMEZ S B FHENRER
represent the difference in fair value less costs of disposal from R -HE—HA—-HE_FZ—HHE+_H
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015. Net fair value changes =t —HZARMBEBEERARZ ZR - AR
consist of (i) realised fair value changes of US$82,351,000 M2 FEAFOR _F—HE—H—
(2014: US$74,623,000) in respect of biological assets held HREAMAEYEEZ OEBA M2 % EH
as at 1 January 2015 and (ii) unrealised fair value changes in 8,235. 1/ K0 (ZF —IU4E : 7,462.3H3570)
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of disposal as at RV —-F—HET+_H=1+—HUARE
31 December 2015 of US$89,305,000 (2014: US$83,910,000). B R A B B B A B R 2 R LA R fE
Z 518,930,583 50 (ZF— U4 : 8,391.08
FIB) o
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2015 E_F—HAE T _H=1—HILEE
7 OTHER INCOME, NET 7 HW A F5
An analysis of other income from continuing operations, net is RS EEZ BB AFHEIHWMT :
as follows:
2015 2014
e S K2 ZE A
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve For T T
(Restated)
(RH#HF)
Bank interest income SRAT R B A 4,428 5,617
Other interest income HAb A B A 6,010 6,481
Rental income MERA 2,442 2,500
Government grants BT Hi Bh 3,808 5,779
Gain on relocation of factories TR 4 2B W 2 17,785 -
Income from sales of consumables and S B REM T B A AR
packaging materials WA 3,745 3,201
Net changes in fair value of derivative mESm TR A RME
financial instruments 5 B AR 2,009 (709)
Net changes in fair value of investment S 2g /B TN WIER 4 1R IE i
properties (note 16) (B E16) (1,675) (618)
Gain on disposal of land lease prepayments H £ 7 £ + M fll B & Z W 2 1,025 -
Foreign exchange differences, net A BT 55 2% BT (9,811) (3,864)
Others Ho Aty 2,834 737
32,600 19,124
Government grants included above are subsidies or incentives e e R A B T B O A A T A v R R 3 Rk
from the government in respect of certain investments of B EE RS TR EZ sk 3w - A
the Group in the agricultural industry and areas promoted I 25 BT A B S 20 AT ART 7 R B AT B A6 A ik ek
by the government in mainland China. There are no A EHIE o A B 2 W R R 2 B W B Al
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants. N EM B RN ECESEEEWA RN (M
Government grants received for which related expenditure has 30/%32) o
not yet been undertaken are included in deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position (notes 30 and
32).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 #E R —HE - H =+ — H ILFJE
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 B 7% B AR
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as HHERBEERZMBERARSHWT
follows:
2015 2014
e S 2 ZER A
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve FoTTx
(Restated)
(RH#HF)
Interest expense on bank borrowings HATR R Z P B EH 55,252 59,306
Less: Interest expense capitalised™ W : A B 2 B Ak (16,131) (10,126)
39,121 49,180
* The interest expense was capitalised at a rate of 3.3% — 8.5% * F) B 2 & AL G 3% 4 R #3.3%%8.5%
per annum (2014: 3.5% — 10.3%). (ZF—PY4E 1 35%F10.3%) 515 -
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2015 E_F—HAE T _H=1—HILEE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9 FR B4 Al % R
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is AEIMFHEB S EHZ B REA L~
arrived at after charging/(crediting): (FFA) T4 -
2015 2014
e S K2 ZE A
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt 7t E Ve E T n
(Restated)
(RH#HF)
Cost of inventories sold O &7 8 A 4,225,347 4,652,765
Depreciation of property, LE BN &
plant and equipment Z i # 15 75,868 67,305
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TEAF 1 b A 2 17 3,117 2,587
Depreciation of biological assets stated i WA U R wE R K
at cost less accumulated depreciation WAEBE KRR Z
and impairment G YT 18 26,623 29,779
Amortisation of intangible assets 90T A A 19 2,745 1,726
Impairment/(write back of impairment) JRE W B2 5 R R e,
of trade receivables, net (A T 43 ) ¥ % 26(a) 5,335 (71)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEW¥E - BB R
plant and equipment, net (Me2k) i 18 # (486) 489
Minimum lease payments of leasehold E LR - BB
land and properties, plant and BRI REeMEZ
machinery under operating lease T (KA B A k4 45,688 39,953
Auditors’ remuneration A% BRI T 4 1,958 1,658
Foreign exchange differences, net A s BT A = BL 9,811 3,864
Employee benefit expenses (including fé B A i (G
directors’ emoluments — note 10): 4 — B 5110)
— Wages, salaries and benefits - L& HekIEHE
in kind F 25 320,566 307,238
— Pension scheme contributions — IR IR &tk 26,383 23,429
346,949 330,667
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% E B &R 2

Notes to Financial Statements

10

B

B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 WME _F—HAET A=+ —H L4
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10 EE=EME
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) MR BRG] E383 ()R AT (EEE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the 1A 2GR B E AR E o I A bk
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits scheme
Fees in kind contribution Bonus Total
Him
HEHE S Rk Bk &
s Hes 3% 1 & M
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000
Wit FL T Eyon Eywn EL T Eyan
Year ended 31 December 2015 REZZ-NK
FIAZFHEEE
Executive directors: AEF:
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont B R - 1,179 - - 1,179
Mr. Adirek Sripratak b 3%y e - - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi EHR G E (ii) - 246 - - 246
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HE AR - - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HEFEE - 801 10 322 1,133
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg - 563 - 74 637
Mr. Anan Athigapanich BEREA - 832 - 129 961
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont A - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan® 1 - - - - -
- 3,621 10 525 4,156
Non-executive directors: FUTES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont By A - - - - -
Mr. Yoichi Tkezoe iR~k (i) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B FFHITHEE
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew B 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isres 2 2 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda ThanitculJ6 4 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej & 4 31 - - - 31
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon &: 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ emoluments HFHEMA A 155 3,621 10 525 4,311
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b #% BB B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2015 #E _~F—H4FE+ _H=1+—HIL4EE

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10 ESME (&)

Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits scheme
Fees in kind contribution Bonus Total
HE
R Rk Bk
e Hafs fit s 185 Eab
Note Uss 000 Uss 000 Uss’ooo Uss 000 Us$ 000

Wit Frtr o ErTr KT FILTI KT

Year ended 31 December 2014 REZR—NE
FIZAZT—HIERE
Executive directors: AHEF:
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont R A - 1,174 - - 1,174
Mr. Adirek Sripratak b3y A - - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi ERRELE (ii) - 532 - 113 645
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont A AR - - - - -
M. Bai Shanlin HERLLE - 57 8 320 1,085
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Ji 2 - 563 - 4 637
Mr. Anan Athigapanich BEREE - 840 - 128 968
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont A A - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan & £ - - - - -
- 3,866 8 635 4509
Non-executive director: FHfTES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont WA - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BV BT E S ¢
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew B A 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-istes Sombat Deo-isres2 4 31 = = - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda ThanitculJ6 4 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej & 4 31 - - - 31
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari VimooktayonZ £ 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ emoluments HEEM LA 155 3,866 8 635 4,664
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b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

10

11

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(i) Appointed as non-executive director on 15 October 2015

(ii) Resigned as executive director on 3 July 2015

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no emoluments
was paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of
office (2014: nil), and there was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2014:

nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2014: three) directors. Details of their emoluments are
set out in note 10 above. The emoluments (including salaries,
allowances and benefits in kind) of the remaining two (2014:
two) non-directors, was approximately US$2,298,000 (2014:
US$2,195,000) in total.

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

emoluments fell within the following bands is set out below:

US$1,032,000 to US$1,097,000
(equivalent to HK$8,000,001 to
HK$8,500,000) 8,500,000%5 7T )

US$1,161,000 to US$1,226,000
(equivalent to HK$9,000,001 to
HK$9,500,000) 9,500,000%5 G )

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no emoluments was

paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid employees of

the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group

as compensation for loss of office (2014: nil).

B AR

N

10

11
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(i)  RIEF-HETATLABERERIEPT
e

(i) REF—HEELASHBERTHES

REEZFR-AETF A= HIREE
AC AR VSN 06 S A I 4 AR EE S > DL ALK
AR T 7 i N A 35 R T AR R T 4 2R Al
B (ZF—PUAE : J) > 5 Sif S 3 5 g SR k]
BRI & 2 ZHF (% —PU4E : fE) -

TNBREHFMES

N LR R R B B3 (ZF— 1
AR 1 34r) FETH > HMA 2 AR Lk
FFsE10 o B F2f0 (B —DU4E « 2fr) JEH#HF
Z 4 (5T~ B & IR B &R %) L4
229.8H 350 (F — U4 : 219.58 KT5) -

B 1R 3 I 0 E R N B DA A0 o 8
mE

1,032,0003% 76 £1,097,0003% 5T
(FH 748,000,001 # 7T &

1,161,0003€ 76 % 1,226,000 76
(6 % 149,000,001 # ¢ &

2015 2014
SEEE SEWE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ELHH EAHH

1 1

1 1

REREZZ-HET A=+ HIR4H
ZA 45 A SIS 57 ARk T <6 e A S s R T O L 2
AR — AL > DL B A AR 45 ) sl A8 i A AR
VR B A s 0 e O 2 AR O AR (2 — D4
fE) o
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

INCOME TAX 12

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in
Hong Kong during the year (2014: nil).

The subsidiaries operating in mainland China and Vietnam
are subject to income tax at the rate of 25% (2014: 25%)
and 22% (2014: 22%) respectively on their taxable income
according to the PRC and Vietnam corporate income tax laws.
In accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations in
the PRC and Vietnam, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the

PRC and Vietnam enjoy various income tax exemptions or

FriEm

PSR [ TP A A B R A A A W AT o E R
WA > Bt DA AR T AR 47 JBE P9 AR A s ) 44 B 8%
(ZF P4 - 4E) -

R o 13 K e b i A SR R R BB >
Hh 588 2 B R O W) Tk R R M A 43
FERLR25% (ZB— WA 2 25%) Jk22% (ZF
—PUAE 2 22%) SRR BT AL o KRB v I M e
Z B L S ) B ) o A AR [ o I R e
M Z % T B 2 7 2 T s O AR 2

reductions.
2015 2014
“E LA TR
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T Eyarn
(Restated)
(BEF)
Current — mainland China P NG N
Charge for the year N 61,238 57,248
Over-provision in prior years A4 252 (7,099) (5,594)
Current — Vietnam NG g
Charge for the year NGy 30,065 11,819
Under-provision in prior years AR FHR - 201
Deferred (note 33) AEJE (P 3E33) 7,772 19,033
Total tax expense from continuing AAEBEAR B R R R
operations for the year Z BiIE A8 S 91,976 82,707
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12 INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense from continuing
operations applicable to profit before tax at the statutory
rates for mainland China and Vietnam in which the Group
principally operates to the tax expense at the effective tax
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable tax rates (i.e.

statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

A H

12 FiiS® (&)

e v 9 K e i (A 5 ) 2 B T ) #Y
A8 LA FT RS DA ROBE ARG e B R A
A8 SR BB SO RO B AR > SOl AL R (P
HREBR) BEARBRZWEELZIIWMT ¢

2015 2014
R A R
US$’000 % US$’000 %
LT FT T
(Restated)
(REF])
Profit before tax ik B i i ) 400,751 343,249
Tax expense at statutory tax rate ¥ BRI B S 88,606 22.1 75,339 219
Lower tax rates for specific provinces %45 & 24 5 Hb [ F6 % J7 A5
or enacted by local tax authority Z KRR (19,439) (4.9) (15,895) (4.6)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on %748 [ o [0 K e 2.
the distributable profit of Wt g 2 ) R A
the Group’s subsidiaries and joint 0 T
ventures in mainland China MER10%Z % 11,034 2.8 11,824 34
Effect of withholding tax on technical 17 it % & 2 1 44 Bt 5 2
service fee 6,964 1.7 7,780 2.3
Adjustments in respect of current tax  AN4E A B DA AT 4F B 0 B 7
of prior years i % (7,099) (1.7) (5,393) (1.6)
Profits and losses attributable to joint  FEAY &8 4t 3 ) I & A #
ventures and associate i ) K e 15 (2,793) (0.7) (3,183) (0.9)
Income not subject to tax JE T AL (2,258) (0.6) (232) (0.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax YT S 11,857 3.0 8,459 2.5
Tax losses not recognised A T B e 4,499 1.1 4,677 1.4
Tax losses from prior years utilised B DA AR R O (72) (0.0) - -
Others oAt 677 0.2 (669) (0.2)
Tax expense at the Group’s effective  #&A SR [ A 5B 2 51 H 1)
tax rate Bl 3 91,976 23.0 82,707 24.1
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

INCOME TAX (continued) 12

The share of income tax attributable to joint ventures
and associate from continuing operations amounting
to US$1,410,000 (2014: US$1,696,000 (restated)) and
US$4,554,000 (2014: US$3,275,000 (restated)), respectively,
are included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
and associate” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

FriEwt (|)

AREMREFEBSELEBEZIBESERER
W8 A B Z BB A 25 141.08 %0 (ZF
—DU4E 2 169.68 370 (BEF) ) K455.48 %
TG (ZF— P4 2 327,58 30 (BESH)) - Ik
ERECOAEFESET WS RN BN S
A 3 KTk A w) i A R s R ] e

DIVIDENDS 13 BE
2015 2014
RN R4
US$’°000 US$’000
BV in FL T
Interim — HK$0.017 (equivalent to rf BH 4 JBE 35 A % M
approximately US 0.219 cents) AT e B 4 S8 100179 T
(2014: HK$0.017 (equivalent to (FH 25 #10.2193541l)
approximately US 0.219 cents)) TR 0.017# 8
per ordinary share and convertible (FH AR #90.2193410) )
preference share 55,569 55,569
Special interim dividend by way of B o IR Z 4
a distribution in specie BB 151,272 -
Proposed final — HK$0.021 S R 1 Tt s
(equivalent to approximately W 40 i 45 S8 800219 5T
US 0.271 cents) (2014: HK$0.022 (FHAF A #10.2713641)
(equivalent to approximately (ZF— Y4 1 0.022%7T
US 0.284 cents)) per ordinary (FH 2 #90.2843E41l) ) @
share and convertible preference
share® 68,644 71,913
275,485 127,482
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13

14

DIVIDENDS (continued)

(1) On 17 April 2015, the board of directors of the Company
declared conditional special interim dividends of 1 CTEI
ordinary share for every 100 CPP ordinary shares held in the
Company and 1 CTEI preference share for every 100 CPP
preference shares held in the Company to CPP shareholders
on the register of members as at the close of business on
29 June 2015. Fractional entitlements were disregarded.
The entire issued share capital of CTEI was spun-off via a
distribution in specie and CTEI was separately listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3 July 2015.

Distribution of non-cash assets (which constitute a business)
that is ultimately controlled by the same parties before and
after the distribution is measured at book value of the non-

cash assets.

The net assets attributable to the distribution in specie of an
aggregate of 240,718,310 CTEI ordinary shares and 12,610,777
CTEI preference shares were US$151,272,000.

(2) The proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2015 is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
total amount of the proposed final dividend was calculated
based on the number of shares in issue on the date of this

annual report.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
and convertible preference shares used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, adjusted to reflect the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at nil
consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive share

options of the Company.

B AR

N

13

14
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RE (&)

(1)

AAFEREH R -TENA+EAE
M IRBEA VR 45 R P BB R =TT
RN U H SR ] &5 R IR 4 B AR
AT A A I ERYBER > SERRA 1008 I i
I 3 2 M T 1 I K A 3 ) B
JBe > AEFEAT 100 | e o B 8 S Jot ) 4 3%
UBEIE R A 3 B R RS i © A IR A T 1L
o ERMEEHEBH MM ORITRATE
WY IRITRA > WRZF L
= H OB S 6 A2 B AR I o

WM IR T B 4 A (A BSE T ) R 4 IR Wi
BRI A ERE DT AR SRR B e
B 2 M TH B AR -

DLEE 43 IR 7 IR B8 51240,718,3 108 1E
R A 2 o B A A e 12,610,777 IE KA 2%
1o e A 8 L 4 A Y A A 15,1272
FIC o

BRER-OET A= —HILEEZ
S R A 31 e B R M B R 4 R bR R AR
A F R e o R R B 2 UM
PR AE A CRAT IR W o

AT RREMSE z2E8REF

T B B AR ) Z T TG HEA A T B R REAG AR
A B R A AR N TR AT 0 0 B B T 4B
556 JBE T RS- 3 B o

o P 4 9 ¥ M) R TG AR 2 ] IR HE A A
A R Hai ) B AR 2 ) 98 e B T 46 JBe 8 e Fe o
ST 3 WA B o P B P 2 30 90 e S T 45 B
56 JBe 2 Jn B Y- 35 B R A T R A S ) B
B > S S W ABE B R A L B AR i i DA
FACR B ATV 3 e 2 e T 2 o
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based

on the following data:

ARFARREGEzEREN (F)

B 5 A e i P U ML DA T R R

2015 2014
I Sl N 2 R4
US$’000 US$’000
B/ n B n
(Restated)
(RH#HF)
Earnings i
Profit for the year attributable to JH R 5 S e e A K
shareholders of the Company, used B RE A 2 A ]
in the basic and diluted earnings JBe B AR A JE A 6
per share calculation, arising from: R®H
— Continuing operations — PR RS R 242,497 218,992
— Discontinuing operations - ORIEREEE 25,078 32,433
267,575 251,425
2015 2014
ZE L4 TR
Number of ordinary shares and W 38 i B T ¥ i
convertible preference shares B o it Bt
Weighted average number of ordinary FA w4 I B AR i A 2
shares and convertible preference A TBEATE B K&
shares in issue during the year, used a4 JBE B e M o R
in the basic earnings per share eIk )
calculation 25,332,914,980 25,232,151,792

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:

— Share options

V5 B 3 B

54,789,854

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares and convertible preference
shares, used in the diluted earnings

per share calculation

TS
— e

PR 5 R R 2
e B T S
T4

25,332,914,980

25,286,941,646
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 #& £ _F—HFE+_H=+—HILEE
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE- -HERRZRE
Furniture, Motor
fistures ~ vehicles and
Office Industrial Plant and and office transport  Construction
premises buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
[kl % Rk
(B %2 IEBE  RERBRE  RHARE Bt i FRIf 4
Note US§°000 US$000 US§000 US$°000 US$°000 US§000 U8§'000
h# Fifr Fifi Fifr Fifi Fifi Fifr Fifr
(notes (notes (notes (b))
(@od(d)  (bJand(c)
(Wit i W)
(R (B4
At | January 2015: i Sk iRt
Valuation i 43,086 - - - - - 43,086
Cost Wk - 520,918 597,420 129,053 31,998 385,021 1,664,410
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BHERBE - (191,937) (348,615) (75,325) (20,438) - (636,315)
Net carrying amount KidH 43,086 318,981 148,805 53,118 11,560 385,021 1,071,181
Net carrying amount: RIEFE
At 1 January 2015 e S Sl R 43,086 328,981 248,803 53,118 11,560 385,021 1,071,181
Continuing operations REERER
Additions 2 - 14872 1533 12,15 1,690 43490 289,639
Surplus on revaluation, net EidA 3,600 - - - - - 3,600
Depreciation provided during the year ERiHE g (896) (25,636) (30,701) (15,405) (3,230) - (75,868)
Transfer inf{out) B/ (h) - 121013 182,661 3,48 W (307,165) -
Transfer from investment properties Hnken 16 - 155 - - - - 155
Disposals ik - (741) (1,649) (329) (173) - (2,892)
Exchange realignment Eite (586) (18,149) (15,546) (2413) (434) (15,232) (52,360)
Discontinued operations CRILEEEN
Additions ke - 603 576 n 16 1274 2,690
Depreciation provided during the period HRiHRE - (751) (1,863) (237) (127 - (2,980)
Transker in{out) B/ (H) - 4788 (4408) (50) (29) (301) -
Disposals i - - (92) - () - (%)
Exchange realignment Eiae - 13 1 1 - j 39
Distribution n specie Kk By - (20946) (24,363) (2,293) (599) (2,570) (50971)
At31 December 015 0 o 45,004 404,200 368,575 #8713 8,914 30650 1182138
A1 December 205: S5 Y = i
Valuation i 43,204 - - - - - 4,104
Cost ik - 602,634 087,833 129,159 29,852 306,320 1,756,018
Acoumulated depreciation and impairment—— EaHTE R - (198,432) (319,278) (80,436) (20,938) - (619,084)
Net caying amount R 43,004 404202 368375 4873 8,914 30650 1182138
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #E _~F—H4FE+ _H=1+—HIL4EE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE- -BREEZE (&)
(continued)
Furniture, Motor
fixtures ~ vehicles and
Office Industrial Plant and and office transport~ Construction
premises buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
[kl %E RER
LR §i TEBT  WRRRE  REARE LT g AR it
Note Us 000 Us§ 000 US§000 Uss 000 Us§000 U000 US§000
Wit #Ffr #Efr #Ffr Ffr Efr Efr FETr
(notes (notes (notes (b))
(Wand(d)  (b) and(c))
(Wit i (W)
(k) Bk
At ] January 2014 g St g it
Valuaton [t 168 - - - - - 0,168
Cost W - 1 547999 111,556 31,360 19838 1364474
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BB R - (1713.448) (328,513) (64072) (19,200) - (585,093)
Net carrying amount il 40,168 110173 119426 41484 12,160 109838 819,349
Net carrying amount: i
At Janary 2014 RER-WE-R-H 0168 mm 19426 4144 12160 198% 819,349
Continuing operations BREREH
Additions g - 27,009 12989 15,09 2007 193078 300411
Surplus on revaluation, net afRRk 3844 - - - - - 3844
Acquisiion of a subsidiary HEmEAA - 511 191 0 1,006 17 10579
Depreciation provided during the year ERiHE y (823) (21,64) (25936) (15.498) (3410 - (67,305)
Transfer in/out) &1/ - 5011 33,657 6,897 316 (91,002) -
Transfer from investment properties Hpkank 16 - 1419 - - - - 1419
Disposals i - (404) (665) (314) (329) - (1L71)
Exchange reaignment Bt (101) (4486) (3.45) (151) (181) (5,08) (13850)
Discontinued operations CRILEEEN
Additions g - 135 1,320 466 114 1906 4941
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREA - - - (4 - - 4
Depreciation provided during the year ERaE - (1318) (3,539) (401) (251) - (5309)
Transfer n/{out) A/ () - 151 140 9l % (4.991) -
Disposals & - (6) (128) (10) - - (144)
Exchange realignment B - (268) (515) (39) ) 43) (878)
A3 December 1014 e L Y 08 38981 18805 318 11560 385001 LTL 181
At 31 December 014: REB-WEFZAZ -0
Valuaton i 1,086 - - - - - 086
Cost Wk - 50918 597410 12905 31,998 385,011 664410
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BB R - (191,937) (348,015) (15,305) (20,438) - (636,315)
Net carrying amount KiiF 43,086 328981 243,803 53,118 11,560 385,001 1,071,181
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s office premises

were stated at open market values.

Had the Group’s office premises been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount of the
premises at the end of the reporting period would have been

US$5,146,000 (2014: US$5,718,000).

The revaluation surplus of US$3,122,000 (2014:
US$3,008,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve of the

Group during the year, net of deferred tax (note 33).

At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s buildings and
machinery in mainland China with an aggregate net carrying
amount of US$4,585,000 were pledged to secure certain bank

borrowings of the Group (note 31(a)).

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s industrial buildings with
an aggregate net carrying amount of US$62,079,000 (2014:
US$48,045,000) have not yet obtained ownership certificates.

B AR

A

15
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ME - BERRE (&)

i

(a)

T IR > AL 2 v SR % 4 B
LERAN:

A AR 55 L i S A L A B Rl T
IR o M 0 R 2 MR T A E #5146
HSTE (2T — 4R 5718 %) -

WA 2EFE NI EMABG(ZFE—N
AE 1 300.8% FET0) T LAt 4 i WKL 25 HE 3R
BOPAE g BT AC S v S A A (0
R R AEBEIE) (K 5E33) ©

MR —EFZH=Z+—H > ARHEER
o e M R A A R i R
458.5 #3570 OAR B AL B T RIT %
HEA S (FFRE31()) o

WoB—FETZH=ZT—H» AEEZ
T3 M5 A R R 5 1E6,207.98 358 (=
F—PU4E 1 4,804.58 FI0) MR R E
4 o
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

Fair values are categorized into three-level fair

value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair value

measurement. The level into which a fair value

measurement is classified is determined by reference

to the observability and significance of the inputs used

in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date.

Observable inputs which fails to meet
Level 1, and not using unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for

which market data are not available.

Significant unobservable inputs.

The following table presents the fair value of the

Group’s property, plant and equipment measured at

the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,

categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as

defined in IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

15

M- BERRE (&)

ML (4)

(d)

Yo3k ~ W B B R A R EE B

(i)

AL RS

O AR AR 2 R B B 4 o U
I3SRA A Mt 2 53 Ty = AR AUN » &
Fett =z B0 43 375 27 R 46 5 8 P
JH 2 w4 A R T OK A i
R I

5B

5 AR

A

D SR
1] 3 £ TR AR
B CR AT )

viYiR=gta (SH )
BE2Y > RBAH
RIR -
A BENZBIH
A TG B T 2
W o

HAATBER 2
o

AR B R AR B Z )
3~ W T 1 AU R
ONSRAR 5 35 o B B 4 13
R AE 172 A B =R o
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

ME - BERRE (&)

MaE - (4)

(d) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (d) W~ BE Bl A R R (5)
(continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) R ARG ZRF (4F)
Fair value measurement as at 31 December categorised into
RTH-H=tT—HARMEZSHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B BB 3B=400 g
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
T FaL T FIL T FIL T
2015 R N4
Office premises [HE Y &5 - - 45,204 45,204
2014 e kD
Office premises CEI &3 - - 43,086 43,086

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.

Type Valuation technique

TR 2 185

Office premises in Hong Kong Market comparison approach
T 7o o HH VS A 35 L 3

Office premises in mainland China ~ Market comparison approach

AL P B K P T A T i 55 W

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

RESF-FERF - WEF A=
LA HE 7 o 3 95— 55— 00 2 A 2
B > SRBEASON H 50 = B0 o A B2 B
TR KT WY 2 WS

BN A = AU B AR R R B 4R
A Z Ak A T3 5 B Al 4 45 5 F B8 ) S T 98

Key unobservable inputs

FUBENZY

Estimated price of US$31,251 (2014: US$29,209)
per square metre

15775 K 2 A 5 A% 31,2516 78 (2014: 29,209 78)

Estimated price of US$6,799 (2014: US$6,448)
per square metre

8P 7 k2 Al sHE#S6,799FE 7T (2014: 6,448357C)
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment

(continued)

(ii)

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Office premises of the Group were revalued based on
valuations performed by Castores Magi (Hong Kong)
Limited, a firm of external independent and qualified
valuers. The Group’s finance team has discussions
with the valuers on the valuation assumptions and
results once a year when the valuation is performed

for annual financial reporting.

The fair value of the office premises in Hong Kong
and mainland China are determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent quotation
or sales prices of comparable properties on a price per

square metre basis.
A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price

per square metre would result in a significant increase/

decrease in the fair value of the office premises.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Mt (A7)
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(ii)

2 B B s A B9 O S AR A (A])

A =R A A 2 B R

AL B SE T A AT AR R
B3 (W) A IRAF (—F bbb
8 7 e A R Al R AR IR B 2y
F) AR Z APl O o B4R PRAR
SO 75 7 TR AT 40 SE AN I > AR
V9 2 A 75 VA 44 i LGP Al B i L
WA B AR e AR o

R 8 e v K B 1 R SR T
A RAETIIET B R EEE > 2%
SV AP0 S 1 20 90 A0 o 5 T (P
TiKk) o

TPk Z AR R R BT
THREEIEMT ZARMEKR
LRk -
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16 BREWHE

2015 2014
SEoEE SEWE
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt it F T FL T
Carrying amount at 1 January B—H—H ZRmE 18,927 29,537
Continuing operations FEREER
Net changes in fair value 2 Sl 5% B 7 (1,675) (618)
Transfer to owner-occupied properties wWE g % 15 (155) (1,419)
Exchange realignment [EE 5, 39 4 (732) (311)
Discontinued operations ORI EE
Disposal of subsidiaries Hh B B & 2 ) - (8,257)
Exchange realignment i 5, ) 2 - (5)
Carrying amount at 31 December B+ H=+—HZEHE 16,365 18,927
Notes: Wik :
(a) All investment properties of the Group are situated in (a) RS -LE 3Nl N

mainland China.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurements of investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.

16

REWE (&)

ML - (#)
(b)  BEWHRNGA MR
(i) ARMEZ RS

TR ARG 2 1
Y SEIRFF IR FH R A A
342 0 B B o 4 ) 13 SR AV
172 S T = AR

Fair value measurement as at 31 December categorised into

RTZH=+—HARMGEZ 58

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
58— 3| W= A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FoLF FILF FoLF o FoLF o
2015 SR A
Investment properties HEWE - - 16,365 16,365
2014 &g
Investment properties "Gy E - - 18,927 18,927

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of reporting period used in the

valuation models.
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BEZZ-hERZE-NETT
A=A —HIRE R > W EEE— T
SN Z T2 R A S
W =AU o ACAR I 2 BUR TR $
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE
16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Fair value measurements of investment properties (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Type Valuation technique

g 0l 87 2%

Factories and farms in mainland China

AR Hh K B R R ¢ o i 57 L

Commercial buildings in mainland China ~ Market comparison approach

A 7% o KB T i35 o e

Residential buildings in mainland China

AR P K B R B A i 85 b

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Investment properties of the Group were revalued
based on valuations performed by Castores Magi
(Hong Kong) Limited and Beijing Huadeheng Assets
Evaluation Co., Ltd., firms of external independent
and qualified valuers. The Group’s finance team
has discussions with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and results once a year when the

valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The fair value of the investment properties are
determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent quotation or sales prices of
comparable properties on a price per square metre

basis.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price
per square metre would result in a significant increase/

decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
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Market comparison approach

Market comparison approach

BEW= (H)
Wit : (A1)
(b) By A R R (6D

(i) AR Z RS (H)

Key unobservable inputs

AT BERS Y

Estimated price of US$4 - US$303 (2014: US$8 - US$532) per
square metre

BV IR A 43878 — 3035600 (ZF— 4 : 83678~ 532
%70)

Estimated price of US$420 — US$479 (2014: US$464 - US$530)
per square metre

BT IR 2 Al AR 42098 T8 — 4795670 (2 —TU 4R = 4643
J6— 5303 76)

Estimated price of US$5,442 (2014: US$5,545) per square metre
TP )k Z M AR5 4423800 (Z R — 04 ¢ 55455 70)

(i) HHB=ZRG A A G 22 G R

AR B 2 B S A AT AR
3% 18 () A R A ) KAkt 3
AR 7 AN A R A T (3% p Sb
F8 8 S T A A AL R g
al) B AR Z wR AN BEE o AR AR R
SV 25 7 T AT 0 S A W 5 AR
VB 2 B 75 VA B 349 i LRl B i L
FTAR A8 % T A R o

B Z o AL TS 1 3 BT
BEE > 275 U0 26 A9 e
B (P I7K) -

TP IRZAFHEA I E R BT
TR EBHREMEZ ARMBEK
b T
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS

17 FANLHBEE

2015 2014
“E LA ZR 4
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt ik F I F T B nan
Carrying amount at 1 January #—H— H R A 65,030 58,293
Continuing operations FEREER
Acquisition of subsidiaries WL Sk B JE 2 ] - 9,271
Additions NE 57,471 11,156
Amortisation provided during the year LN e 9 (3,117) (2,587)
Disposal & (4,965) (10,049)
Exchange realignment FEE b, i (4,474) (1,002)
Discontinued operations DRI EEY
Amortisation provided during the B4 DY ET 4R
period/year (17) (35)
Exchange realignment P 5, 3 4 1 (17)
Distribution in specie B4k 37 (1,055) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+_H=+—HEm{HE 108,874 65,030
Current portion included in prepayments, &R IER - %4 &
deposits and other receivables At WA B 2 =2 9 T 5B 4 (3,126) (2,537)
Non-current portion I 7% B &R 4 105,748 62,493
Analysis of leasehold land 18 5% AL B 4 b Pr AE A B
by location: AW .
Mainland China o K B 100,782 56,403
Vietnam L 8,092 8,627
108,874 65,030
Note: it -

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s leasehold land with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately US$11,723,000 (2014:
US$2,586,000) were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the
Group (note 31(a)).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

[N 4 B & R A A
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 R E - F—HHE+_H=+—H L4
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 18 4XYEE
Current Other
Breeders livestock — biological
and layers swine assets Total
BFEEE BEHNEE- Aty
REH i EWEE )
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Mt Em FILF e FEF FFi
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Hit(a) (W7 (b)) (Hiit(c)
At 1 January 2015: R-F—h%—H—H:
At cost less accumulated A B FT T R
depreciation and impairment:
Cost BAR 84,041 - 27,943 111,984
Accumulated depreciation R R
and impairment (20,965) - - (20,965)
63,076 - 27,943 91,019
At fair value less costs of disposal A RAE TR B AR - 252,086 - 252,086
63,076 252,086 27,943 343,105
Net carrying amount: R R A
At 1 January 2015 R_-F—HHE—~F—H 63,076 252,086 27,943 343,105
Increase due to purchases/raising TR B/ 4% 7 38 A 60,997 704,541 156,416 921,954
Net changes in fair value less A R BR B R A
costs of disposal BE B - 6,954 - 6,954
Depreciation provided FENEHRTE
during the year 9 (26,623) - - (26,623)
Decrease due to sales PRI 84 B 1 i (4,907) (675,575) (157,206) (837,688)
Decrease due to culling PRl J S 1 i (26,834) (15,214) - (42,048)
Exchange realignment [HE B 3 (3,145) (12,474) (1,344) (16,963)
At 31 December 2015 RER-HEFZA=ZH 62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
At 31 December 2015: RZB—HEFZA=Z+—H:
At cost less accumulated DENTESEE YT
depreciation and impairment:
Cost B 83,094 - 25,809 108,903
Accumulated depreciation R Rk g
and impairment (20,530) - - (20,530)
62,564 - 25,809 88,373
At fair value less costs of disposal W AL TR B AR - 260,318 - 260,318
62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
Analysed into: AHWE
Current biological assets A A 13,083 260,318 25,809 299,210
Non-current biological assets JEH W4 o 49,481 - - 49,481
62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
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Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk M R
Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18 4£YEE (&)
Current Other
Breeders livestock- biological
and layers swine assets Total
HFHEE  EHBE- N )
&g BE g E At
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
M FILFT F T FFI FrFI
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Hit(a) (H#E(h)) (M k()
At 1 January 2014: RE-F—N4E—H—H:
At cost less accumulated JA YR, B A R A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost BAR 83,874 - 31,925 115,799
Accumulated depreciation R E R
and impairment (20,651) - - (20,651)
63,223 - 31,925 95,148
At fair value less costs of disposal AR FIE B A - 232,330 - 232,330
63,223 232,330 31,925 327,478
Net carrying amount: JRTH A
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—W4—HA—H 63,223 232,330 31,925 327,478
Increase due to purchases/raising PR B/ 44 95,374 730,953 298,393 1,124,720
Net changes in fair value less A SR B R A
costs of disposal SEE A - 9,287 - 9,287
Depreciation provided FNERYTE
during the year 9 (29,779) - - (29,779)
Decrease due to sales PR 8 % i (38,229) (686,327) (301,947) (1,026,503)
Decrease due to culling 1Al 5 i (26,597) (30,573) - (57,170)
Exchange realignment E . 4% (916) (3,584) (428) (4,928)
At 31 December 2014 REF-WEFZA=—H 63,076 252,086 27.943 343,105
At 31 December 2014: REZB—WEFZA=ZF—H
At cost less accumulated JA i 2R A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost A 84,041 - 27,943 111,984
Accumulated depreciation R Rk g
and impairment (20,965) - - (20,965)
63,076 - 27,943 91,019
At fair value less costs of disposal A RAEIRIE B AR - 252,086 - 252,086
63,076 252.086 27,943 343,105
Analysed into: AHWE
Current biological assets EHEMEE 15,478 252,086 27,943 295,507
Non-current biological assets e A 47,598 - - 47,598
63,076 252.086 27,943 343,105
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

18 BIOL

Notes:

(a)

OGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Breeders and layers

Breeders and layers of the Group are (i) sows and boars
(collectively “swine breeders”) held for the production
of piglets for sales and/or further raising to become swine
parent stock or fattening pigs, (ii) chicken breeders held
for production of hatching eggs in order to produce day-old

chicks, and (iii) layers held for the production of consumable

eggs.

Breeders and layers are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses as (i)
they are not sold by the Group and no active market exists;
(ii) other references to market prices such as market prices
for similar assets are not available; and (iii) valuation based
on a discounted cash flow method is considered unreliable
given the uncertainty with respect to external factors, such as

climate and mortality rates, etc.

Cost includes all costs incurred during the growth cycle (e.g.
cost of new born animals, feed costs and farmer fees). Swine
breeders are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their productive period of 24 to 36 months starting from
the reproduction phase, while chicken breeders and layers
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
productive period of 12 months, both taking into account a

residual value.

B AR

A
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(d)

Current livestock — swine

Current livestock — swine are piglets and fattening swines and
are stated at fair value less costs of disposal. Fair values are
determined based on prevailing transaction prices, and where
transaction prices are not available for certain age groups,
based on prevailing transaction prices of other age groups,

with adjustments taking into account difference in weight.

Other biological assets

Other biological assets comprise poultry and aquatic livestock

other than breeders and layers.

Poultry livestock are pullets, broilers and hatching eggs,
while aquatic livestock comprise shrimp and fish. Poultry and
aquatic livestock are stated at cost less any impairment losses,
which are not materially different from their fair value due to

short production cycle.

An analysis of the estimates of physical quantities of the
Group’s biological assets as at the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

BE
IKE

Livestock

Aquatic

The estimates of physical quantities of biological assets were
based on experience and historical data. The Group conducts
full physical count in swine farms by rotation to ascertain
the quantity and physical condition of swine and project the
overall weight. For poultry livestock, the Group performs real
time update on stock movement to project the overall weight.
For aquatic livestock, the Group uses sampling method to

project the overall weight.

18 4£YMEE (&)

ML - (#)

(b)

(d)
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Z) UM 3 7% 8 T ek 1Y 28 I AR EE o

Hoflu A= ¥ e

Fo A 24 4y 1 44 B R A T A DAAb
AR B Sk

REOIEAEEA - AR > KA
B R T o G B K A R IR AT ] 93
A B MR > 36 EL o A 7 ST L B L AR
TR AT 2R 90 ML L L N e K 5
il e

A SR [ 7 3 AT 2 A Y I R
i E

2015 2014
SR e S 111 E2 2
Tons Tons

L3 g
199,000 177,000
15,000 11,000

ARG T 0 2y R R 2 At D R
AR I T B S MR o ARAR A B 0 R AT
T PR B > DL S R A A O RO
Te Al LA T A o AR P S 5 A PR S ) O
A7 B IR BEHT DA A 57 LA T R o AR K
FEA A R T R A BT 8 AR A SRR o
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b#% EH B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18 4£YEE (E)
Notes: (continued) Mk o (%)
(e) Fair value measurement of biological assets (e) A B A A R
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) BRAEZ R

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s biological assets measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS

13 Fair value measurement.

RSN RA L 2 424
AR UL R A R E > I
42 o i B o 4 S 13 45 A A
ZREF s A o

Fair value measurement as at 31 December categorised into

RTZH=+—HARMGEZ 58

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5 — 80 iy W= ok
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FL i FoLF FoLFo FoLF o
2015 —EHE
Current livestock — Swine HEHBE-mE - - 260,318 260,318
2014 TR
Current livestock — Swine HEHBE - = — 252,086 252,086

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Type Valuation technique

A i 5 ¥

Current livestock — swine Market comparison approach
HHBE-RE TG Lg%

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of current livestock — swine is
performed by the Group’s relevant finance department
and operations team on a quarterly basis using a series

of systematic procedures.

There is an active market for live swine in Vietnam.
The fair value of suckling swine, weanling swine and
fattening swine are determined based on transaction

price per head and their weight.

The estimated fair value of swine increases/decreases
as a result of an increase/decrease in the transaction
price. As at 31 December 2015, if transaction price
increases/decreases by 10%, the estimated fair
value of swine would have increased/decreased by

US$25,586,000 (2014: US$24,394,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

£YEE (&)
Wik : (49)
() EHIYEAEMA R R (8D

(i) AL Z HA ()

Key unobservable inputs

A BN S Y

Transaction prices of:

- Suckling swine US$57.8 to US$67.8 (2014: US$60.8 to
US$71.3) per head

- Weanling swine US$61.6 to US$105.6 (2014: US$88.6 to
US$135.8) per head

- Fattening swine US$2.0 to US$2.2 (2014: US$2.3 to US$2.4)
per kg

oMk

- IURAEST8FICECT 8T (ZF A : (0.8FILETLS
%)

- MEREH61.OFETLEI05.6K T (ZF— 4 88.6F LR
135.8%7t)

- FRREEATLOELELIEI (2B A 13K H 4
%)

(i)  AHE=ZRA ARG EZ EF

EHBE -—HEIARETINEF
P AR 452 A 50 B 85 ) % 8 U T B
W—RVA RE R REATAGE -

L B A A R T R o LA -
INEE % T R 2 O SO A T AR 95 4 B
28 Gy AR B T A T FHESE o

T A R A S B 28 5 R 1Y
LT T BT T e R F
—HiETZAZ=ZT—H  BRZ S
ks BT F10% » FEERA R
A EHS BT T #k2,558.68 3600
(= —PY4E : 2,439 48 3K50) -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2015 R E - F—HHE+_H=+—H L4
19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 HEFREE
2015 2014
SEoEE SEWE
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt 7t F T F T
At 1 January: m—H—H:
Cost BRAR 40,242 -
Accumulated amortisation AT ey (1,710) -
Net carrying amount R T Y 38,532 —
Net carrying amount: W T R
At 1 January w—H—H 38,532 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WA i B JBE A ) - 40,763
Amortisation provided during the year AR E R 4 S 9 (2,745) (1,7206)
Exchange realignment [EE 56, i 3% (1,618) (505)
At 31 December wR+=H=+—H 34,169 38,532
At 31 December: R+_H=+—H:
Cost BAR 38,460 40,242
Accumulated amortisation BE R (4,291) (1,710)
Net carrying amount HE T E 34,169 38,532
Notes: Wik :

The Group’s intangible asset represents customer relationship of

the Group which is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “selling and

distribution costs” in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2015 E_F—HAE T _H=1—HILEE
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RMEARMER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as FEREMBARZHEBENT ¢
follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value attributable equity Principal
registration of issued and interest held by activities
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Group
L) A CETR TR A ¥ A TR 4 bl
A B FIgY I NTTR R Ay ] AEH FEEH
CP China Investment Limited ~ Cayman Islands/ US$79,228,000 100.0% 100.0% Investment
Hong Kong 79,228,00054 76 holding
PR R B
Chia Tai (China) Investment PRC/PRC US$196,695,333 - 100.0% Investment
Co., Led. @ i 196,695,333 78 holding and
ERCPE) &R AR trading of
raw materials
Bl ek
R RE 5
Chengdu Chia Tai Company PRC/PRC US$6,300,000 - 70.0% Manufacture
Limited (i g 6,300,0003% 70 and sale of
BB IE KA BR 2 ] i) animal feed
7 5 8 & R
Fuzhou Da Fu Company PRC/PRC US$9,139,297 - 100.0% Manufacture
Limited FE, 9,139,297 7t and sale of
M KA RA R animal feed
7 5 8 % R
Huludao Chia Tai Husbandry PRC/PRC RMB28,100,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
Co., Led. @ R, 28,100,000\ R ¥ and sale of
HESIERER animal feed
HFRAR® 7 5 7 R

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

-2 -1 F F &



158

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4
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B A R 2

Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company name

kA

Inner Mongolia Chia Tai

Co., Ltd. @

P 3 TE KA AT )

Kumming Chia Tai

Co., Ltd. @

B W IE KA PR R )

Lanzhou Chia Tai Co., Ltd
M 1E KA R 2 ] @)

Nanning Chia Tai Animal
Husbandry Company

Limited ™

FI S IE K& AR A A

Qingdao Chiatai Agricultural
Development Co., Ltd.

HRIEXRERRARAFY

Shaanxi Chia Tai Co., Ltd. )
BV 1E KA B4 A )

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
313 R

PRC/PRC
I

PRC/PRC
v

PRC/PRC
R

PRC/PRC
v

PRC/PRC
I

PRC/PRC
W

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital
C#IT R

289 72 JB A i A

US$8,190,700
8,190,7003 78

US$6,405,300
6,405,3003 70

US$14,953,000
14,953,0003 50

US$6,774,500
6,774,5003 7¢

US$12,025,800
12,025,800

US$6,729,100
6,729,100 75

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

20

B

RKE AT RS ()

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by
Company Group

WA 45 41 e 4 JL
ARl A

- 90.4% ©

- 92.4%Y

- 90.6% @

- 91.6%

- 100.0%

- 96.0% @

Principal

activities

EREH

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

T 8 % 7 R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

T B 8 7 R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

E 8 41 7 L

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

P B 5 7 DR

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

T B 5 7 R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

T 8 5 7 R
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

20

RKE AR RS (&)

Place of Percentage of

incorporation/ Nominal value attributable equity Principal
registration of issued and interest held by activities

Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Group

33 R 8T R JRE A 5 4 TR HE 43 1E
VTR B B B0 R B A i A P N/ AR FEEH
Shanxi Chia Tai Company PRC/PRC US$11,673,200 - 59.9% Manufacture
Limited (" it 11,673,200% 78 and sale of
1 VG IE KA R A B animal feed
i S 2 B
Tianjin Chiatai Feed Tech PRC/PRC US$23,812,500 - 100.0% Manufacture
Co., Ltd. i 23,812,500% 78 and sale of
REIE KRR B A R AR animal feed
i B 2 5 B
Urumgi Chia Tai Animal PRC/PRC RMB34,250,000 - 93.4% ® Manufacture
Husbandry Co., Ltd. @ H 34,250,000 \ R and sale of
BBATIEXEN animal feed
A RRA R 2 B 2 B
Wuhan Chia Tai Co., Ltd. ™ PRC/PRC US$3,750,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
A R AT H 3,750,000 JC and sale of
animal feed
7 5 8 & R
Xiangyang Chai Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB97,900,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
FRIE KA R A el 97,900,000 A\ R and sale of
animal feed
7 5 8 & R
Chia Tai Food Enterprise PRC/PRC US$117,460,000 - 100.0% Manufacture and
(Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd. ¢ i, 117,460,00034 76 sale of value-added,
EXEREE(RES) processed food
FRAR® A 838 H
T
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

8

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

20

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company name

kA

Chia Tai Food Enterprise
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd
ERE A%
(F &) ARAR

C.P. Food (Xiangyang)
Co. Ltd. @

ERR (L)
HRAY

Jilin Chia Tai Food
Co. Ltd. @

CLYPN 1
HR A

Modern State Investments
Limited

C.P. Vietnam Corporation
(“CPVC”)

Hannick Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
313 R
BB

PRC/PRC
I

PRC/PRC
B

PRC/PRC
B

British Virgin
Island/Hong Kong
e B AL TR
TR/

Vietnam/

Vietnam

LR

Hong Kong/
Hong Kong

(VR

¥ B B & R 2

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital
C#IT R

289 72 JB A i A

US$85,700,000
85,700,0003 7&

RMB380,000,000
380,000,000 A R

RMB185,394,790
185,394,790 \ R ¥

US$106,984,000
106,984,0003 76

VND
1,741,792,500,000
1,741,792,500,000

B E

2 Shares
2B Ay

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

20

RKE AT RS ()

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by
Company Group

WA 45 41 e 4 JL
ARl A

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

100.0% 100.0%

- 70.8%

- 100.0%

Principal

activities

EREH

Manufacture and
sale of value-added,
processed food

A 4 4
T

Manufacture and
sale of value-added,
processed food

A 4 4
T

Manufacture and
sale of value-added,
processed food

A 4 4
nT A

Investment
holding and
provision of

technical
services
RGERR
2 B 45 1l i 25

Integrated
agri-food
business
AR
1 BT

Property

investment

RSy
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20

(i) The Group is only entitled to 85% of the subsidiary’s
earnings. The remaining 15% is attributable to the PRC joint

venture partner.

(ii) The Group is only entitled to 87.15% of the subsidiary’s
earnings. The remaining 12.85% is attributable to the PRC

joint venture partner.
(iii)  Established as a contractual joint venture under PRC law.
(iv)  Established as a cooperative joint venture under PRC law.

(v) Established as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC

law.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the Group’s
profits and losses or formed a substantial portion of the Group. To
give details of all the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

RKE AR RS (&)

KR (A M A R 285% >
B Z15% B & AT A

AREEEREEZELBMZ87.15% »
HpZ12.85%8 H &% AN -

Herp Bk R A R AR o

e o 0 W RO B A AL A 3 o

e BE AR N R B R A3 o

R B B R Z A 4 E A R > R
Hy > B BACAE B SR AR S A AR
MR ER Ay o HEAE R o B BT A Al B A
] A A R B BRI R TR -

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 REELENER
2015 2014
G S XS e S UK
Notes US$’°000 US$’000
g3 FLF FErL T
Investments in joint ventures, REBEEERLRE
included in non-current assets: BERIEREEEN :
Share of net assets FEAG 5 A (a) 19,669 90,903
Due from joint ventures, included JE W A B K OE
in prepayments, deposits and AR A IR
other receivables 52 4 T At JHE WS HR 2K 27(a) 195 125
Due to joint ventures, included JE AT 8 A 3K E >
in other payables and accruals A B Al JRE A TR 3k
R #E A 30(a) (10,530) (6,416)
Interests in joint ventures A A SR R 9,334 84,612
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

21

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 REELXENER (E)
(continued)
Notes: Mt
(a) The Group has interests in a number of joint ventures, none (a) AR RGBT R > M RAE
of which is regarded as individually material. The following ] J8 3 — R TR o T ME Al DUAE 25
table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all PR ZENmEIRERNAEESEZ Y
individually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for BER A .
using the equity method:
Other Total
Carrying  Profit for the comprehensive comprehensive
amount period/year income income
WRWAE AW AEmA M Emiks 2 mREE A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FaL T LT LT T FIL T
2015 e
Group effective interest A4 WA ROE A
- Continuing operations — BB 19,669 3,679 (873) 2,806
— Discontinued operations - ORI EEE - 1,581 (1,057) 524
19,669 5,260 (1,930) 3,330
2014 e ke
Group effective interest AR A OB B
— Continuing operations — R 19,291 4,063 (316) 3,747
— Discontinued operations —BRILREER 71,612 17,607 (248) 17,359
90,903 21,670 (564) 21,106

(b)

The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances
with joint ventures are disclosed in note 26(c) and 29 to the

financial statements, respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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b E B E R 2 A

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

21

Particulars of the joint ventures, which are indirectly

held by the Company, are as follows:

Company name

2wl 44

Beijing Chia Tai Feedmill
Limited

U IE KA B PR 7

Handan Chia Tai Feed
Co., Ltd.
6 6 TE K A BHA B A F]

Henan East Chia Tai Co., Ltd.

I T T IE R R A A

Jilin Chia Tai Enterprise
Co., Ltd.
HARIERE A A F

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
BRLY A

o B

PRC/PRC
v

PRC/PRC
HE

PRC/PRC
HE

PRC/PRC
HE

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital
(=% E e
R e AR i A

US$5,000,000
5,000,0003% 7

RMB11,200,000
11,200,000 A\ R ¥

US$5,400,000
5,400,000 ¢

RMB70,000,000
70,000,000 A\ F& ¥

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

REEhENES (H)

ML (4)

(c) HARAE MEREZ G 8 AEFHWT -
Percentage of
RAEASL
Interest
attributable to Profit Principal
the Group sharing activities
A 4R W
JRE Al HE 25 JRE A 2 A FEEH
50% 50% Manufacture
and sale of
animal feed
JE 8 85 & R
50% 50% Manufacture
and sale of
animal feed
J2E S 8 7 R
50% 50% Manufacture
and sale of
animal feed
2E S 8 7 R
50% 50% Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S 84 5 5 Bk
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 WME _F—HAET A=+ —H L4
22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 REEATNESR
2015 2014
“E—HAE R4
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt 7t F T F T
Investments in associates, P AR B
included in non-current assets: BERERBEEN :
Share of net assets JRE A 5 (a) 48,200 57,988
Due from associates, included in JRE WA WG 2 O\ W) KA
prepayments, deposits and 5 R BT IR
other receivables 122 4 e At JE WOHR K 27(a) - 2,890
Due to associates, included in JRE 45} Tgh 75 N W) 3K TE >
other payables and accruals A3 B Al JRE A MR K
KR E A 30(a) (43) -
Interests in associates T WG 2 O\ =) W RE 25 48,157 60,878
Notes: /iFia
(a) The Group has interests in a number of associates, none of (a) 4R A R B s A R A RE RS o MR

which is regarded as individually material. The following
table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all
individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using

the equity method:

o 8 3 — FRBAR T MBI K o T AR DA
R 25 1 5 MR 2 18 ) i 5 B K I 2 8 )
Z B R A

Other Total
Carrying  Profit for the comprehensive comprehensive
amount period/year income income
WRWEAE AW AEmA b Emidki: 2 mRE A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FILFIC FTF T 5 an FILFIT
2015 RN
Group effective interest A AR A 2R B
— Continuing operations — PR R 48,200 11,352 (2,127) 9,225
— Discontinued operations —-CRIEREEE - 1,877 21 1,898
48,200 13,229 (2,106) 11,123
2014 SR A
Group effective interest NSRRI
— Continuing operations —FRERE Y 38,975 10,895 (666) 10,229
— Discontinued operations —BRILREER 19,013 9,682 (260) 9,422
57,988 20,577 (926) 19,651
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes: (continued)

22

(b) The Group’s trade receivable balances due from the associates

are disclosed in note 26(c) to the financial statements.

(c) Particulars of the associate, which is indirectly held by the

Company, are as follows:

Company name

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

Nominal value
of issued and

paid-up capital

LR L S EEP
AR BENS 850 I A i
Conti Chia Tai International Limited* Hong Kong/PRC HK$3,122,000
R H T K I W A R ) B/ 3,122,000% 7t
* Since the Group is not in a position to exercise joint

control over the economic activity of the entity and

the Group has significant influence over the entity,

the Group’s interests therein are classified as interests

in associates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

RBE QTR NERS (&)

ML - (#)

A4 [ B A W) 2 B B IR KR T
e I T A 2 MRk 26 (o) P 4k R -

B2 A R A Z B A R R AR

Percentage of

FHEXL
Interest
attributable to Profit Principal
the Group sharing activities
AL
JEE A B £ JE A 38 1 EEEH
50% 50% Investment
holding, and
manufacture
and sale of
animal feed
BERR &
7 3 5 7 B R

HA A 518 B R B3 5% 8 W) 2 1 S 4
AT 0 3 I 2 ) DA B A 4 T 3
CEE SN2 Vil s S i
2 1 B S TS M O W I A o
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 WME _F—HAET A=+ —H L4
23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23 O#EEZRE
2015 2014
S
US$’000 US$’000
E 7 o F T T
Unlisted equity investments, at cost T ZRERBRE » A
(note) (P 5E) 8,435 8,826
Note: Mt it

The unlisted equity investments are not stated at fair value but at cost
because they do not have a quoted market price in an active market,

the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for these

% S TR RR B T HRIR AT IR A S
T VR T 355 i i 455 N 406 i 3 AR Bk S %
A B E 2 T TR A0 T R DA % A A B

investments and the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be PSS AR 2 AR o
reasonably assessed.
24 GOODWILL o4 THE

2015 2014
SE-nE SEmE
US$’000 US$’000
F T T Tt
At 1 January w—H—H 39,303 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W5 3 o g A - 39,7717
Exchange realignment iEE 5o, 3 % (1,740) (474)
At 31 December REZH=1+—H 37,563 39,303

Goodwill represented the assets that do not meet the criteria
for recognition in the financial statements including workforce
and synergies that the Group expected to achieve through the

business combinations.
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units

(CGU) identified according to country of operation and

operating segment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

T TG A B e R T s R AT U 2
FE > 5 A 5 VO T D 90 00 S % £ 0 T 2 B Y
N0 B b [7] 28 M
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

24

25

b E B E R 2

Al

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

GOODWILL (continued) 24 W& (E)
Goodwill is allocated to the China agri-food operation RSB PEERENEESH - B4
segment. The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined Az B 0 R G I 4 A G 4R 4 A A FH A
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use Y o RS RE ST AR B8 A BILIG A M % 5 4R I
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by HY B T HEAT I B A R B T o A 54 I
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond MBS EIH3% (4  3%) WAl
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated FHORE - ¥ 3 R R AT RS - Bl AR
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2014: 3%). The cash FRBIZE14.9% - 18.9% (—F—PY4E : 15.9% -
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 14.9% — 18.9% 18.9%)EATHT B o SR Z P BRI BLHT > i
(2014: 15.9% — 18.9%). The discount rates used are pre-tax W B 5% R B 40 SE A B =2 4R B R B o
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.
INVENTORIES 25 B
2015 2014
R AR ZR 4
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T Eyarn
Raw materials JE B 395,769 467,707
Work in progress TE 8 3,113 9,403
Finished goods B 95,794 111,222
494,676 588,332
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

M % E OB BB A A
Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE
26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26 EWESZRIREE
2015 2014
R xRN
US$’°000 US$’000
E Y ayn FEoL o
Trade receivables JE W & 5 Bk 141,313 140,993
Bills receivable JFEE Wi S 7,039 19,063
148,352 160,056

The Group normally grants to its customers a credit period of
up to 60 days, depending on the requirements of the markets
and the businesses. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by management and interest may be
charged by the Group for overdue trade receivable balances
at rates determined by the Group with reference to market
practice. In the opinion of the directors, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. An aging analysis of the Group’s
trade and bills receivables, based on the date of delievery of

goods, is as follows:

AR — e T F P A BB R60H
T i 85 e S 75 5 R A o A AR [ 3 A5 R
MR AR R T A 2 B A2 o A B O 1 O AR A
W Z KGR > BevT e A I 2 7% T
Pl e Z M RGHE o IEFE R ABEMR
ARG S BB o A AR I B R
B S 9 2 MR Bt A A (DA B 88 0T 2 R 38 )
T

2015 2014

—E—HhE SR

Note US$’000 US$’000

M it FF FLFo

60 days or below 60H LT 124,630 127,322
61 to 180 days 612 180H 22,610 29,573
181 to 360 days 181&360H 4,829 2,295
Over 360 days % *360H 4,814 4,071
156,883 163,261
Impairment ok AE (a) (8,531) (3,205)
(b) 148,352 160,056
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26 EWESZERIAREE (&)
(continued)
Notes: M EtE -
(a) The movements in the provision for impairment of trade and (a) AF T HE W B ) MR ik T S R U A S A 4 B
bills receivables during the year are as follows: T
2015 2014
“E—HA ZR A
Note US$’000 US$’000
Ktk #0FL FiL T
At 1 January »m—H—H 3,205 3,818
Impairment/(written back of AR TR 18 25 e R
impairment) during the year ZUBAE 7 IR e 43 )
recognised in profit or loss, net ] 9 5,335 (71)
Uncollectible amounts written off 9 s W Il 2 i 8 4 (9) (542)
At 31 December BrHZA=+—0 8,531 3,205

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade and
bills receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
and bills receivables of US$5,785,000 (2014: US$1,637,000)
with a carrying amount before provision of the same amount.
The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to

customers who were in financial difficulties.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(c)

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

is as follows:

B AR

A

26

B

FE i & 5 BR X

RE (&)

MaE - (A7)

(b)

AR 2 AR Hh TR 2 B M Rk %
IRIRE AT

2015 2014

L —E

US$’000 US$’000

F LTI E

Neither past due nor impaired A 3 9] 5 A A 127,704 131,275
180 days or below past due WA R 180H 16,791 26,289
Over 180 days past due W LR 180H 1,404 586
145,899 158,150

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to

customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December
2015 are aggregate amounts of US$5,012,000 (2014:
US$372,000), nil (2014: US$34,000) and US$109,238,000
(2014: US$92,334,000) due from joint ventures, associates
and related companies, respectively, arising from transactions
carried out in the ordinary course of business of the Group.
The balances are unsecured, bear interest at rates determined
by the Group after past due and are repayable within credit
periods similar to those offered by the Group to its major

customers.
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R 39T sl R AP 2 M WA sk S R B 4 X
ARz F AR -

0 39 L S0 o 1 2 G M sk SRR 8 B A R
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20 ) HE TR Ay R R D S TR A )
T i 5 B WU A0 7 T A ol Il R ok A
JECEE R A5 AR UAR R R A -

REMP _F—HET_HA=Z+—HZE
W B 5 MRk L R A SR AR H W B R
ShWE B A R #5501, 28 o0 (R — Y
AE 13728 KEI0) s (R — U 3.4
B FI0) K 11%923 .8 0 (B — U4 «
9,233.4# 3 50) 40 i B ME WA A 3~ B
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HEAP > 7 8 1 4% A 4 ) T e 2 A R G
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b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

27

ANERNR REREMERER

2015 2014

SEoEE CEWE

US$’000 US$’000

By an F T T

Prepayments TEAT MR 3K 51,058 53,234
Deposits 4 8,971 26,611
Other receivables At JE W B 3K 56,693 63,278
Derivative financial instruments assets fitemT LEE 5 -
116,727 143,123

Notes:

(a) Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2015 was an aggregate
amount of US$195,000 (2014: US$125,000), nil (2014:
US$2,890,000) and US$40,416,000 (2014: US$29,458,000)
due from joint ventures, associates and related companies,
respectively. The balances are unsecured, interest free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.
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M &t :

(a) AREMPR-R—HET_A=ZT—HZH
PSR ~ %4 R EBUE RS > B8 F
1958 %50 (ZF—W4E « 12.583%50) »
(= F— VU4 £ 289.08 35 70) J24,041.68
FEI6 (F AR £ 2,945.88 K T0) 40k
FEW A8 A S~ T A R BB R A ) 2 5K
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b #% BH B &R

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

27

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
derivative financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair

value measurement.

A H

27 AR B RHEMEERERER
(&)

MaE - (A7)

(b)  ATAESE T HMARME R
AL AEZ RS
TSR IR A G B A A Gk T
FLA A AR Y B B Y A SO o S 3 B B S

5 i e Q13482 1 i 2 A 0 2 = AR
B o

Fair value measurement as at 31 December categorised into

RTZH=+—HARMGREZHH

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B30 BN B0 g
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
B an FILFIC FILFIC E Ty an
2015 R T4
Derivative financial A4 & R B
instruments assets
— Forward exchange contracts — % 1 Hb BE 15 [F] - 5 - 5
2014 Ry
Derivative financial WS THERE
instruments assets
— Forward exchange contracts — 3 391 A T 5 ) — — — —

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of

the reporting period in which they occur.

The fair value of the forward exchange contracts is determined
by using market comparison approach with reference to the
forward rates of forward exchange contracts involving the
same currencies in the market as at the end of the reporting

period.

BE-F-HAER-F-NEFA=Z+T—HIE
AEPEPY > SR — S B AN 2 ) 2 RS - sl
N B8 = AR o A I 2 W R R
T R S0 % A v A T[] 2 RS

A B ] 2 A SO AR T 3501 B b i 2 5 i i
IR 2 5 b R IR W R Y 9 0T A1 R ) Y A )
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7

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk M R
Year ended 31 December 2015 K E - F—HE+ - H=+—H IL4E)¥
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 28 HBERBITER
2015 2014
G- Sl 4 2 R4
US$’000 US$’000
FoF FoLFoo
Cash and bank balances other B4 K SRAT 5 A7
than time deposits (ARG ER) 277,970 255,774
Time deposits E WA 3K 266,037 240,699
Total cash and bank balances B4 B SRATAF sk R A 544,007 496,473
Less: Pledged deposits Ik BRI (48,900) (40,870)
Less: Time deposits with W BIHH BB =MA
maturity over three months Z EWER (206,869) (168,462)
Cash and cash equivalents B4 LBl a5 EY 288,238 287,141
Notes: Vg3

(a)

At 31 December 2015, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) amounted to US$440,630,000
(2014: US$350,739,000) and US$55,094,000 (2014:
US$10,144,000), respectively. RMB and VND are not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations and the Law on Foreign Investment in
Vietnam, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB and VND
into other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
depending on the cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.
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A FE A B B S B A RE ~ B BE % A RE A B A
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WIS G Z R R o ST A A R SR
T KA TP 30 0 S0 400 e R T 2 LA 2

-2 -1 F F &

173



174

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE
29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 29

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of

BENEZRIAKRREE

A AR 7 45 0 R M B2 5 MRk 2 R i 20 BT

the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (DB HW ) T :
follows:

2015 2014
“R A R4
US$’000 US$’000
# T 7T FKILT T
60 days or below 60H LT 237,276 235,826
61 to 180 days 61&180H 10,341 8,822
181 to 360 days 181%360H 1,503 489
Over 360 days ZR360H 883 565
250,003 245,702
Bills payable JE AT S48 30,799 -
280,802 245,702

Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31 December 2015
is an aggregate amount of US$797,000 (2014: US$947,000)
and US$15,732,000 (2014: US$13,323,000) due to joint

ventures and related companies respectively, arising from

transactions carried out in the ordinary course of business of

the Group. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and are

repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by its

major suppliers.
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01 P9 A (B A 4 [ O T IR 2 A

A -

-2 -1 F F &



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

30

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30 HMWESERERRERER
2015 2014
G- Sl 4 2 R4
US$’000 US$’000
FoF E Sy o
Receipts in advance FH W Bk 58,688 39,759
Deferred income EIE W A 27,028 11,515
Accruals HEEM 171,664 179,067
Other payables At M A MR 5k 62,477 75,211
Derivative financial instruments i 4w T H A
liabilities 452 -
320,309 305,552
Notes: M &t
(a) Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals as at 31 (a) AREMPR-FR—HEFZH=Z—HZH

December 2015 were an aggregate amounts of US$10,530,000
(2014: US$6,416,000), US$43,000 (2014: nil) and
US$16,625,000 (2014: US$16,130,000) due to joint ventures,

associates and related companies respectively.

The balances with joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an aggregate
amount of US$10,501,000 (2014: US$6,404,000) due to
certain joint ventures which bear interests at 2% (2014: 3%)

per annum and are repayable on demand.

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment except for an
aggregate amount of US$13,919,000 (2014: US$13,872,000)
due to a related company which is repayable within one

month.
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b #% BH B &R

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
derivative financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair

value measurement.

A

30

B

Hitb BN RAEERER (R)

MaE - (4)
(b)  ATAESE T HMA MR

AL AEZ RS

TSR IR A G B A A Gk T
FLA A AR Y B B Y A SO o S 3 B B S
5 i e Q13482 1 i 2 A 0 2 = AR

B o

Fair value measurement as at 31 December categorised into

RTZH=+—HARMGREZHH

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B30 BN B0 g
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
B an FILFIC FILFIC E Ty an
2015 R T4
Derivative financial 4 & TR AU
instruments liabilities
— Forward exchange contracts — 38 W Hh BE & W - 452 - 452
2014 Ry
Derivative financial ik &R T H AR
instruments liabilities
— Forward exchange contracts — &Y A I A ) - - - -

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of

the reporting period in which they occur.

The fair value of the forward exchange contracts is determined
by using market comparison approach with reference to the
forward rates of forward exchange contracts involving the
same currencies in the market as at the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk M R
Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥
BANK BORROWINGS 31 |ITHER
2015 2014
SEoEE SEWE
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FoF FEoLFoo
Bank borrowings, secured I R AT A 3K (a) 54,330 38,994
Bank borrowings, unsecured S HE A BR AT K 1,048,740 1,086,241
Total bank borrowings SRAT AT R AR A (b) 1,103,070 1,125,235
Analysed into amounts repayable: TR SRS T 4
Within one year or on demand AN e 482,963 515,902
In the second year TR AR 232,601 132,911
In the third to fifth year BEFEHAE 216,783 446,931
Beyond five years A T 170,723 29,491
Total bank borrowings ERAT A K AR A 1,103,070 1,125,235
Portion classified as current liabilities 43 80 % T B B A R A (c) (482,963) (515,902)
Non-current portion I i B R A 620,107 609,333
Notes: M aE

(a) At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s land lease
prepayments with carrying amounts of US$11,723,000 (2014:
property, plant and equipment of US$4,585,000 (note 15(b))
and land lease prepayments of US$2,586,000 (note 17)) were
pledged as security for bank borrowings of the Group.

(b) The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings of the Group are

denominated in the following currencies:

(a) RoF—HEFT+_HA=Z+—H > KREHEZ
T AT A R R S EE 1723
WHTE (ZF— A W BB Kk
45858 3570 (Mt sE15(b)) R FE A + b A0 1%
#258.68 370 (M ak17) ) OAR %o A 45 8 41

TR Z AR i <

(b)  AHEE Z BRAT AR kR Th 45 DA T B A B

VAN

2015 2014

ZEHAE e e =2

US$’000 US$’000

B an FEx T

US$ VN 587,496 565,507
VND B 376,392 472,360
RMB NG 139,182 87,368
1,103,070 1,125,235

As at 31 December 2015, none of the covenants relating to
bank borrowings had been breached (2014: nil).
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[N 4 B & R A A
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 &£ R —H4E+ A=+ —HILEE
31 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 31 SRITER(E)
Notes: (continued) Mt o (4F)
(c) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current portion of long- (c) Ao F—HET+HA=Z1+—H » KEEE
term bank borrowings amounted to US$138,078,000 (2014: W ERAT A SR Z R B R 2 14%3,807. 8B 3400
US$62,993,000). (ZZ—Y4 £ 6,299.3H370) -
(d) As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings (d) B FE-NE+ A= —H > AREEZ
included an aggregate amount of US$5,611,000 borrowed from SRATAE K B IE 1 B A | Z A A EE561.1
a related company. #ET -
32 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 32 HikAREBERE
2015 2014
SEonE SEWE
US$’000 US$’000
E 7 o S n
Provision for severance allowance JH T TG 5,827 5,087
Non-current portion of deferred income  J it B 4 1Y 38 4E W A 19,716 16,716
25,543 21,803
33 DEFERRED TAX 33 EEMHIE

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the

ISR T T A T 5 IR DL A v e R R SE

consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: HERE/ (A WT :
2015 2014
SEEE CE W
US$’000 US$’000
F L FIL B n
Deferred tax assets J8 8 I 4,411 741
Deferred tax liabilities 7 J2E A JE £ (55,333) (46,806)
(50,922) (46,065)
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & Mt =
Year ended 31 December 2015 M E R —HHFE T H=1—HIL4)E
33 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33 EZLEBIE(E)
The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and AR REEBZIRERIBEEE,RARZ &
liabilities and their movements during the year are as follows: BWWE :
Revaluation of Depreciation Losses
propeties, plant in excess of available for
and machinery Revaluation related offsetting Dividend Net deferred
and intangible of biological depreciation ~future taxable withholding tax assets/
assets assets allowance profits tax Others (liabilities)
EN )3 FEEM MR
R REY BUNE  ERRAEZ FEERT
Rl EWEEEE  WERRE  TWHEE  RADARYE e EE/(RE)

US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 U8 /000 US§'000
it it it it Fitn it Fitn

At | January 015 REZ-1E-f-H (19,201) (14,365) 1,891 3,004 (13,%1) (3422) (46,063)
Continuing operations BEEEEH
Deferred tax credited)(charged) to ERRBEREN/ ()

profit or loss during the year (note 12) IR () 180 (154) (133) 143 (8,883) 1,677 (177)
Deferred tax charged to equity ERRES AR EERR

during the year (478) - - - - - (478)
Exchange realignment Enst 031 036 (81) (113) - 17 1,108
Discontinued operations CRLEEEH
Deferred tax credited(charged) to BRRESRKED/

profi or loss during the period (Tle) 2R - - - - 76 (317) (41)
Exchange realignment Ei - - - - - - -
Distribution in specie (note 37) MR (K - - - - 2,052 4 1,516
At31 December 2015 O L ey (18,888) (14463) 1675 3030 (20,707) (1,571) (30922)
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N 4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 BRE T —HAET _H =+ —HIL4F )%
33 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33 EEHIE (&)
Revaluation of Depreciation Losses
properties, plant in excess of available for
and machinery Revaluation related offsetting Dividend Net deferred
and intangible of hiological depreciation ~~ future taxable withholding tax assets]
a5t assets allowance profs fax QOthers (liabilities)
VEN ) WEER MR
REREL aUNE  ERRAEZ FRER
BEEN  AHEEEN O WERRE  THEER  REDERE i EE/ (AR
Us§000 Usg 000 Us§000 US§ 000 Us§ o0 Us§'000 Us§000
#fr #ifr #ifr #ifr #ifr #fr #ifr
At I January 2014 e oL i (6971) (12804 1,807 9,134 (2100) (4,065) (15,526)
Continuing operations FEEEEK
Deferred tax credited|(charged) to ERpEEAE/ (R)
profitor loss during the year (note 12) LR (k1) 410 (1,765) 110 (6,152) (11,84) 188 (19,033)
Deferred tax charged to equity ERRES AR BERE
during the year (836) - - - - - (836)
Acquisition of subsidiaries HEEREAT (12468) - - - - - (11468)
Exchange realignment Eqg 00 104 (26) (18) - 39 339
Discontinued operations CALERER
Deferred tax credited to RS R
profic or loss during the year LRIERR - - - - 4 406 680
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAT 4 - - - 3 - 163
Exchange realignment Eite - - - - 4 10 14
At 31 December 2014 REB-WETZH=1—H (19.221) (14365) 1,81 3,004 (1395)) (342) (46,065)
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b #% BB B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

33 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

The Group has tax losses arising in mainland China that will
expire within five years for offsetting against future taxable

profits.

At 31 December 2015, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of unused tax losses of US$65,685,000
(2014: US$38,623,000) as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised. Out of this amount, unrecognised tax losses
of US$65,685,000 (2014: US$38,623,000) arose in mainland
China which will expire within five years from the end of the

reporting period.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on any dividends distributable by the subsidiaries established
in mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1

January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2015, temporary differences unrecognised
for deferred tax liabilities relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to US$339,353,000 (2014:
US$358,837,000). Deferred tax liabilities of US$33,935,000
(2014: US$35,350,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

33
W&l :

(a)

(b)

(d)
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

b#% EH B & R 2 A

B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2015 WME _F—HAET A=+ —H L4
34 SHARE CAPITAL 34 BAX
Shares % 4
2015 2014
“E—HAE R
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FoFi FEoLFoo
Authorised W€
Ordinary shares: BB
36,000,000,000 shares 36,000,000,000/8¢
(2014: 36,000,000,000 shares) (ZF—M4
of US$0.01 each 36,000,000,000/%)
5 B T HO.0138 58 360,000 360,000
Convertible preference shares: i PR S
Series A — 20,000,000,000 shares A% - 20,000,000,000%
(2014: 20,000,000,000 shares) (ZF—M4
of US$0.01 each 20,000,000,000/% )
9 B i {0.0135 78 (a) 200,000 200,000
Series B — 4,000,000,000 shares B 41 - 4,000,000,000/%
(2014: 4,000,000,000 shares) ZE YA
of US$0.01 each 4,000,000,000/% )
5 B i 50.0136 8 (a) 40,000 40,000
240,000 240,000
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid CHITEHR
Ordinary shares: BB
24,071,837,232 shares 24,071,837,232 1%
(2014: 24,071,837,232 shares) (ZF— 4
of US$0.01 each 24,071,837,232)8%)
9 B {60.0135 58 240,718 240,718
Convertible preference shares: ] B 05 IE I -
Series B — 1,261,077,748 shares B& %) - 1,261,077,748%
(2014: 1,261,077,748 shares) (ZF— 4
of US$0.01 each 1,261,077,748%)
B 50013 0 12,611 12,611
253,329 253,329
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34

b E B EFER

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued

ordinary shares and convertible preference shares during the

A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2015 #E _~F—H4FE+ _H=1+—HIL4EE

34 BRA(E)
R4 (&)

RBEREF-HLER-F-NE+ A
St HIRAE R > AR B8 AT R &

years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows: W B T
Number of shares in issue
CRARAY
Series B Issued
convertible convertible Share
preference Issued preference premium
Ordinary shares shares  ordinary share share account Total
BRI H M CHfT CBATER
Tk Bk BEREA  BEREA  ROMEEE A
Note US $1000 US $:000 US $:000 US $:000
Wt Frfr  Frfr  Erfr  FErfr
At 1 January 2014 REZ-WE—J—H 1192,741,076  3,261,077,748 19 32,611 1,519,153 1,769,691
Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options U 7 8 1 B 3 17 A (b) 279,096,156 - 2191 - 1591 18,742
Reduction of share premium I O
account () - - - - (1,524364)  (1,524,364)
Conversion of convertible BT R M
preference shares (a),(d) 2,000,000,000  (2,000,000,000) 20,000 (20,000) - -
At 31 December 2014 and i S L3
31 December 2015 TIAZF-RAR
ZE-REFZAZT R 24,071,837, 1,261,077,748 240,718 12,611 10,740 264,069
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b #% BH B &R

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2015 #& £ _F—HFE+_H=+—HILEE
34 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The convertible preference shares are convertible into

ordinary shares of the Company and are entitled to the

same dividends that are declared for the ordinary shares.

Convertible preference shares do not carry the right to vote

in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the Company’s

residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of the

Company in the following priority:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

in paying to the holders of the convertible preference
shares, pari passu as between themselves by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts of the convertible
preference shares held by them respectively, an
amount equal to the aggregate of the issue price of
all the convertible preference shares held by them

respectively;

the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari
passu basis among the holders of any class of shares in
the capital of the Company other than the convertible
preference shares and other than any shares which are
not entitled to participate in such assets, by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts paid up on the

shares held by them respectively; and

the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to
and be distributed on a pari passu basis among the
holders of any class of shares including the convertible
preference shares, other than any shares not entitled
to participate in such assets, by reference to the
aggregate nominal amounts of shares held by them

respectively.

The convertible preference shares shall be non-redeemable by

the Company or the holders thereof.
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥
B 7 (48)
Mk - (%)

Notes: (continued)

(b) On 25 February 2014 and 18 July 2014, 129,248,078 and
149,848,078 ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the

exercise of share options granted by the Company respectively.

(c) Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 6 June
2014, the share premium account of the Company was reduced
by the amount of US$1,524,364,000 with the credit arising
therefrom being credited to the contributed surplus account of

the Company.

(d) On 10 July 2014, 2,000,000,000 Series B convertible
preference shares were converted into 2,000,000,000 ordinary

shares of the Company.
Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 35 to the

financial statements.
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35

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“2002 Share
Option Scheme”) which became effective on 26 November
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date. On 22 June 2012, the
board of directors of the Company approved the Company to
terminate the 2002 Share Option Scheme and adopt a new
share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) in place of
the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which will remain in force
for a period of ten years from that date. Upon termination, no
further options will be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme. However, the rules of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
will remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to
give effect to the exercise of any option granted prior to its
termination, or otherwise to the extent as may be required
in accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme. All options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to its termination will continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share

Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme is operated for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the Company’s directors, senior executives, employees of
the Group and those participants that, in the opinion of the
directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the

Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of
ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of share options granted
to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer (including the date of offer
granted), upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after the grant and ends on a date which is not

later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at a shareholders’ meeting.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Company had no share

options outstanding.

There was no grant of share options during the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

On 25 February 2014 and 18 July 2014, 129,248,078 and
149,848,078 ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the
exercise of share options with a weighted average exercise

price of HK$0.37 per share.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE
36 RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted by the Company which are yet
to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment in note 2.4(w) to
the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related option expire or be
forfeited.

The merger reserve represents the excess of the total
of the consideration transferred for the acquisition
of subsidiaries through business combinations under
common control and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interest over the carrying amount of the
assets acquired, liabilities assumed and pre-acquisition

reserves combined by the Group.

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for

office premises held for own use set out in note 2.4(g).

The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with the PRC Companies Law or the Law
of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and
Foreign Investment as applicable to the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. None of the
Group’s PRC reserve funds as at 31 December 2015 and
2014 were distributable in the form of cash dividends.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates. The reserve is dealt with in

accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

2.4(aa).
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Year ended 31 December 2015 E_F—HAE T _H=1—HILEE
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 37 BRIELEER
On 29 June 2015, upon the completion of the payment of a R_E—HEANAH_Z+IE > BAREEPIIE
special interim dividend to be satisfied by way of a distribution KA 2 B Pt 52 B 4 T SOUR A A e 40 g
in specie of CTEI shares by the Group (note 13) and the spin- (B RE13) 37 1B &2 B 2 4 DL g o b7l T X4y
off of CTEI by way of a separate listing of CTEI’s ordinary PrIE KA 2 B MR o8 B A% > A4 B A A R
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Group IERASZEB B2 RERS o IE KA 2 B B A
ceased to hold any interests in CTEI. The consolidated results BAT - GECEREE AR (HMERDSY
of CTEI and its subsidiaries, joint venture and associate HHPREE]) R _F-HE-H-HE_Z
(collectively the “CTEI Group”) for the period from 1 January —FAENHZJuH (BP437 B A1) B 2 48
2015 to 29 June 2015 (immediately before the spin-off) B S A T AR 5 R B T 5 o 4 R B SRR AE A
have been presented as discontinued operations in the EBEZHERTEER CHRIEEEEFRFES Y
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS 5 BMEVCKIEREEF RS - MiFE2H
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations e 25 2R B R B A ik 2 Ll i B2 O AR E A D,
and the comparative figures of the consolidated statement of 4 B 12 ) e A A S I AR I AR R -
comprehensive income and corresponding notes have been
restated to show the discontinued operations separately from
the continuing operations.
(a) Results from the discontinued operations have (a) CHEERGAFEHKEERNZ OKIE
been included in the consolidated statement of RSP IEBEMT
comprehensive income as follows:
Period from Year ended
1 January 2015 31 December
to 29 June 2015 2014
ZEHAE - E
—H—H=ZE ZE A
AAZ+hBE +ZHZ=Z+—H
N JIS:S
US$’000 US$’000
F L F T FILFIT
REVENUE® B A 46,281 110,885
Cost of sales, other income and BB LA ~ HAb U A K
expenses, net M F# (36,948) (69,854)
Results from operating activities KWy A Z b 9,333 41,031
Income tax RET (2,682) (5,737)
Results from operating activities, KeWmHEsZ
net of tax® b B 1% i A 6,651 35,294
Gain on distribution in specie of CTEI %5 #&% B ¥ 4 YR 1E K £ 36 B B 2 i 25
— Exchange fluctuation reserve — 4 IE K A 3 B R A 2
attributable to CTEI recycled A7l BEE 5 B ik 485 0 4 IE 2%
to profit or loss 23,751 -
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR I A 4 ¥ 1 30,402 35,294
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

37 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 37

(a)

(b)

(continued)

H B EF R 2 A

(a)

M Revenue excluded intersegment sales from

discontinued operations to continuing

operations.

@ Results from operating activities, net of tax

included unrealised profit adjustment arising

from intersegment sales from discontinued

operations to continuing operations.

Effect of distribution in specie on the financial position (b)

of the Group on the date of spin-off is as follows:

ERIEEEEE (&)

(%10

@ WA BA 2 B A Ik A 3
B B T R AL SR A U

@ ROE B R 2 R AR e A
SHEAILREETNE TR
RS SR B 2 4y JUI) & 4 T
He A R BB R

9 43 R A 44 S 43 991
R Z BT

US$’000

E 7
Property, plant and equipment LE BN (50,971)
Land lease prepayments AT LR S (1,021)
Investments in joint venture REBERENRE (72,088)
Investments in associate P AR R E (18,969)
Other non-current assets Ho Aty I ) B (6,106)
Inventories i (24,243)
Trade and other receivables JRE W B2 5 T Al MR Sk (25,225)
Cash and cash equivalents & RBEFHD (18,063)
Trade and other payables JEA B 5 B Al e sk 18,747
Bank borrowings SRAT M 3K 21,264
Deferred tax liabilities A 9 B IH A A 2,526
Other non-current liabilities FLAth 308 B £ A 2,734
Net assets and liabilities % E K AT (171,415)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of CERZHE R E&SHED (18,063)
Net cash outflow B 4 0 (18,063)
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(c) An analysis of the cash flows of the discontinued

operations is as follows:

¥ BH B A R D 8

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 37 XA LEKEXEK (&)

(c)

REHDHIEREERZ ISR SHw
T

Period from Year ended

1 January 2015 31 December

to 29 June 2015 2014

G- Sl i S B,z

—H—H=Z e Sl F5 2

AAZ+hAH +ZA=Z+—H

1| JIey)3

US$’000 US$’000

FFi FoLFor
Cash flows from operating activities REmBZ B R 2,164 (23,789)
Cash flows from investing activities HEGEHZHERE (2,163) 52,141
Cash flows from financing activities il 5 B 2 Bl A R 1,072 (21,797)

Net cash inflow from discontinued KACKILREEE

operations ZEBERNA 1,073 6,555
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

37 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 37 BRIE&&EXEK (&)

R85 R

(d) Operating segment information (d)

Period from 1 January 2015 to 29 June 2015 ZER—RE—H—HEAHZTJLHBIM

192

Biochemical Industrial
Operations Operations Total
HEALEH TEREHK B
US$’000 US$’°000 US$’000
FoF FEoLF o FFi
Segment revenue Vg LN
Sales to external customers HETFIREE 46,281 - 46,281
Intersegement sales SREMZHE 4,667 - 4,667
50,948 - 50,948
Reconciliation: WMEIEHE -
Elimination of intersegment sales A3 SE T 2 8 8 TG (4,667)
Consolidated revenue #HAEWA 46,281
Segment results ik B3
The Group N 8,568 (2,816) 5,752
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A i B B e 48
Joint venture R -fe 3 - 1,581 1,581
Associate - /| - 1,877 1,877
8,568 642 9,210
Reconciliation: WHETEE
Bank interest income RAT R B WA 9
Finance costs B AR 114
Results from operating activities #8458 A 2 s A 9,333
Other segment information HoAth 43 R
Depreciation and amortisation e Bk 2,988 9 2,997
Capital expenditure -ZN 3 2,690 - 2,690

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

-2 -1 F F &



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & Mt =

Year ended 31 December 2015 M E R —HHFE T H=1—HIL4)E
37 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 37 BR&IEKEEK (&)
(d)  Operating segment information (continued) (d) gy BAER ()

Year ended 31 December 2014

BEZF-NET A= HIEEE

Biochemical Industrial
Operations Operations Total
A T FioKic
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FoLF S on FL T
Segment revenue Vg LN
Sales to external customers HETINRE A 110,823 62 110,885
Intersegement sales R TR 2 8 6,377 - 6,377
117,200 62 117,262
Reconciliation: WEIEE
Elimination of intersegment sales 43 J ) Z 8 B HK 8 (6,377)
Consolidated revenue HZHAERBA 110,885
Segment results Vi B3
The Group AR 1 17,157 (2,128) 15,029
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A i B B s 48
Joint venture HEME - 17,607 17,607
Associate -] - 9,682 9,682
17,157 25,161 42,318
Reconciliation: WETEHE -
Bank interest income SRATA BB A 55
Finance costs B AR (1,342)
Results from operating activities B ) Ak 2 i A 41,031
Other segment information At 43 38 R
Depreciation and amortisation Y18 B B 5,543 21 5,564
Capital expenditure B AR S 4,940 1 4,941
Additions of other non-current assets 37 3 H b I i 8 & & 567 - 567
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

37 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 37 BRIE&&EXEK (&)

(d) Operating segment information (continued) (d) o EER (4)
Geographical information Hh i R
Revenue from external customers KEIPKE T Z WA
Period from Year ended
1 January 2015 31 December
to 29 June 2015 2014
ZE—hF B
—H—HZE —F 4
AHZ+THRH +ZH=Z+—H
i R4S
US$’000 US$’000
FL T FL T
Mainland China e N 23 8,614 35,304
Vietnam Fie) 316 2,938
Elsewhere F At 3 Ty 37,351 72,643
46,281 110,885
The revenue information shown above is based on the ERABR % P 5 o

location of the customers.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

37 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 37 CBRIEKEXHK (&)

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2014, the (e) RNEE_ZFZ—NE+_H=+—HI
discontinued operations of the Group disposed of the FEEN o REEZ ORIEREEE N
entire issued share capital in Rapid Thrive Limited IERJE WA B2 5] B Rapid Thrive
to CT Bright Holdings Limited. In addition, the Limited i) 2 ¥ 84T B4y o BEAb » A
discontinued operations of the Group had the following SEEZ ORIEEEBHERYENR
transactions with related parties during the period/year: HBEEARAEUTHRS ¢

Period from Year ended
1 January 2015 31 December
to 29 June 2015 2014
DT Sk 0 "z
—“A—HZE e Sl
AAZ+RHE FZA=Z+—H
A LA
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wit FIL T FrLTrx
Sales of goods to: HEEMT
Joint ventures aEAE 91 263
Associate -/ 460 1,220
High Orient Enterprises Limited High Orient Enterprises Limited
(“HOEL”) and its related (THOELJ) B J i o 4 3
entities” (i) 213 410
Purchases of goods from C.P. #C.P. Trading Co., Ltd.
Trading Co., Ltd. (“CPT”) (TCPTJ) BRI B A 3
and its related entities* R b - 32
Rental income received and f#Orient Success International
receivable from Orient Limited (FOSILJ) /HOEL &
Success International Limited HWEAEERLCRZ
(“OSIL”)/HOEL and its IEZION
related entities - 20
Interest income on amounts due
from joint venture EW%%@%Z*U BN — 226
Notes: M

(i) The sales of goods to HOEL and its related entities
excluded the sales of goods of US$3,757,000 (2014:
US$4,170,000) from a subsidiary of the Group to
CPVC, a connected non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group.
These related party transactions also constitute

continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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38

39

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company paid
a special interim dividend by way of a distribution in specie
upon the spin-off of CTEI (note 13).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
reduced its share premium account with the credit arising
therefrom being credited to its contributed surplus account

(note 34(c)).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group
to financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness
of independent third party customers of the Group. In the
case of financial guarantees provided which exceed the
net asset value of the relevant subsidiaries, our maximum
contingent liabilities are limited to the net asset value
of these subsidiaries. The net asset value of the relevant
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 was US$91,009,000 (2014:
US$82,240,000). The contingent liabilities of the Group
in respect of such guarantees as at 31 December 2015 were

US$50,185,000 (2014: US$51,460,000).
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BE vy B 75 s O B 28 A TR O A R R
S S ) 5 v 2 B A B R 5% S R e A )
ZHEYGE - MHBAMBARR _—E—HETZ
AEZ+T—HZXEHE&EEN%9,100.98 %50 (=
F Y4 2 8,224.08FK00) - KEMP_F
—HETA=ZT—HARMZSERZSSA
£ 255,018,580 (ZF— Y4 : 5,146.08
FI6) o

-2 -1 F F &



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

40

b E B EFER

A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & Mt =
Year ended 31 December 2015 M E R —HHFE T H=1—HIL4)E
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 40 REHEZH
As lessor EREHEA
The Group leases its investment properties and certain plant AREFMRBEREME R ML EMER
and equipment under operating lease arrangements, with the T Bk > P8 Z ALY & 1 B 364F
leases negotiated with original terms ranging from 1 to 36 REE o
years.
At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum MN_F—HE+_H=Z1+—H » A sz
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with BBHLET » AR B A 2K 55 A 58 JE WO B
its tenants falling due as follows: mE:
2015 2014
—ER A ZEF N
US$’°000 US$’000
B/ n B n
Within one year —4HEN 1,037 344
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B oEELE (BFEERWE) 13 14
After five years T4 AR 265 288
1,315 646

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its equipment and land under
operating lease arrangements, with the leases negotiated with

original terms ranging from 1 to 50 years.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling

due as follows:

e Fy AR AL

A S [ AL 4R A R T R T B S
Ho o> PR Z SR AL A 1 SO o

REF-HETZH=Z1—H Az
BRI T > ARG AR A e A AL T P 32
LU

2015 2014

2N R

US$’000 US$’000

) an E < n

Within one year —4EN 39,876 33,820
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B _ERHE (B ERMAE) 131,103 111,311
After five years HAEDIE 199,859 191,056
370,838 336,187
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

41 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments as
at the end of the reporting period:

BEXREE

(a)

ACER B B R 2 EAOREWE ¢

2015 2014
= L
US$’000 US$’000
F L FIL B n
Contracted, but not provided for: T EE & » fH ¥ RAE 4 -

Land + b - 34
Buildings i 86,022 116,241
Plant and machinery (note) W& e M Bk 2S (B &E) 52,379 133,678
138,401 249,953

Note: Mtk

Included in the Group’s capital commitment of plant
and machinery as at 31 December 2015 is an amount of
US$4,375,000 (2014: US$6,557,000) contracted but not

provided for to related companies.

(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint

ventures is as follows:

Contracted, but not provided for O A > AH I AR AR B

AEEPR R -TET A= HAM
W5 B ety 2 A TR S 437548
KIC (2R 4 = 65578 Ko0) HLEH A A
FCLR A > 4B RA B AR

A5 B A 58 A S 2 EASRYE N T

2015 2014
SEEE SR WA
US$’000 US$000

H T T I HTE T
46 251
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

(a)

42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 42
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
continuing operations of the Group acquired 100%
interest in each of Hefei Chia Tai Co., Ltd. and
Kaifeng Chia Tai Co., Ltd. from Chia Tai (China)
Agro-Industrial Ltd. In addition, the continuing
operations of the Group had the following transactions
with related parties during the year:

Sales of goods to: SHE AT -
Joint ventures HEA¥E
Associates iR |
HOEL and its related HOEL K&
entities” JUBH A 3
[tochu Corporation 7 T S8 T bk 2
(“ITOCHU”)* ik ([HHEE D) -
Purchases of goods from: EHEEMA
Joint ventures CR-EE
CPT and its related entities® CPT S H: i A -
CTEI and its subsidiaries® CTEIR LKt J&§ 2 w1+
Rental income received and € OSIL/HOEL &
receivable from OSIL/HOEL 1B o A 2 W B
and its related entities” [ i N
Rental expenses paid and FEAT K O AT FL 4 2 T
payable to OSIL/HOEL and OSIL/HOEL X%
its related entities® PR 2 A 2
Technical service fee to CPG* ol Ik % & 7 CPG
Project management fee to: HEHEHET
Chia Tai Land Co., Ltd.* IEKE H A R A F*
Chia Tai Handing Engineering IERE G TR
Management Co., Ltd.* AR A W]
Interest income on trade JH HHOEL K&
receivables from HOEL B EASEZ EW
and its related entities G R Z A B WA

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥
AEALHE

WE&E_F—NEFZH=Z+—HIE
RN REMZELEEKRHT
K (B ) RO R W) IO AR IE K
A R A 7] T B 3 1IE KA BR A R #1100%
JBeHE o Wb AD > AR [ Z R RS R

(a)

Note
M it

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vi)

(vii)

PENBEBEBEANLEUTHRY
2015 2014
SEnE SENE
US$’°000 US$’000
B n FEoLFoo
(Restated)

(B )

29,900 20,233
1,130 —
563,473 540,667
1,382 743
13,318 14,626
521,167 450,844
4,660 -
2,262 2,612
2,142 2,433
29,896 30,128
3,781 7,563
2,365 1,098
5,938 6,424
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b #% BH B &R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 5] 3= M 5F
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE
42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)
(a) (continued)

Notes:

(1)

(ii)

The sales of goods were made by reference to the
prevailing market prices of, the cost of marketing (if
any) of and demand for the goods in mainland China
and Vietnam, and the selling prices shall be no more
favourable than those made available to the Group’s

customers which are independent third parties.

ITOCHU became a shareholder of the Company on
18 September 2014 and is interested in 25% of the

ordinary shares of the Company.

The purchases of goods were determined on the basis
of arm’s length negotiations and the purchase prices
shall not be higher than the prevailing market prices
in mainland China and Vietnam, and shall be no less
favourable than those made available to the Group

from suppliers which are independent third parties.

CTEI became a related company of the Group upon
its spin-off on 29 June 2015.

A

42
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(a)

(%)

Mat

(1)

AR T 40 A IR o B
AL P T 75 AR
(A ) BT R M2 > oM ANE R
A4 T b B L 5 = 07 % P B A 2 A
¥ o

PR =R e U H K
B AT REH > WAL ] 8 B
WA 25%RERS -

PR 7B fih 73 2 2 S JE B 4 7 i 7
R > B RS A B R
K e T B IR o AR AN R R
24 S5 [ AR08 . B = O T i
Z etk -

TE R A R BB 2 — AR A A
AU H SRR R A T R

A -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(continued)

The rental income comprises of (i) US$2,154,000
(2014: US$2,512,000) related to a business carve-
out agreement entered between the Group and
OSIL on 31 December 2012 for the lease and/or use
of relevant non-feed related fixed assets located in
PRC by OSIL, which was determined by reference
to the depreciation charge of the relevant assets and
applicable tax costs incurred by the Group, and (ii)
US$108,000 (2014: US$100,000 (restated)) related to
the lease of certain properties of the Group in Hong
Kong to other related companies at rates determined

by the Group with reference to market rates.

The rental expense was determined by reference
to the depreciation charge of the relevant assets
and applicable tax costs incurred by the related

companies.

The technical service fee was charged at 1.5% of the
net sales value of products sold by CPVC.

The project management fee was charged at 3.0% of the
incurred construction cost of production facilities of the

Group’s food processing plants located in the PRC.

The project management works under the construction
project management contract between the Group and
Di Peng Construction Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
entered into on 24 August 2015 which also constituted a
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules, have not yet commenced during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The interest income was charged on trade receivable
balances due from related companies at rates
determined by the Group with reference to market

rates.

These related party transactions also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These related party transactions also constitute

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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(a)

(#&)
PR e - (%)
(iii) AW ABEEG)BEF L215.48 %

(iv)

(vii)

TE(ZF A 25128 %L Z
FRR R4+ A=+—H
A 4 ) BLOSILER 3T #9365 40 80 1
ik > BOSILAL % K& /B fili FI Az i
oh I A B R4 R R B 2 B
FE > THAR B AR 45 ) A B BT
11 22 T 85 0 B g A BB S AR T
o K(i) BB A1088FET (ZF
—PU4E 2 10.08 340 (REF])) Z
A B AR 4R B AL T AR R
T HARH A R 2 f 4 A
H 2% W GHeREE -

RHL 4 32 HY AR 4 R A R A B O
VIR T 5 2 A Bl 5 SR T S

e ffg e #% & T35 B CPVCZ 2 i 8
BB EBIL5%F 5

T H A B TR A S AL P
b BB BRI 2 e LB A Y
XA Z3.0%5H 5 o

AGEE BN TREW (LW A
FRA R =% — T4\ =+ H
AT O B EOH H AT B A RIH R
TAR (P8 pl b vl BRI S8 - AR
WERZHAMZS) > REEZZE
—IAETZAZ - BIREE MR
P g -

AR TS IR (B 2 7] 2 e BT
Gy Wk A% A 4 T 22 7% T 3 ) A
ZHHGFE o

% 4 BN 32 5 ol b T A
SR Y AT R 2 2 o 2 B 22
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 #E R —HE - H =+ — H ILFJE
42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 42 BEANTHE (&)
(continued)
(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties (b) HEBALTZBEXRBER
Details of the Group’s balances with joint ventures, FRALEHEAENE HEAFRR
associates and related companies included in trade B L ) 2 TR AR A R S E B’ B R
and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other SRR E >~ TEATIR K ~ 4 K
receivables, trade payables, other payables and accruals Wl sk ~ MEAT B 5 MR ak ~ oAb A IR
and bank and other borrowings are disclosed in note RO AR ] R SR AT BB R T
26(c), 27(a), 29, 30(a) and 31(d) to the financial Tl Pl 88 S B R P 26(c) ~ 27(a)
statements, respectively. 29 ~ 30(a) &31(d) W °
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) AEEBXEBEBEAB(TREE) M
who are also directors of the Group: £
2015 2014
e S XS e S 111 F2 S
US$’°000 US$’000
FLFi FoL For
Short term employee benefits 5 R B R A 4,311 4,664
43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 43 SRMIAEDE
CATEGORY
Other than the unlisted equity investments being classified as Ik T B 7 A B 25 S % O 23 P 4 4 2 T
available-for-sale investments as disclosed in note 23 to the B 2 3% I b R 2R 3 R A R AR
financial statements and the forward exchange contracts being VR s e 2R P B2 7 R 308 o S A AT A Ak T
classified as derivative financial instruments as disclosed in HyEWANEA R » R _F—HER_ZF
note 27 and 30, all financial assets and liabilities of the Group —WEFTZH=+—H » RE[Z KA SR
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were loans and receivables B Je B 43 T K AR A R Wk T DA B Y R,
and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost, respectively. A e Z 4 b £ o
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

44

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign
currency risk and liquidity risk. During the year, the Group

has entered into forward exchange contracts to manage its

exchange rates exposures.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates
primarily to the Group’s debt obligations. The Group
monitors interest rate movements and determines
appropriate hedging activities when necessary. The

Group’s exposure to market risk arising from changes in

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BBEMERELHRBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) B =ER

interest rates in respect of cash and cash equivalents is

considered relatively minimal.

The following tables set out the carrying amounts

of the Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the

A T 8RR LB - A T L
B R I ) A B o AR A B LT
YA ME A 7] DA PR M R L B

A 4R [ T 3 8, o o U A 4 I
ZAEB AT - ALEE B R
5 B IR 5 3 B S B o A
PR R 5 i i 5 BB 4 B S
T 35 i 5 B A S A

PR 7 AR 88 T 3 01 OK > AT £ K
A THT 365 70 D5 o o e MR TR - 2 51

reporting period that are exposed to interest rate risk: T
2015 2014
“EF R ZR Y
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount interest rate amount interest rate
iR T £ R IES M T L R GES
US$’000 % US$’000 %
FL T Fr T
Fixed rate denominated in: I R B3 DL T B A
HAL
RMB A R 43,119 4.64 7,734 6.02
Floating rate denominated in: FER RAE D T B R
BLAL ¢
Us$ eV 587,496 4.30 565,507 4.21
VND B 376,392 5.07 472,360 4.74
RMB N 96,063 5.62 79,634 6.48
1,059,951 1,117,501
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, through
the impact on floating rate bank borrowings, of the
Group’s profit after tax and equity (with all other

variables held constant):

US$ X0
us$ ¥t
RMB NG
RMB NG
VND o E
VND oA

44 B EBREE T R BUR (8)

(a)

Increase/
(decrease)
in basis

points

BB,
(W)

100
(100)
100
(100)
100
(100)

BERmEk (&)

2015

S-Sl ¥
Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
after tax and
equity

B e 1%

i A B A A
¥m, (WA)
US$’000
FL T

(5,303)
5,303

(720)
720

(2,936)
2,936

2 LV G A A B
ST > A S W 1 B A5 2
A 5 R 5

2014
ZF 4
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
after tax and
equity

s it 4%

it P B HE 4
B, (W)
US$’000
F T

(5,227)
5,227

(597)
597

(3,684)
3,684
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group places its cash deposits with a number
of major banks and financial institutions. This cash
management policy limits the Group’s exposure to

concentration of credit risk.

A significant portion of the Group’s sales are made
to customers in the agricultural industry and, as such,
the Group is directly affected by the well-being of that
industry. However, the credit risk associated with trade
receivables is considered relatively minimal due to
the Group’s large customer base and its geographical
dispersion. The Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions. Trade
receivables of US$6,156,000 (2014: US$9,964,000)
were supported by guarantee issued by bank provided
by customers as at 31 December 2015. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective

interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in note 39, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group or
the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees
at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in note
39. The Group held assets of US$2,050,000 as at 31
December 2015 (2014: US$1,281,000) as pledge for
the guarantees granted to independent third party

customers.
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(b)

ERAR

A AR 1 oK 2 B AT T 4 B A
TR B A7 K o U IE B 44 BB
187 AR £ B4R b 2 B o

AEMZHERBOETHRERS >
P I A 45 1 8 B 9 2 4 AT E R DL
o MRV > AL BER B RE P
TR SE BB A R S W I > A A R
W T = i 0 R it R S L A o AR
SR A AR & P Z BRI -
W_F—HE+_HAH=+—H > EE
615.683KIL (ZF— M4 : 996.485 %
JC) ZIEWE G IR Pt Z o)
TTYERPT S HF - HA K BE BRI YE
JE VR A IRF > I A FHAS R MR I 2 4
FEAE 0 A N R RN R AR N o
e 8 2 A 7 A =z R T B DA B 4
e 38 Z A BOF 2R 47 BUA FH R R BL 4 iR
ZHEH

I R A B s % B 39 P9 46 11 T 4
ez WA F S DR AD > ARSI A R AL
HoE ¥ 1R B8 0 A 48 [ 5 AR 2 |
5B R o PR > A RSB
PR Z B AT B A R R B O 7E M
3OWTE o REEMP _F—HFETZH
=t+—HABYBE=ZFEIABERT
A 2 % A B 205.08 K0 (&
—PU4E : 128.1HFETT) o
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

44 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

RMB and VND are not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions are
conducted with reference to the exchange rates quoted
by the People’s Bank of China and banks in Vietnam,
respectively. Payments for imported materials and
the remittance of earnings outside mainland China
and Vietnam are subject to the availability of foreign

currencies.

The products of the Company’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates operating in mainland
China and Vietnam are sold primarily in RMB and
VND respectively. Revenues and profits are thus
predominantly denominated in RMB and VND. For
certain subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
funds denominated in RMB and VND may have to
be, and from time to time are, converted into US$ or
other foreign currencies for the purchase of imported

materials and equipment.

Should RMB and VND appreciate/depreciate against
the US$, it may increase/reduce the foreign currency
equivalent of such earnings available for distribution by
these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the

Company.

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in
mainland China and Vietnam and substantially all
transactions are conducted in RMB and VND.

B AR

N

44
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3 35 B DL N R A e ) B o
b > W A A AN R W AR R O A
E o TR A E A A S A
AT AR LN B R R A S
# 570 B At A DL EOE D1 ARE K
B o

i 5 N IR W e ) i S T THE iz
i > ETREE B, WA AL ] B
J& AT~ A SRR A F] A
ER(RI &3

A SR ) 2 365 T T o I O o A e g
BEREE » KR 5 AR Kl
T ) 2 BLAL

-2 -1 F F &



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

=

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at

the end of the reporting period to a possible change in
RMB and VND exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and

equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary

assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries).

The analysis excludes differences that would result from

the translation of the financial statement of foreign

operations into the Group’s presentation currency.

44 B EBREE T R BUER (8)

(c) SERER ()

T 2 B A St 52 A R S B 19 L
o AR B B i A % HE 2 (]
2SR [0 F 1 B B i 2 ) 2 B O R
FARZ ARG BY) 7 IR A
B M o g G R T RE R A 2 A )
UBRRE o %55 00T A B 1 Ah
S5 0 A A A AR T R e
] R A A A 2 R o

Appreciation/ Increase/
(depreciation) (decrease) Increase/
in RMB or in profit (decrease)
VND before tax in equity
INCLi A B G i i
Vigi: g F 38~ BE 25 B8~
(Jz18) (W) (#A)
US$’000 US$’000
By an F T
Year ended BKE_F N4
31 December 2015 +ZA=+—H
AT B
If US$ weakens against RMB (CEN PN A5 3% 5,103 3,876
If US$ strengthens against RMB  fifi 3£ 0 & A\ IR ¥ FHE (3%) (5,103) (3,876)
If US$ weakens against VND v 3 70 188 0% B I 2 A 3% 1,285 1,002
If US$ strengthens against VND  fifi 5% 56 1 &k w Ji FH i (3%) (1,285) (1,002)
Year ended BEZF—E
31 December 2014 +=-H=+—H
R4 B
If US$ weakens against RMB il & ol N\ R B2 3% 5,222 4,902
If US$ strengthens against RMB i 3& 08 A\ R FHA (3%) (5,222) (4,902)
If US$ weakens against VND Ay 5 0 5 R 7 O iz 3% 1,137 830
If US$ strengthens against VND i 38 50 1B R )& T (3%) (1,137) (830)
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E _&F—HE+_H=+—HILESE

44 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
funding continuity and flexibility through the use of

various types of bank borrowings.

The Group monitors current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity

requirements.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

At 31 December 2015

A H

44

(d)

RBESRER

B35 L B B 5 g R B ()

ACSE 0 H B S 72 8 ) A TR A Y
SRATAR AR > A5 B < 0 A B

Z [ °F- 14 o

ACHR B R A 2 B e
SR DL B e 7 12 00 B 4 okt s S SRAT AR

TR HEBIRZ B > A4
VAR £ A0 AR U Bk L B 5 A

R_-F-RE+_H=+—H

Within 1 year 1to5 Over 5
or on demand years years Total
HER
KPR —F —FEHRE EBRAE kil
US$’000 US$’°000 US$’000 US$’°000
FEixFx FrxFxr FrFrx FrTrx
Trade and bills payables JE A 5 5 Mk I R 4 280,802 - - 280,802
Other payables and accruals JO At JE A Rk R T B 234,141 - - 234,141
Bank borrowings AT 482,963 449,384 170,723 1,103,070
Estimated interests on 5T RAT A A B
bank borrowings 40,324 59,368 22,709 122,401
Guarantee issued in respect of BBIUE=FEFRZ
certain indebtedness of T B R Z R
independent third party (M3E39)
customers (note 39) 50,185 - - 50,185
1,088,415 508,752 193,432 1,790,599
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Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BIEBEREESSRBGE (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) (dy RBEELEE (H)
At 31 December 2014 W _F—NE+_H=+—H
Within 1 year ltoh Over 5
or on demand years years Total
K
AR —E  —E2AFE BBRE AR
US$000 US$'000 US$’'000 US$’000
Frfrx  FErTrx FErTrx FrLTr
Trade payables JE A B2 5 MRk 245,702 - - 245,702
Other payables and accruals At A MRk M TH B 254,278 - - 254,278
Bank borrowings AT 515,902 579,842 29,491 1,125,235
Estimated interests on 5 18R AT 1 B
bank borrowings 38,197 46,307 2,028 86,532
Guarantee issued in respect of HEILEZNRPZ
certain indebtedness of HTEBEREZ R
independent third party (MH3E39)
customers (note 39) 51,460 - - 51,460
1,105,539 626,149 31,519 1,763,207
Capital management (e) EXERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital ASEEEBEAR N EEH 15 R EAR

management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e)

)

N

44

B

B35 L B B 5 g R B ()

Capital management (continued) (e) EXEE(E)
The Group monitors its capital structure using a AR 4 (9 ) ST P S b R B s L R
number of financial ratios. A key ratio is the net ZANE o Horp—IE SR A i
debt to equity ratio, which is total bank and other i PE B o B ERAT B At £ sk 4 7 DB
borrowings less cash and deposits divided by total S RFERBEE UM AR - REHE2Z
equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the net debt BUSR T 4 o v 05 R 2 Ll 3 5 BIK
to equity ratio at reasonable level. Capital represents Fo ARG A ARATHER ANZ
the equity attributable to owners of the Company. The HEZS o N IRE IR Z B EB SR
net debt to equity ratios as at the end of the reporting mF:
periods were as follows:
2015 2014
e S XS ZR 4
Note US$’000 US$’000
M itk #L Tt Enyan
Total bank borrowings SRAT S AR MR 31 1,103,070 1,125,235
Less: Pledged deposits W TR 28 (48,900) (40,870)
Time deposits with maturity B H B M=
over three months 7 W17 2K 28 (206,869) (168,462)
Cash and cash equivalents B4a B4 5EY 28 (288,238) (287,141)
Net debt F AR 559,063 628,762
Total equity RE 25 48 %01 1,315,882 1,386,408
Net debt to equity ratio AR B R A b R 0.42 0.45
Agricultural activities () BXETEE

The Group is exposed to risks arising from
environmental changes, climatic changes, outbreak of

diseases, regulatory changes, etc..

The Group’s geographic spread of farms allows a
high degree of mitigation against adverse climatic
conditions. The Group has appropriate environmental
policies and procedures in place to comply with
environmental and other laws. The Group monitors
the health of its livestock on a regular basis and has
procedures in place to minimise and manage risk

exposure to diseases.
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #E _~F—H4FE+ _H=1+—HIL4EE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45 ZX2QRMBZENRRE
THE COMPANY

2015 2014
SEoEE CEWE
US$’000 US$’000
By an FoLFoo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I B & B
Property, plant and equipment LE ) & 322 208
Investments in subsidiaries NG R 4 1,822,334 1,846,477
Due from subsidiaries JRE WAL IF Jeg A ] K JE 233,934 307,158
Total non-current assets 48 JE 7 B A 2,056,590 2,153,843
CURRENT ASSETS it By A
Due from subsidiaries JRE W R e 2 ) k0 137,392 163,244
Prepayments, deposits and other AR~ %ERK
receivables Al R 3K 394 381
Cash and cash equivalents e KBl &5y 3,667 30,664
Total current assets M E E 141,453 194,289
CURRENT LIABILITIES i B £1 5
Due to a subsidiary JRE AT — G BEF B > W) AR O - 679
Other payables and accruals At JBE A B JE %
FREH 8,096 8,346
Bank borrowings SRATAE K 81,495 40,600
Total current liabilities B R 89,591 49,625
NET CURRENT ASSETS o R 51,862 144,664
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES AR A I B £ 1 2,108,452 2,298,507
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Year ended 31 December 2015 B E - F—H4E+ A =+—HIL4EE

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45
THE COMPANY (continued)

A F BT R (R

2015 2014
ZE R xR
US$’000 US$’000
E Y an FEoLFoo

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I B £
Bank borrowings RT3 275,045 355,248
Other non-current liabilities HoAth IR 3 B & A 701 608
Total non-current liabilities #8 Ik B A 275,746 355,856
NET ASSETS & A 1,832,706 1,942,651

EQUITY HE 25

Issued capital CEAT AR 253,329 253,329
Reserves (note) it # (FE ) 1,510,733 1,617,409
Proposed final dividends R AR g S 68,644 71,913
TOTAL EQUITY HE %3 #84H 1,832,706 1,942,651
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B %% 3Rk M R
Year ended 31 December 2015 &RE - F—HE+F-H=+—HILF)¥

AT BT R (R

Note: Pk 5k -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARAE Z WM T
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
HHE i Iz
B i 11 M il AR ECA sk
Note US $°000 US $°000 US $000 US $000 US $°000
Wit FExTr o FxTr o FrTr  ErTr @ FxTx
At 1 January 2014 REB—WE—H—H 1,519,153 - 5,359 179,852 1,704,364
Profit for the year and total AR R A 9 2 A 4
comprehensive income
for the year - - - 30,252 30,252
[ssue of shares upon exercise PR 8 P R 1 8 A7 B A
of share options 34(b) 15,951 - (5,359) (317) 10,275
Reduction of share premium account  HI i# f§t 43 ¥ & 34(c)  (1,524,364) 1,524,364 - - -
2014 interim dividend SR A B 13 - (55,569) - - (55,569)
2014 final dividend ZE R B 13 - (71,913) - - (71,913)
At 31 December 2014 and REB—NEFZA=ZT—HR
1 January 2015 ZR-LHE—-H—H 10,740 1,396,882 - 209,787 1,617,409
Profit for the year and total R AR 2 2 AR A
comprehensive income
for the year - - - 65,820 65,820
2015 interim dividend ZER-HAEPHRE 13 - (55,569) - - (55,569)
2015 final dividend ZR-TERIBE 13 - (68,644) - - (68,644)
Dividend by way of a distribution VLS 2 9% 07 IR0 I 8
in specie 13 - - - (48,283) (48,283)
At 31 December 2015 REE-HETZHAZT—H 10,740 1,272,669 - 221,324 1,510,733
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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46

47

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period, the following significant

events occurred:

On 6 January 2016, the Group received approval from the
China Securities Regulatory Commission for the application
of Chia Tai (China) Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the PRC, for
the proposed issuance of domestic corporate bonds of up to

RMB2,000,000,000 (the “Domestic Bonds”).

The proposed issue of Domestic Bonds is subject to a number
of conditions (including market coupon rate) and may or may

not proceed.

Further details regarding the Domestic Bonds are set out in the

Company’s announcement dated 6 January 2016.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive
income has been presented as if the operations discontinued
during the year had been discontinued at the beginning of

prior year (note 37).

B AR

N

46

47
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Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan

Non-executive Director

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon
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Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew (Chairman)
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mzr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul
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Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew (Chairman)
Mr. Adirek Sripratak
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul
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Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman)
Mr. Adirek Sripratak
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Corporate Information
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Registered Office

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Principal Place of Business

21st Floor, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Auditors

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Legal Advisors

Hong Kong Law
Linklaters

Bermudian Law
Appleby
Principal Bankers

Citibank, N.A.
Standard Chartered Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Share Registrars

Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Bermuda

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

Share Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 43

American Depository Receipt (“ADR”)

Sponsored Level 1

Ratio: 1 ADR = 25 Ordinary Shares
Exchange: OTC

Symbol: CPKPY

CUSIP: 125918201

Depository: The Bank of New York

Website

http://www.cpp.hk
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69 Pitts Bay Road
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